
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Susan O’Connell 
Governance & Scrutiny Officer 

Direct : 020 8132 1399 
  
 

Textphone: 020 8379 4419 (in Civic Centre) 
e-mail: susan.o’connell@enfield.gov.uk 

 

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 14th January, 2021 at 7.00 pm  
Virtual Meeting/ Remote - Please use links on the Agenda Front 
Sheet to join the virtual meeting 
 
Please click Here to view the meeting or copy and paste the link below into your web 
browser: 
 
https://bit.ly/3nbm0GZ 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors : Mahym Bedekova (Chair), Yasemin Brett, Katherine Chibah, 
Lee David-Sanders, Joanne Laban, Bernadette Lappage, Tim Leaver (Vice Chair), 
Dino Lemonides and Claire Stewart and Peter Nwosu( Independent Member) 
 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME & APOLOGIES   
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 Members of the committee are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary, 

other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to the items on the 
agenda. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 26 NOVEMBER 2020  (Pages 1 - 14) 
 
 To receive and agree the minutes of the General Purposes Committee 

meeting held on the 26 November 2020. 
 

Public Document Pack

https://bit.ly/3nbm0GZ
https://bit.ly/3nbm0GZ


2 

4. UPDATE ON THE AUDIT OF 2019/20 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
(Pages 15 - 20) 

 
 To receive a report from the Executive Director, Resources 

 
5. BDO- UPDATE ON THE AUDIT OF THE 2019/20 STATEMENT OF 

ACCOUNTS   
 
 This will be a verbal update from BDO (External Auditors). 

 
6. DRAFT TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2021/22  

(Pages 21 - 92) 
 
 To receive a report from the Executive Director Resources. 

 
7. RISK REGISTER UPDATES  (Pages 93 - 130) 
 
 To receive a report from Gemma Young, Head of Internal Audit and Risk 

Management providing updates on: 

 Corporate Risk Register 

 Brexit Risk Register 

 Covid 19 Risk Register 
 

8. AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE PROGRESS REPORT  (Pages 
131 - 160) 

 
 To receive a report from Gemma Young, Head of Internal Audit and Risk 

Management. 
 

9. MEMBER DEVELOPMENT SESSIONS  (Pages 161 - 164) 
 
 To receive a report from Jeremy Chambers, Director of Law & Governance. 

 
10. GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21  

(Pages 165 - 168) 
 
11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   
 
 To note that the next General Purposes Committee meeting is scheduled to 

take place on Thursday 4 March 2021. 
 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100(A) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 excluding the press and the public from the virtual 
meeting for the items listed as part 2 on the agenda on the grounds that they 
involve disclosure of exempt information as defined in those paragraphs of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006) 
 



3 

PART TWO ITEM- CONTAINING EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 

13. MERIDIAN WATER RISK REGISTER UPDATE   
 
 The report is not attached to the agenda and will be circulated ‘to follow’. 

 
(This item contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person- including the authority holding that information) of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended). 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES 
COMMITTEE HELD ON THURSDAY, 26TH NOVEMBER, 
2020 

 
 

MEMBERS: Councillors Mahym Bedekova (Chair), Katherine Chibah, Lee David-
Sanders, Joanne Laban, Tim Leaver (Vice Chair), Dino Lemonides and 
Claire Stewart and Peter Nwosu (Independent Member) 
 
 
Officers: Fay Hammond (Executive Director Resources), Gareth Robinson (Head of 
Corporate Finance), Gemma Young (Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management), 
Jeremy Chambers (Director of Law and Governance), Jayne Middleton-Albooye ( 
Head of Legal Services), Martin Sanders (Service Management & Governance 
Manager), Kieran Murphy ( Director of Data, Digital & Technology), Sally Sanders, 
(Head of Financial Assessments), Maggie Mulhall (AEA consultant, Electoral 
Services), Metin Halil (Governance Officer) and Susan O’Connell (Governance 
Officer) 
 
 
Also Attending: David Eagles (BDO), Francesca Palmer (BDO), Roopal Bakarania 
(BDO) and 1 member of the public. 
 

 
1. WELCOME & APOLOGIES  

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. Apologies for absence had 
been received from Councillors Brett and Lappage and from Matt Bowmer 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

3. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 15 OCTOBER 2020  
 
AGREED the minutes of the General Purposes Committee meeting held on 
15 October 2020. 
 

4. UPDATE ON THE AUDIT OF 2019/20 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 
Fay Hammond, Executive Director Finance introduced the report. 
 
NOTED: 
1. Despite best endeavours the council has not been able to meet the 30 

November deadline. The draft accounts were drafted in advance of the 
revised August deadline. However, since that time officers have struggled 
to get through the audit stage of the Statement of Accounts. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

2. At the last meeting of the General Purposes Committee officers were 
overly optimistic that the different strategies that had been put in place 
would allow the accounts to be completed by the 30 November deadline. 

3. The general complexity of the accounts and the questions raised by the 
auditors has been a challenge. The council has been working closely with 
BDO to resolve. 

4. One of the most significant challenges has been around staffing levels. 
5. Following contact with councils across London, over half of those who 

responded have also been unable to meet the November deadline for 
various reasons. 

6. The year a number of improvements to the Statement of Accounts have 
been undertaken. BDO have provided positive feedback on these 
endeavours to make the accounts more robust. At the end of the process 
the council is expecting to have an unqualified set of accounts. 

7. The priority now is for the Executive Director Resources to diligently and 
thoroughly review the timetable to ensure that with the addition of 
resources expected shortly (one person started this week and one is due 
to start next week) the accounts are completed as soon as possible. 

8. The Committee is reminded that there was previously a Chief Accountant, 
but he left in November 2019. The Council then recruited two interim Chief 
Accountants as wanted to implement of a number of improvements such 
as the new asset register and the huge number of HRA beacons. 
Unfortunately, both interims left in February and the council was unable to 
recruit despite best endeavours. The draft accounts were produced on 
time but since that point the council have struggled with balancing the 
resources and the other work in the team to deliver the timetable for the 
review part of the audit. 

9. The council have advertised for a permanent Chief Accountant. This post 
has been revaluated and is now at a much higher salary than previously 
and is at market value for this role, however, there were only two 
applicants that are A grade. Two interim Chief accounts have successfully 
been recruited to help the council get through this audit stage of the 
accounts. 

 
Questions, comments and queries raised: 

 This is the third year in a row that Enfield has missed the deadline for 
producing an audited assessment of accounts on time. How can we 
have confidence that this will not happen next year. Should these 
accounts not be completed until February will that mean that the 
accounts for 2020/21 will be late as officers will be working on two sets 
of accounts at the same time. Officers advised that the council does 
not want to be in this position next year and for each of those previous 
years the delays have been for a different set of reasons The council 
has recruited two interim chief accountants (one has started and the 
other starts next week) and in addition to this recruiting for permanent 
chief Accountant, the interviews for this role are on the 8 December. If 
this permanent recruitment is successful will have 3 Chief Accountants 
in post for February next year. The tasks will be allocation so that one 
of the accountants is focussing on existing 2019/20 audit queries and 
the other one is focussing on the new audit for 2020/21 to make sure 

Page 2



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

that this is in progress and continuing at the right pace. The closure for 
accounts 2019/20 will have happened before the council starts the 
2020/21 accounts, but there will a month or two when we are preparing 
for the new set of accounts and finishing the others. 

 Have the items detailed under paragraph 11 in the agenda report been 
completed. Officers confirmed that all the items listed in paragraph 11 
have been completed. 

 It was raised that BDO advised at the previous meeting that if 
everything was right first time then the November deadline could be 
met, did this not happen. Officers advised that in terms of getting it right 
first time, the pace that the finance team worked at and that the team 
was reliant on one individual to produce the draft set of accounts meant 
that they were not at the quality that they needed to be would have 
liked to undertake more checking. BDO advised that the progress and 
turnaround was not at the speed to complete for the end of November 
deadline and there were some areas where things were not right first 
time. It was previously agreed to step back to allow time to catch up, 
this was not achieved to the level that it was intended. BDO reiterated 
that the intentions and design of the closedown process and changes 
to the way valuations are being undertaken was the right thing to do. 
This was planned with the right level of resources at the start; however, 
these were lost at a critical point. BDO are aware that there are 
continuing pressures on the market. The Redman review which came 
out at the beginning of September does make explicit reference to how 
challenging it is to find the right number and quality of finance staff to 
support the ever increasing and challenging position regarding 
production of accounts. 

 What has the council got in place to retain staff and at the last meeting 
talked about a lack of quality control how are we seeking to address 
this now and for completion of the next accounts. The Committee was 
advised that the 2 interims have come from a council that has a 
reputation for delivering their accounts early and they have talked 
about some processes they had in their previous authority that they 
thought they could bring in terms of learning. They are known to 
colleagues within the team so there is already a relationship there. The 
Executive Director Resources will be seeking a commitment from them 
to stay through these accounts and those for 2020/21. In terms of 
resilience, moving forward a new post of Deputy Chief Accountant has 
been created and the council will be recruiting to this once Chief 
Accountant role has been filed. In the longer term this will provide 
resilience with Head of Service, Chief Accountant and Deputy Chief 
Accountant roles within the team. 

 Clarification regarding valuations was requested on the differences this 
time. BDO confirmed that there has been a significant increase in 
volume of Beacon properties selected for valuation. Last year there 
were 24 Beacons, this year there have been 2 points of valuation with 
400 separate Beacon valuations of HRA assets. The Asset CIPFA 
module has also been implemented so all assets have now been 
uploaded on this and valued at 2 points in the year.  

Page 3



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

 What impact has Covid had, were officers involved in the financial 
response to Covid were officers diverted. The committee was advised 
that Covid returns are completed monthly to the MHCLG on Covid 
expenditure and the finance team are monitoring more closely the 
council tax and business rates impact on the local authority. There 
have also been a number of activities this year specifically in response 
to Covid. Every other activity that the finance team have undertaken 
has been on time. 

 Clarity requested on the next stage of the accounts. Officers advised 
that the Government relaxed the rules on producing the accounts this 
year with the draft account’s deadline 31 August and the final deadline 
30 November. The draft accounts were produced in mid-July. The 
second stage to the process, to get to the final statement of accounts is 
for the auditors test the accounts; they will read what the council has 
produced, ask various questions such as requesting evidence and 
audit trail to see that the council can prove what is in the accounts is 
accurate and test the accuracy the asset register, talk to companies 
who have undertaken valuations looking at areas of difference and 
areas of challenge. There is a process between BDO and the council 
with a number of questions around sampling and testing. It is the 
council’s ability to respond to all of those at pace with the resources 
that were available. BDO advised that the key points on the audit 
process are substantive testing and audit trial. In simple terms if there 
are gaps in documentation of audit trail explanations about where 
figures have come from or there is insufficient time to do quality 
checking (to look through the numbers and see that some of this does 
not seem to make sense which enables you to revisit the way some of 
the accounts are pulled together). Without that it is quite difficult for an 
auditor to be able to test whether the numbers are right, and it is 
difficult for officers to explain, justify of ensure that some of those 
figures are correct. There is a degree of testing of where the numbers 
have come from and some testing of the figures that are in the 
accounts to ensure the right numbers are in the right place. The audit 
trail must be followed all the way, if this is broken it is impossible to 
carry out testing. The numbers were produced on time but some of the 
trail behind this and some of the quality checking was not done to the 
level that would normally have been done with a bit more time and that 
is what has caused problems in the second phase. 

 What is the process for appointing external auditors? There is a 
national procurement process run for 93% of all councils in the country 
run by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA). There was a 
bidding process and 5 firms were awarded framework contracts, then 
PSAA appoints auditors to individual councils for a 5-year period. 
Auditors are appointed and quality checked by PSAA for the work they 
undertake 

 Clarification was requested as to whether more time was allowed to 
complete accounts due to Covid. It was confirmed that there was more 
time and draft accounts were completed well before this deadline. BDO 
advised that the Redman Review which is a review generally about the 
timings of accounts and the challenges of the original deadlines. This 

Page 4



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

Review which was commissioned partly on the back of the issues 
experienced last year when approximately 40% of all councils could not 
meet the deadline for 2019. There are a number of different factors that 
underpin these issues; the level of audit resourcing available and some 
significant changes that have reduced the poole of sufficiently 
experienced and qualified staff to undertake audits; the complexity of 
accounts; issues with valuations and the increasing amount of work 
needed on this area; and there is a scarcity of quality and experienced 
finance staff to support the process. Given there is an increasing 
complexity of accounts and accounting standards and a scarcity of 
skilled people inevitably something will go wrong. What was found in 
the review and supported by PSAA statistics is that there were a 
number of delays simply down to a lack of audit resource or complex 
technical issues or quality of accounts. There have been meetings 
since the start of the year hosted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants with various agencies recognising that something had to 
be done. Back in January there was a request for deferral of audit 
deadlines to allow more time for councils to prepare accounts to a 
quality that would be auditable. Then, the pandemic occurred with the 
initial response to push back deadlines to September then following 
recognition that was not sufficient pushed back further to November. 
The Review has recognised issues that need sorting out and it 
recommends that we do not return to an end of July publication 
deadline next year. There are a number of actions such as to increase 
the level and skills of finance staff to support the accounts, and 
suggestions to reduce the complexities. It is a very difficult position for 
councils and auditors, and they are all working together to try to find a 
sustainable, sensible and practical solution. 

 It was noted that reasons for the problems not excuses have been 
given and this is different to the problems experienced over the last 2 
years. The commitment of BDO and officers at the council was noted. 
There has been more work in this process this year, tight timelines 
against the background of Covid, having key staff leave makes 
difficulties and very difficult to address against the background of Covid 
both in terms of the recruitment of interims and full-time staff. There are 
only 10 out of 23 councils that have managed to deliver to the deadline. 
There was the commitment from both BDO and the council to deliver 
on this. Is there a risk to the council of where we are in terms of our 
finance and resources? Is there a resolution that we expect a delivery 
on these accounts and that we can have confidence that we can 
achieve in achieving the next set. Is there a risk and do we have a 
process for delivering these accounts in a reasonable timeframe? 
Officers advised in terms of the overall position in relation to the 
accounts they fully expect the accounts to be unqualified and agreed 
and there are no risks in getting to that point. In terms of the resolution, 
this is getting the right staff in and keeping them and particularly keen 
to build in resilience in the team. 

 It was queried whether it is worth recruiting an extra person to 
undertake some quality checking. Officers advised that this could be 
considered. There are workstreams with one Chief accountant working 

Page 5



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

on the old accounts and one working on the new accounts. There is a 
third workstream to improve quality by doing mid-year closing with 
more work undertaken mid-year to reduce the work at year end. In 
terms of reviewing quality this must be embedded throughout existing 
team by working with the team. There are currently have some 
processes in place and there is a business partner whose job is to 
improve overall quality of the finance team and the papers produced. In 
addition, having the 2 additional people coming in will help provide 
permanent stability.  
 

AGREED to note the report updating on the Audit of the 2019/20 statement of 
Accounts. 
 

5. BDO- UPDATE ON THE AUDIT OF 2019/20 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 
BDO advised that this item has been mostly covered by the previous item. 
They continue to make progress although not as quick as would have liked. 
The issues behind this in terms of resources to be able to turnaround some of 
the audit queries and deal with some of the audit trail points that have been 
raised. They will continue to work closely with officers to refine the timeline 
and re plan the remainder of the audit to get to a conclusion. 
 
They are hoping to be able to provide an unqualified opinion on the 
understanding that if they find errors they will be corrected and if they find 
areas of challenge these will be resolved to their satisfaction. 
 
AGREED to note the verbal update from the external auditors. 
 

6. UNIVERSAL CREDIT IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE  
 
Sally Sanders, Head of Financial Assessments introduced the report. 
 
NOTED: 

1. That the report highlights the risks associated with the implementation 
of Universal Credit (UC) in Enfield and the impact of Covid19 and 
proposes that in future reports this is linked to the broader impact of 
poverty in Enfield on the cost of benefits , homelessness and debts to 
the residents and the council. 

2. The background of Universal Credit is detailed in section 5 of the 
report. 

3. The impact of Covid-19 on Universal Credit from March 20- September 
20 has been significant, this has meant that has been a more rapid 
natural migration due to claimants change of circumstances. 

4. Local authorities do not get access to UC data so can only measure 
impact through increased demand for Housing Benefit and council Tax 
support, Discretionary Housing Payments, welfare advice and debt 
support and homeless applications. During this period Housing Benefit 
caseload has reduced by 1,962, Council Tax Support has increased by 
1,390 and those receiving Council Tax Support on UC has increased 
by 3,559. 

Page 6



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

5. The lack of access to data (controlled by the DWP) has raised the 
issue that whilst we know that households impacted by the Benefit Cap 
has increased significantly recently as a local authority, we do not know 
who they are. 

6. DWP statistics in May 2020 identified that Enfield had 3,431 Benefit 
Capped households putting Enfield in the top 5 local authorities in the 
country for high numbers of households impacted by the benefit cap. 
The local authority has requested this information as yet there is no 
promise when this will be made available. 

7. Rising personal debt, pressure on homelessness and increase in the 
allocation of certain benefits such as Council Tax support and 
Discretionary Housing Payments, continue to be an implication of 
universal Credit with other key variables such as the changing Local 
Housing Allowance rate, the cost of housing in the private rented sector 
and Covid 19 and the associated economic downturn. 

 
AGREED to note the update on Universal Credit 
 

7. CYBER & TECHNOLOGY SECURITY UPDATE  
 
Kieran Murphy, Director or Digital, Data & Technology and Martin Sanders, 
Head of Service Management & Governance introduced the report. 
 
NOTED: 
1. This updated requested by the Chair 
2. The committee is asked to accept the risks and findings in the report and 

accept the progress that has been made to date. 
3. The key things to note are; where we are with our existing assurance 

levels; the impact of increased remote working due to Covid and the 
increase cyber threats to the public sector; successful attacks to other 
peer organisations; our success at thwarting these attacks and ensuring 
that everyone is aware of the need for constant change to keep up to date 
with these attacks; ensure that our existing tools and processes are 
robust; maintain statutory compliance and ensure that the whole council 
needs to be aware of increased risks and remain vigilant. 

4. The key threats impacting the council since July 2020 are increases in; 
Phishing, Email spoofing, Ransomware, Malware, and Distributed Denial 
of Service. 

5. Hackney Council who deliver the same services and use many of the 
same applications were victim to a ransomware attack in October. There 
has not been a formal report into this at present. 

6. Security reporting for the period 1 July 20 to 31 October 20 is detailed in 
paragraph 12 of the report. 

7. On email security, in the last 4 months the council has undertaken a 
further review of the monitoring tools used. To give an indication of the 
level of attacks or potential attacks on average the council sends or 
receives around 56,000 emails per day and the monitoring tools block 
around 48% of these emails. 

8. The email review identified that the software and processes work well. It 
identified that in one month alone 200 malware attacks were identified. 

Page 7



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

From this a series of improvements and remediation will be incorporated 
into the Cyber Security Remediation Programme. 

9. The risk register will come back to a future meeting of the committee as 
this is mostly covered within the Cyber Security Remediation Programme 
that is being delivered. 

10. Progress and achievements since the last report are detailed in section 13 
of the agenda report.  

11. The next stage is to bring in some specialist fixed term roles within the 
current capacity to deal with new and emerging threats, particularly in light 
of the Hackney attack to ensure that the council remains as secure as 
possible.  

12. The Cyber Security Remediation Programme is targeting most of its 
delivery by the end of March 21.  

13. The main considerations for the council are detailed in the agenda report. 
 
Questions, comments and queries raised: 

 When the mock cyber-attack is undertaken are staff aware that this is 
taking place in advance. Officers confirmed that staff are not made aware 
when a mock cyber-attack takes place.  

 On the Public Services Network Certification is the council on time to meet 
the work needed by the end of the financial year? The Certification ran out 
in September 20, but the Cabinet Office have not removed compliance 
and the work needed will be completed by December 20 to get this 
certification for the period that has just gone and the council will be 
commencing work for the September 2021 certification. These additional 
elements that have been put on by PSN are as a result of the recent 
cyber-attacks. This involves improving some of the council’s servers and 
firewalls, so this enhances improvements. 

 What size is the budget for cyber security compared to the previous year? 
The budget doubled in terms of investment and is funded through capital 
and revenue. This has increased due to the need to put in extra software. 
The increase in the budget reflects that whilst the council were running a 
campaign once a quarter in the past, the new software being bought in is a 
more enhanced ransomware software. This gives the ability to run a 
monthly awareness campaign. The industry suggests that the biggest 
safeguard for cyber security is awareness through people. 

 Regarding the Business Continuity Plan does this include other companies 
or partners that the council will work with in the event of an attack. The 
Business Continuity Plan in terms of how we can move to another office is 
in place. The Disaster Recovery Plan, identifies all our critical applications, 
and is which is separate in terms of recovering our systems is part of the 
council’s Remediation Plan and is in place. There will be a test of 
ransomware in the first quarter of 2021. There will also be a disaster 
recovery test which will test the Business Continuity plan. 

 
AGREED to note the report on Cyber & Technology Security 
 

8. ELECTORAL SERVICES UPDATE  
 

Page 8



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

Jeremy Chambers, Director of Law & Governance and Maggie Mulhall, AEA 
Consultant, Electoral Services introduced a presentation 
 
NOTED: 
1. This committee now includes in its terms of reference the work that 

previously went to the Electoral Review Panel. The presentation covers a 
general update on the work of the elections team. The committee is asked 
to advise whether any further briefings are required, and this can then be 
timetabled for a future meeting. 

2. There has been a change in the legislation which came in December 
2019. This introduced some new methods to undertake the annual 
canvass. 

3. The changes are that; the national data matching is now undertaken for all 
properties. This identifies if the names on the electoral register matches 
the names held by the DWP and this was supplemented with local data 
matching against council databases.  

4. Where all details matched the property was assigned a Route 1 direction. 
All Route 1 properties without emails were sent a form for information or 
action if any changes. For the first time emails were able to be sent to 
properties and these went to Route 1 properties where an email address 
was available. This went out to just over 41k properties reducing the 
impact of printing and postage for these properties. If the household did 
not respond to the email then a subsequent letter was sent.  

5. Nonmatching properties went into Route 2, this followed the usual format 
for a normal canvass with a few enhancements. This year the form that 
was sent out directed the occupier to a digital response (online, telephone 
or by text). This reduced the amount of returned postage and subsequent 
mail opening and processing. The reminder form reverted to the original 
traditional form and included a reply-paid envelope to encourage postal 
responses and was supplemented by email reminders to these properties 
where an email address was held. Any non-responding properties were 
canvassed as normal. This year the team were able to do telephone 
canvassing where a telephone number was held.  

6. Whilst arrangements were put in place to undertake a doorstop canvass 
this was abandoned following the introduction of Tier Two restrictions. 
New residents have been identified through data mining trying to find 
potential electors from data sets that the council has received movement 
notifications. 

7. Route 3 properties is a new category, which includes nursing homes or 
anywhere that has a single responsible person. The Electoral Registration 
Officer can approach this person allowing a nonstandard approach to be 
taken. Telephone contact was made with the home managers and the 
response was tailored to what was best for them. This has generated a 
good response. 

8. The results of the new methods will provide a foundation for future 
canvasses 

9. The lack of the doorstep canvass has prompted another initiative. In 
January all residential properties will receive a Household Notification 
Letter (HNL) detailing the people at the property and advice on how to 
add, delete or amend the information. A postal vote application will be sent 

Page 9



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

with the HNL to encourage early applications for postal votes. Political 
parties are requested that if they are undertaking a campaign to 
encourage postal voting to contact Electoral Services so that resources 
can be planned around this. 

10. The Boundary Commission for England (BCE) have requested the 
electoral data based on 2 March 2020 electoral totals for the next 
constituency review. The London Borough of Enfield (Electoral changes) 
Order was made law on the 12 October 2020. The BCE will use the 2020 
new Enfield ward boundaries to create those constituencies. So, a copy of 
the March Electoral data has been adjusted and provided to the BCE to 
reflect 2022 ward alterations. This has not altered the current Electoral 
Register which reflects the current ward arrangements. 

11. The next election is the postponed GLA election in May 2021 reflecting the 
current situation, the Electoral Commission and Cabinet Office are 
updating their guidance. Preparations are underway looking at impacts of 
increased postal voting, assessing the availability of experienced staff 
depending on what Tier levels Enfield is in and looking at the impact of 
Covid 19 restrictions on nomination delivery, polling stations, postal vote 
opening and the verification and the count. The planning must consider 
both the safety of the staff and the voters and the transparency of the 
election and the ability of the candidates and agents to undertake their 
normal roles of observation. 

12. Southbury Ward vacancy notice has been published; this requires a 
request from two electors to commence the election timetable. However, 
all elections are currently delayed until the 6 May 2021. The election will 
run alongside the GLA but there will be a different timetable for 
nominations. Further information will be provided on this in the new year. 

 
Questions, comments and queries raised: 

 Has a recent review been undertaken on polling stations and whether the 
usual stations can be used if the current situation is still affected by Covid 
in May? Officers advised that work has been undertaken, polling stations 
were written to in June 2020 to check availability. The normal contract is 
going out now and this will also advise them that the team will be in touch 
with them with regards to additional restrictions and maybe undertaking 
surveys for each of the venues.  A critical view of all polling stations 
arrangements will be taken to make sure that they are safe for staff, 
candidates, agents and voters. A paragraph has been included within the 
letter on restrictions so that depending on government guidance at the 
time adjustments may have to be made to how and where polling stations 
are used. 

 
AGREED to note the update on Electoral Services. Members were invited to 
respond to Jeremy Chambers by email should any further reports be required. 
 

9. RISK REGISTER UPDATES  
 
This was introduced by Gemma Young, Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management 
 

Page 10



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

NOTED: 
 

1. The report includes the revised Corporate Risk Register, the COVID-19 
Risk Register and the Brexit Risk Register. 

2. The Corporate Risk Register has been circulated for review by 
Departmental Management Teams and the Executive Management 
Team and the only change is the risk for Health & Safety (CR10) has 
been reduced from High to Medium. All updates to this register are 
recorded in Appendix A of the report. 

3. The COVID-19 Risk Register developed with the Council’s COVID-19 
Recovery Group and Silver has been circulated to both groups for 
review and the update is included in Appendix B of the report. There 
have been no major changes. 

4. The Brexit Risk Register following a request from the chair of the Brexit 
Panel a full review has taken place and the latest version is attached at 
appendix C. significant changes which have been made since the last 
time this was presented to the Committee are that Medicines and 
supplies shortages have been upgraded from medium to High, Civil 
unrest has been upgraded from low to medium and a new risk Local 
businesses has been added to take into account the support that local 
businesses may need post Brexit. 
 

Questions, comments and queries raised: 

 Does the local lockdown risk need to be updated to consider the Tiered 
system? Officers confirmed that this does need to be updated 

 It was queried that rise in unemployment is considered a medium risk in 
the Covid 19 Risk Register, given the current economic state does this not 
need to move to medium. Gemma Young agreed to take this back to the 
Panel and challenge this. 

 Civil unrest in the Brexit Register has been increased why is this is this 
due to the closeness to the date of leaving the internal market. Officers 
advised that the Panel felt that in terms of what has taken place this year; 
the protects in London, the Black Lives Matter protests and when the 
lockdown began there was unrest in supermarkets, that the potential for 
civil unrest and the risk should be raised. A representative from the 
Metropolitan Police sits on this panel and they were in agreement that the 
level needed to be raised. 

 On Covid 19 Risk Register the sustainability of social care markets has 
gone from high to medium as has Civil unrest and unemployment. 
Currently in double dip depression and will be 2024 before things go back 
to normal, with furlough being extended and businesses struggling and the 
impact if we do not get a vaccine and a possible third wave- Is it premature 
to reduce these risks. Officers agreed to take this back to the Panel to look 
again at the economic risks. The Panel does have people represented 
from each service area and at present we are not seeing a lot of local 
businesses closing down. There has been lots of support for local 
businesses from central government 

 The Risk Registers are presented at every meeting of the committee is 
there anything else or any other risks that need to be included. Officers 
advised that no other risks at present. An equalities risk is currently being 

Page 11



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

considered. Happy for any risk suggestions to be made by committee 
members. 

 
AGREED to note the Corporate, Brexit and Covid-19 Risk Register Updates. 
 

10. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 
This was introduced by Gemma Young, Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management. 
 
NOTED 

1. This item comes to every meeting to update the Committee members 
2. The report covers the work that the Audit & Risk Management Service 

has undertaken during 1 April 2020 and 16 October 2020. 
3. Progress continues to be made on delivering the plan, there is still a 

risk of not having sufficient assurance work on which to base the 
annual Head of Internal Audit opinion. The committee will continue to 
be update on this risk. Officers are optimistic that this risk will not 
materialise and there will be sufficient assurance work to give an 
annual opinion. 

4. There is a lot of work in progress but not yet finalised. Since the Audit 
Plan was agreed by the committee in July there has been one audit 
cancelled and 2 audits added to the plan. 7 audits have been 
completed since the start of the year, 6 of these were either grant 
certifications or management letters so an assurance opinion was not 
given and the remaining audit on which there is an assurance opinion 
was a limited audit on unregulated placements. 

5. With the support of the Assurance Board there has been substantial 
improvement in the implementation of agreed actions. Managers have 
implemented 64% of high priority and 52% of medium priority actions 
that were due to be implemented by October 2020. 

6. The latest matrix for the insurance team are detailed in paragraph 7 of 
the report. 

7. The Council in line with other local organisations has not received any 
Covid-19 related claims. The team are ensuring that the council is 
following all government guidelines and recorded are being kept 
showing that these have been followed. 

8. It is expected that the insurance industry will increase premiums going 
forward as a result of the global spread of risks of covid-19. An 
actuarial review is underway and that will inform the value of the 
councils Insurance Fund and hopefully provide suggestion for 
improvement to the insurance programme. 

9. It is not expected that Brexit will have any effect on the insurance 
premiums. 
 

AGREED to note the Audit & Risk Management Service Progress Update. 
 

11. GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21  
 
The work programme for 2020/21 was noted 

Page 12



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 26.11.2020 

 
12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 
The dates of future meetings were noted. 
 
 
The meeting ended at Time Not Specified. 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

London Borough of Enfield 
 
General Purposes Committee 
 
14 January 2021 
 

 
Subject:   Update on the Audit of the 2019/20 Statement of 

Accounts 
 
Cabinet Member: Cllr. Maguire 
 
Executive Director: Fay Hammond 
 
Key Decision:  
 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. This report updates members on the progress of the external audit of the 

Council’s 2019/20 accounts, in the context of challenges faced by local 
authority audits in general and by the Council in particular.  It reminds 
members of the wider landscape of auditing and focuses attention on the 
key items that need to be audited for the Accounts to be closed. It notes the 
reasons for the delays. 

 
Proposal 
 
2. General Purposes Committee to note that although the 30th November 

2020 statutory deadline for audited accounts has not been met, the 
Council’s is still expected to have its accounts signed off with an unqualified 
opinion, and to note progress that has been made in resolving issues facing 
the Council. 

 
Reason for Proposal(s) 
 
3. The Council is required to keep members updated on the status of the 

Audit. The Council has previously reported that it will not meet the statutory 
deadline. 

 
Relevance to the Council Plan 
 
4. The Council’s Plan is delivered through resilient finances. The external audit 

is a process of testing and challenging to ensure the Accounts present a 
true and fair view of the Council’s financial position. 

 
Background and Progress to Date 
 
5. The report to the Committee on 26 November 2020 concluded that despite 

improvements made and the expectation that the 2019/20 accounts would 
be unqualified, the 30 November 2020 statutory deadline for completing the 

Page 15 Agenda Item 4



2019/20 audit would not be met.  The main underlying reasons for the delay 
were a lack of resourcing on the part of the Council and the external 
auditors. 

 
Resourcing 
 
6. Since the last meeting, a permanent Deputy Chief Accountant has been 

recruited and is expected to be in place by February 2021.  However, the 
recruitment for a permanent Chief Accountant was unsuccessful.  The 
interim Chief Accountant and their Deputy are already in place.  With this 
increase in technical accounting knowledge and skill comes the ability to 
raise standards through bolstering the quality assurance processes and the 
upskilling of permanent staff.   

 
7. The Council is also actively seeking additional support for the HRA and 

other roles in order to complete the 2019/20 audit successfully and deliver 
on its commitment to quality financial reporting within statutory deadlines in 
2020/21 and beyond.  The recruitment process is taking longer than 
expected due to a general shortage nationwide of available staff with skills 
in technical local authority accounting.  Furthermore, the second wave of 
the Covid-19 pandemic has had an impact on key staff. 

 
8. BDO Resourcing – Due to the delays previously reported to this committee, 

and BDO withdrawing from the audit to give the authority time to respond to 
queries, their staffing has had to be revisited, resulting in some changes to 
their team and an impact on continuity of audit staff.  The delays have also 
led us into a period of pre-booked annual leave for the BDO team, thus 
affecting the timely review of responses. 

 
9. The severity of the second wave of the Covid-19 pandemic, the third 

national lockdown and consequent school closures are likely to have a 
significant impact on resourcing, with key staff already having succumbed to 
illness. 

 
10. Central Government, through the MHCLG and in response to the Redmond 

Review and the exacerbation of the problems by the pandemic, is 
consulting on extending audit deadlines for 2020/21, with publication on 31 
July 2021 and completion of audits by 30 September 2021.  It is expected 
that the Audit and Accounting Regulations will be amended to reflect these 
changes. 

 
Prior Period Adjustments (PPA) 
 
11. In preparing the 2019/20 accounts, the Council restated the 2018/19 

comparative figures to correct errors in the prior year audited accounts 
mainly involving (but not confined to) accounting for non-current assets.  
Following external audit scrutiny, it has been agreed with the auditors that 
the lower value adjustments will be reversed and corrections put through 
the 2019/20 accounts instead.   

 
12. There are, however, two prior period adjustments which are the subject of 

ongoing discussions between the Council and its auditors and on which 

Page 16



they are yet to reach agreement.  These relate to the correction and 
restatement of all categories of the Council’s fixed asset register and a 
smaller item relating to the Meridian Water project. 

 
13. The work required to evidence and substantiate the asset related PPA is 

considerable and is being completed to the highest standard to meet audit 
requirements although key staff sickness has hampered progress 
somewhat. 

 
14. The outcome of these discussions and the resulting PPA will have a knock-

on effect on the final 2019/20 figures to be audited.  It is expected that there 
will be a conclusion to this issue by the end of January 2021, thus providing 
a solid starting point for audit work on valuation of 2019/20 property, plant 
and equipment to proceed. 

 
15. With additional Council resourcing now available, and the return of audit 

staff from annual leave, other outstanding audit items are being progressed 
in the meantime and so far, are also on course to be completed by the end 
of January. 

 
16. Although everything is being done to complete the audit by the end of 

February 2021, given the pressure on resourcing from staff sickness and 
the need for additional risk-based review within BDO, it is more likely that 
the audit will be completed in the middle of March 2021. 

 
Pension Fund Accounts  

 
17. Due to Covid-19, the global market was very volatile, and this brought about 

significant depression of asset prices. The Council has had to request the 
Global custodian to revise and update about five different investment 
valuations that were based on February 2020 prices.  We have corrected 
and restated the investments and are working with BDO to confirm the 
supporting information in relation to these changes. We will provide a verbal 
update at the General Purposes Committee of proposed timelines to clear 
all remaining queries. 

 
Safeguarding Implications 
 
18. None in the context of this report. 
 
Public Health Implications 
 
19. None besides the impact of managing the Audit during a Pandemic. 
 
Equalities Impact of the Proposal  
 
20. None in the context of this report. 
 
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
 
21. None in the context of this report. 
 

Page 17



Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
 
22. None in the context of this report. 
 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will 
be taken to manage these risks 
 
23. None in the context of this report. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
24. There are no direct financial implications beyond an unqualified set of 

Accounts demonstrating that the Council is a ‘going concern’ and the 
material effect that any audit changes may have on the underlying net worth 
of the entity.  

 
Legal Implications 
  
25. The responsibilities for the framework within which local authority audits are 

conducted is the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The Code of 
Audit Practice sets out what local auditors of relevant local public bodies are 
required to do to fulfil their statutory responsibilities under the 2014 Act. 
Schedule 6 of the Act requires that the Code be reviewed, and revisions 
considered at least every five years. A Code of Audit Practice came into 
force on 1 April 2020, after being approved by Parliament. The new Code 
applies to audits of local bodies’ 2020/21 financial statements onwards: The 
detailed statutory Auditor Guidance Notes (AGNs) that will support the new 
Code are being drafted. 

 
Workforce Implications 
 
26. None in the context of this report. 
 
Property Implications 
 
27. None in the context of this report. 

 
Other Implications 

 
28. None in the context of this report. 
 
Options Considered 
 
29. Not relevant in the context of this report. 
 
Conclusions 
 
30. Although the statutory audit deadline has been missed, considerable 

progress has been made in adequately resourcing the Council’s financial 
reporting function with the right level of knowledge and skill to complete the 
2019/20 audit successfully and deliver improvements to the 2020/21 closing 
of accounts and audit process and embed the necessary good practice and 

Page 18



high standards for 2021/22 and beyond.  With the second wave of the 
pandemic and third national lockdown already affecting staffing adversely, it 
is expected that the 2019/20 audit will be completed in March 2021. 

 

Report Author: Matt Bowmer 
 Interim Director, Finance & Commercial 
 Matt.Bowmer@enfield.gov.uk 
 020 8379 5580 
 
Date of report:       6 January 2021 
 
Appendices 
 
None 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 

Page 19

mailto:Matt.Bowmer@enfield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of Enfield  
 
GENERAL PURPOSE COMMITTEE 
 
Meeting Date: 14th January 2021 
 

 
Subject:  Draft Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2021/22                      
 
Cabinet Member: Cllr Maguire 
 
Executive Director: Fay Hammond 
 
Key Decision: [                           ] 
 

 
Purpose of Report 

1. This report sets out the Council’s proposed Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement (TMSS) for the period 2021/22 to 2030/31, and Annual 
Investment Strategy (AIS) for the year ended 31 March 2022, together with 
supporting information. 

2. The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services 
(the “TM Code”) requires the Council to determine its Treasury Management 
Policy and Strategy for 2021/22 and the following 3 years. 

3. The Local Government Act 2003 also requires Local Authorities to adopt 
Prudential Indicators and Minimum Revenue Provision Statements. 

4. The TMSS and AIS form part of the Council’s overall budget setting and 
financial framework and will be finalised and updated as work on the 
Council’s 2021/22 budget is progressed in January and February 2021.  

5. The Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement sets out the 
Council’s strategy for ensuring that: 

 its capital investment plans are prudent, affordable and 
sustainable; 

 the financing of the Council’s capital programme and ensuring 
that cash flow is properly planned; 

 cash balances are appropriately invested to generate optimum 
returns having regard to security and liquidity of capital. 

6. The Council’s cashflow management, use of banks, investments and 
borrowing is governed by the Treasury Management Strategy (TM Strategy) 

7. The Investment strategy will continue to give priority to security and liquidity 
of investment capital over return. It will also be prudent and transparent. 

Page 21 Agenda Item 6



8. The strategy assumes significant growth of external borrowing to support the 
Council’s ambitious 10 Year Capital Programme. There is  ongoing work on 
Programme and the  figures in this report are subject to change with the 
revised and updated figures to be presented Cabinet on 3rd February for 
recommendation on to Council 24th February for approval. 

9. The key points of the report are highlighted below: 

  See 
Appendix: 

Borrowing 
Outstanding at 31st 
December 2020 and 
31st March 2021 & 
31st March 2022 
forecasts 

Total borrowing outstanding as at 31st 
December 2020 was £914.4m with 
the forecast for 31st March 2021 at 
£1,116m and estimated budget for 
31st March 2022 of £1,346m 

 
C & D 

Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) 
Forecast for 31st 
March 2021 and 31st 
March 2022 

The audited borrowing CFR for 31st 
March 2020 was £1,109m. The 
forecast for 31st March 2021 stood at 
£1,236m and forecast for 31st March 
2022 is £1,466m. 

D 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP) 

MRP chargeable to the General Fund 
(GF) for 2021/22 is £13.24m. 

E 

Setting Treasury 
Management & 
Prudential 
Indicators 

To ensure officers operate the 
Council’s activities within a well-
defined limit 

D 

Proposal 

10. That the members of the General Purpose Committee review the Draft 
Treasury Management Strategy and consider the five areas below when 
formulating comments to Cabinet and Council when it approves the Strategy 
in February: 

i) Agree the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2021/22; 

ii) Note the Economic context & Interest rate forecast (Appendices A and B); 

iii) Agree the Prudential Indicators set out in Appendix D; 

iv) Agree the Minimum Revenue Provision Statement (Appendix E); and 

v) Agree Counterparty List and Limits set out in Appendix F. 

Reason for Proposal 

11. The Treasury Management Strategy fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under 
the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to both the Treasury 
Management Code and the MHCLG Guidance. 

12. The Council has borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is 
therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and 
the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, 

Page 22



monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy and to mitigate these risks. 

Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan  

13. Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.   

14. Build our Economy to create a thriving place.  

15. Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.  

Background 

16. On 31st March 2020, the Council had net borrowing of £893.6m arising from 
its revenue and capital income and expenditure. The underlying need to 
borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the 
underlying resources available for investment. These factors are summarised 
in Table 1 below. 

17. The Treasury Management Strategy fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under 
the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to both the Treasury 
Management Code and the DCLG Guidance. 

18. The Council has borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is 
therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and 
the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, 
monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy and to mitigate these risks. 

19. The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three 
main reports each year. which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals: 

i. A treasury management strategy statement (this report) – it covers: 

 the capital spending plans (including prudential indicators); 

 the treasury management strategy (how the investments and 
borrowings are to be organised, the parameters on how 
investments are to be managed) including treasury indicators; 
and 

 an investment strategy report (detailing the Council’s service 
investments and commercial investments). 

ii. A mid year treasury management report – This will update members 
with the progress of the capital position, amending prudential 
indicators as necessary, and whether any policies require revision. 

iii. A treasury outturn report – This provides details of annual actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and annual actual treasury 
operations compared to the annual estimates within the strategy. 

20. The Council uses Arlingclose Limited as its external treasury management 
advisors. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management 

Page 23



decisions remains with the organisation at all times and officers will ensure 
that undue reliance is not placed upon the external service providers. 

21. The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management. This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny. 
Training will be arranged as required. The training needs of treasury 
management officers are also periodically reviewed.  

The Strategy for 2020/21 and the Current Borrowing & Investment 
Position and Performance 

22. The Strategy for 2020/21 was approved by the full Council in February 2020 
and set the following objectives: - 

a) The minimum Fitch credit ratings for the Council’s investment policy: 

• Short Term: ‘F1’  

• Long Term: ‘A-’  

b) Investments stood at £50.39m as at 31st December 2020 with £7.35m 
placed in a Call account with HSBC and the remaining £43m invested 
in two money markets funds (MMFs). 

23. The Council’s forecast to borrow £305.3m for 2020/21 for new capital 
expenditure, as at 31st December 2020 £16.2m was borrowed and over £77m 
borrowing matured during the period.  

24. The below table show the position of the Council outstanding borrowing and 
investments for this financial year to 31 December 2020. 

Instrument  
Month End 

Balance 
Interest Received / 

(Paid)  

Cash Deposits £50.39 £155k 

Loans to Enfield 
Companies 

£133.3m £1.91m 

Borrowings £916m £18.9m 

25. As at 31st December 2020 the Council had £916m of borrowing in total. This 
is split between £897.6m in Long Term Loans (99%) and £8.4m (1%) held in 
Short Term Loans with nine different local authorities.  

26. The Council did not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow 
in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can 
be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds. 

27. The Council’s primary objective when borrowing money is to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and 
achieving certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are 

Page 24



required. The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term 
plans change is a secondary objective. 

 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR 2021/22 

28. The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means 
that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the 
treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately 
planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus monies are 
invested in low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the 
Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before 
considering investment return.  

29. The Council will also achieve optimum return on its investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. The borrowing of 
monies purely to lend on and make a return is unlawful and the Council will 
not engage in such activity. 

30. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement covers the three main areas: 

i. Capital spending plans 
 the capital expenditure and capital finance requirement (CFR); 
 the prudential indicators (PI); and 
 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

ii. Treasury management considerations: 
 economic and interest rates forecast; 
 the current treasury position; 
 treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the 

Council; 
 the borrowing strategy; 
 maturing structure of borrowing; 
 policy on borrowing in advance of need; and 
 debt rescheduling. 

iii. Managing cash balances: 
  the current cash position and cash flow forecast; 
 prospects for investment returns 
 creditworthiness policy; 
 service/policy investments 

Developing the Strategy for 2021/22 

31. The Council, in conjunction with its treasury management advisor, Arlingclose, 
will use Fitch, Moodys and Standard and Poor’s ratings to derive its credit 
criteria. The Council’s treasury adviser alerted officers to changes in ratings of 
all agencies. 

32. It is worth mentioning to the members that all the Council’s Money Market 
Funds are Low Volatility Net Asset Value (LVNAV) funds, which used to be 

Page 25



called Constant Net Asset Value. Under the European reforms the Constant 
Net Asset Value (CNAV) Funds are preserved for government funds only, and 
a new type of fund was introduced, named Low Volatility NAV (LVNAV) fund.  
LVNAV is intended to replicate some of the utility of CNAV funds, with greater 
sensitivity to market pricing, and extra controls built into the fund structure.  

33. The money market funds (MMFs) the Council invested in have never 
exhibited any meaningful price volatility. Officers have been assured by the 
MMF managers and the Council’s treasury advisor that stable price/NAV 
would still be maintained to avoid price volatility going forward.  

34. The Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) at Section 4 provides more detail on 
how the Council’s surplus cash investments are to be managed in 2021/22.  

Capital Programme and Prudential Borrowing 

35. Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local 
government funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address 
the key issue of affordability without compromising the long-term stability of 
the debt portfolio. With short term interest rates currently lower than long term 
rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short term to either use 
internal resources, or to borrow short term loans instead. However, this 
approach will need to be managed proactively to prevent exposure to re-
financing risk, the risk of interest rates moving in the future that will result in 
refinancing short-term loans or internal borrowing more expensive than the 
present time.    

36. The above strategy will allow the Council reduce net borrowing costs (despite 
foregone investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. The benefits of 
internal/short term borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential 
for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when 
long term borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly. Arlingclose will assist 
the Council with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may 
determine whether the Council borrows additional sums at long term fixed 
rates in 2021/22 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this 
causes additional cost in the short term. 

37. The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means 
that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not 
been fully funded with loan debt as cash from the Council’s reserves, 
balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure. This 
strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and investments 
counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to be considered. 

38. On 31st March 2020, the Council had borrowing of £989m arising from its 
revenue and capital income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow 
for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR).  

Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast 

 

Page 26



 

31.3.20 
Actual £m 

31.3.21 
Estimate 

£m 

31.3.22 
Forecast 

£m 

31.3.23 
Forecast 

£m 

31.3.24 
Forecast 

£m 

31.3.25 
Forecast 

£m 

General Fund 
CFR 

882.3 965.0 1,152.4    1,212.9 1,225.5 1,228.4 

HRA CFR  226.7 271.4 313.4 414.4 514.8 520.8 

Total / 
Borrowing CFR  

1,109.0 1,236.4 1,465.8 1,627.3 1,740.3 1,749.2 

Less: Internal 
borrowing 

(120.0) (120.0) (120.0) (120.0) (120.0) (120.0) 

External 
borrowing 

989.0 1,116.4 1,345.8 1,507.3 1,620.3 1,629.2 

Breakdown of external borrowing: 
 

Existing 
Borrowing Profile 

989.0 904.9 881.5 858.0 835.6 812.6 

New Borrowing 
to be raised  

0.0 211.5 464.3 649.3 784.7 816.6 

*finance leases, PFI liabilities and transferred debt that form part of the Council’s total debt 

39. Shown in the table above, is the need to borrow up to £816.6m in total from 
2021/2022 to 2024/25. For this financial year 2020/21, a total of over £77m of 
loans matured to date and a further £15m is expected to mature by 31st 
March 2021. The Council is still able to borrow some £211.5m to finance its 
capital programme. If the Council is to borrow, the affordability of the capital 
programme has been included in assessing the cost of borrowing along with 
the loss of investment income from the use of capital resources held in cash 

40. The Council has an increasing CFR due to the requirements of the Council’s 
Capital Programme and will therefore be required to borrow up to £1.2bn over 
the forecast 10-Year period (2021/22 to 2030/31). As detailed in Table 2 
below, the Council’s programme over the next 5 years is £1.7bn, of which 
£0.9bn is funded through borrowing. 

41. The table below summarises the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both in 
terms of those agreed previously, and those forming part of the current budget 
cycle. The table sets out the Council’s current capital financing expectations.  

Table 2: Capital Expenditure & Financing (not including Pipeline) 

  

2020/21*  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24  2024/25  2025/26  2026/27-
2030/31 

Total 10 
Yr 
Capital 
Progr- 
amme 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Meridian 
Water 

68.3 218.8 63.5 26.7 25.8 28.9 127.0 490.8 

Companies 23.2 55.0 11.9 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 68.3 

Joyce & Snells 
(GF) 

0.0 1.4 4.4 4.5 5.0 5.5 114.3 135.1 

Other General 
Fund 

60.0 140.2 75.4 47.1 35.7 41.1 116.4 455.9 

HRA 75.2 200.0 206.6 178.2 104.4 191.7 243.5 1,124.4 

Financed by: 226.6 615.3 361.8 258.0 171.0 267.3 601.2 2,274.5 

Page 27



External 
Grants & 
Contributions 

(33.8) (174.4) (64.8) (63.9) (31.7) (21.6) (77.4) (433.8) 

S106 & CIL (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Revenue 
Contributions 

0.0 (0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (0.3) 

Capital 
Receipts 

(3.1) (17.9) (9.7) 0.0 (73.7) (73.2) (132.8) (307.3) 

Earmarked 
Reserves 

(6.1) (55.4) (2.6) 0.0 (0.7) 0.0 0.0 (58.8) 

Major Repairs 
Allowance 
(MRA) 

(17.9) (67.2) (44.4) (35.5) (14.5) (14.5) (56.7) (232.9) 

Impact on 
Borrowing 

165.8 300.0 240.4 158.6 50.3 158.0 334.3 1,241.5 

42. The current long term borrowing rate from the Public Works Loan Board is 
1.78% (maturity loans) for 25 years and 1.42% (Annuity loans) for 25 years. 
Were the Council to temporarily borrow the necessary resources from other 
local authority for 3 years or 5 years, it would save the equivalent of 1.23% or 
1.03% respectively (for maturity loan type) of the amount borrowed. The 
affordability of the capital programme has been calculated based upon the 
assumption that internal borrowing would occur initially, follow by PWLB 
borrowing and Short Term Borrowing based on the current low interest rate 
environment.  

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

43. When the Council finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside 
resources to repay that debt in later years. The amount charged to the 
revenue budget for the repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP), although there has been no statutory minimum since 2008. 

44. While no MRP is required to be charged in respect of assets held within the 
Housing Revenue Account, the Council may provide for a voluntary MRP 
charge so that all schemes undertaken are viable (i.e. repay all their debt over 
an appropriate period) and so that the HRA maintains borrowing capacity for 
future years. 

45. Capital expenditure financed from borrowing incurred during one financial 
year will not be subject to an MRP charge until the asset moves into 
operation, except where the Section 151 officer deems it appropriate to 
charge it an earlier date. 

46. The MRP policy can be seen in Appendix E of Annex 1 of this report and this 
policy will take effect from 2021/22. Government Guidance requires that an 
annual statement on the Council’s policy for its MRP should be submitted to 
Council for approval before the start of the financial year to which the 
provision will relate. Based on the Council’s latest estimate of its Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR) on 31st March 2021, the MRP for 2021/22 is 
estimated to be £13.24m. 

47. Officers will commission a review of the Council MRP policy during 2021/22 
financial year to ensure it is prudent enough in the current economic climate 

Page 28



and an update based on the review outcome will be made available in 
2022/23 TMSS. 

Borrowing Update 

48. On 9 October 2019, HM Treasury increase the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB) rate by 100 basis points (1%), to a new margin 180 basis points 
(1.8%) above gilts for certainty rate loans, making it relatively expensive.  

49. This sharp increase to the PWLB borrowing rate was due to the pace at which 
local authorities had been borrowing from the facility during 2019 summer for 
their capital projects, housing and regeneration schemes; £2.0bn was taken in 
August 2019 and £1.6bn in September 2019.  

50. This policy change has far reaching consequences for 2019/20 and 2020/21 
treasury management activities as the Council has a large funding 
requirement and could experience a significant increase in interest costs if 
borrowing had taken place at the new prescribed rates at the time.  

51. Market alternatives are now widely available; however, the financial strength 
of individual local authorities will be scrutinised by investors and commercial 
lenders. The Council has previously raised the majority of its long-term 
borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).  

52. In the spring of 2020 HM Treasury started a consultation process on PWLB 
titled “Future Lending Terms” and this process closed 31st July 2020. The 
consultation allowed stakeholders to contribute to developing a system 
whereby PWLB loans can be made available at improved margins to support 
qualifying projects. It contains proposals to allow authorities that are not 
involved in “debt for yield” activity to borrow at lower rates as well as stopping 
local authorities using PWLB loans to buy commercial assets primarily for 
yield. The consultation also proposed the possibility of slowing, or stopping, 
individual authorities from borrowing large sums in specific circumstances. 

53. The consultation closed on 31st July 2020. The Council responded to the 
consultation. Late November 2020 HM Treasury published its outcome of the 
July 2020 consultation process and with PWLB issuing the revised lending 
terms. The PWLB reduced its Standard Rate by 100 basis points, thus 
reversing the decision undertaken in October 2019. However, local authorities 
can now only access the PWLB to refinance existing borrowings or internal 
borrowing; and financing expenditure relating to service delivery; housing; 
regeneration; and preventative action.  

54. Loans from the PWLB cannot be used to finance expenditure relating to 
commercial investments for yield generation. Failure to comply with the 
revised terms would result in suspension of access to the PWLB; repayment 
of loans (with penalties) and a wider Government review of local authorities 
borrowing framework. 

55. Immediate access to these lower rates is granted, with borrowers simply 
having to confirm compliance with the rules and expenditure plans submitted 
via this year’s “certainty rate” form.  

Page 29



56. Permitted uses of PWLB loans include the newly announced “treasury 
management” category, covering the refinancing of internal borrowing and 
external loans, regardless of activity on PIAPFY (purchasing an investment 
asset primarily for investment yield). This preserves a key plank of local 
authority’s liquidity management and therefore credit worthiness. 
“Preventative action” is another new category, covering urgent expenditure to 
prevent negative outcomes, where no obvious alternative is available. An 
example may be the purchase of property in a council’s town centre to stop 
urban decay, but note that HM treasury do not expect this to happen on a 
large scale 

57. The Council will only borrow from the PWLB to finance expenditure relating to: 

i) Service delivery 

ii) Housing 

iii) Regeneration of the Borough 

iv) Preventative action 

v) Refinance existing loans (maturing or non-maturing) 

vi) Refinance internal borrowing 

58. Local Authorities can now continue their budget setting process with more 
certainty and in most cases lower assumptions regarding new borrowing 
costs. Those that have purchased assets before 25th November 2020 
announcement will not be disadvantaged, the rules are not retrospective. 

59. The Council will continue to seek other funding opportunities such as 
borrowing from the marketplace. Furthermore, there is currently less than £10 
billion PWLB capacity for local government financing, set against the context 
of known requirements for other organisations, such as the North London 
Waste Authority’s borrowing requirements in excess of £1billion. 
Consequently, Enfield may find itself unable to borrow large sums from the 
PWLB. 

60. To borrow efficiently, the Council may need to have a credit rating in order to 
raise finance in the bond markets. Arlingclose believe that there will likely be a 
‘stratification of funding costs between “strong” and “weak” authorities. Due to 
the ambition of the Council, it is unlikely to attract the lowest rates. This may 
affect the investment models for projects, if they involve greater levels of debt, 
regardless of the investment return.  

61. Within the prudential indicators there are several key indicators to ensure that 
the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits. For example, the 
operational borrowing limit set by the Council, determines the external debt 
levels which are not normally expected to be exceeded, whereas the 
authorised borrowing limit represents a control on the maximum level of 
borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, 
and this limit needs Council to approve any increase.  

Page 30



62. Municipal Bonds Agency (MBA): The MBA revised its standard loan terms 
and framework agreement. Guarantees for the debt of other borrowers are 
now proportional and limited and a requirement to make contribution loans in 
the event of a default by a borrower has been introduced. The agency has 
issued 5-year floating rate and 40-year fixed rate bonds in 2020, in both 
instances Lancashire County Council is the sole borrower and guarantor.  

63. If the Council intends future borrowing through the MBA, it will first ensure that 
it has thoroughly scrutinised the legal terms and conditions of the 
arrangement and is satisfied with them.  

 

Safeguarding Implications 

64. The report provides clear evidence of sound financial management, efficient 
use of resources, promotion of income generation and adherence to Best 
Value and good performance management 

Public Health Implications 

65. The Council’s Treasury Management indirectly contributes to the delivery of 
Public Health priorities in the Borough. 

Equalities Impact of the Proposal  

66. The Council is committed to Fairness for All to apply throughout all work and 
decisions made. The Council serves the whole Borough fairly, tackling 
inequality through the provision of excellent services for all, targeted to meet 
the needs of each area. The Council will listen to and understand the needs of 
all its communities. 

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations 

67. There are no environmental and climate change considerations arising from 
this report. 

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not 
taken 

68. There is inevitably a degree of risk inherent in all treasury activity. 

69. The Investment Strategy identifies the risk associated with different classes of 
investment instruments and sets the parameters within which treasury 
activities can be undertaken and controls and processes appropriate for that 
risk. 

70. Treasury operations are undertaken by nominated officers within the 
parameters prescribed by the Treasury Management Policy Statement as 
approved by the Council. 

71. The Council is ultimately responsible for risk management in relation to its 
treasury activities. However, in determining the risk and appropriate controls 

Page 31



to put in place the Council has obtained independent advice from Arlingclose 
who specialise in Local Authority treasury issues. 

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that 
will be taken to manage these risks 

72. Not approving the report recommendations and not adhering to the overriding 
legal requirements could impact on meeting the ongoing objectives of the 
Council’s treasury activities.  

Financial Implications 

73. This report provides Treasury Management budget for 2021/22 and forecasts 
for 2022/23 to 2030/21 financial years. Also included is the 10 year capital 
expenditure for prudent and sustainability check. 

74. The Council held outstanding investments of £50.39m as at 31st December 
2020. This portfolio has receivable interest of £0.155k to date. 

Legal Implications  

75. The Council will be in breach of the CIPFA TM code if it does not approve the 
strategy before the start of the year. 

76. The Local Government Act 2003 (‘the 2003 Act’) provides a framework for the 
capital finance of local authorities.  It provides a power to borrow and imposes 
a duty on local authorities to determine an affordable borrowing limit.  It 
provides a power to invest.  Fundamental to the operation of the scheme is an 
understanding that authorities will have regard to proper accounting practices 
recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) in carrying out capital finance functions. 

77. The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) 
Regulations 2003 (‘the 2003 Regulations’) require the Council to have regard 
to the CIPFA publication “Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code 
of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes” (“the Treasury Management 
Code”) in carrying out capital finance functions under the 2003 Act.  If after 
having regard to the Treasury Management Code the Council wished not to 
follow it, there would need to be some good reason for such deviation. 

78. It is a key principle of the Treasury Management Code that an authority 
should put in place “comprehensive objectives, policies and practices, 
strategies and reporting arrangements for the effective management and 
control of their treasury management activities”.  Treasury management 
activities cover the management of the Council’s investments and cash flows, 
its banking, money market and capital market transactions, the effective 
control of risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.  It is consistent with the key 
principles expressed in the Treasury Management Code for the Council to 
adopt the strategies and policies proposed in the report. 

Page 32



79. The report proposes that the Treasury Management Strategy will incorporate 
prudential indicators. The 2003 Regulations also requires the Council to have 
regard to the CIPFA publication “Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities” (“the Prudential Code”) when carrying out its duty under the Act to 
determine an affordable borrowing limit. The Prudential Code specifies a 
minimum level of prudential indicators required to ensure affordability, 
sustainability and prudence. The report properly brings forward these matters 
for determination by the Council. If after having regard to the Prudential Code 
the Council wished not to follow it, there would need to be some good reason 
for such deviation. 

80. The Local Government Act 2000 and regulations made under the Act provide 
that adoption of a plan or strategy for control of a local authority’s borrowing, 
investments or capital expenditure, or for determining the authority’s minimum 
revenue provision, is a matter that should not be the sole responsibility of the 
authority’s executive and, accordingly, it is appropriate for the Cabinet to 
agree these matters and for them to then be considered by Council. 

81. The report sets out the recommendations of the Executive Director of 
Resources in relation to the Council’s minimum revenue provision, treasury 
management strategy and its annual investment strategy.  The Executive 
Director of Resources has responsibility for overseeing the proper 
administration of the Council’s financial affairs, as required by section 151 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and is the appropriate officer to advise in 
relation to these matters. 

82. When considering its approach to the treasury management matters set out in 
the report, the Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful 
conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of 
opportunity and the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a protected characteristic and those who don’t (the public sector equality 
duty).   

Workforce Implications 

83. The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget 
and consequently any improvement in investment performance and having a 
significant reduction in cost of borrowing will allow the Council to meet this 
obligation more easily and could also make resources available for other 
corporate priorities. 

84. This report helps in addressing value for money through benchmarking the 
Council’s performance against other Local Authority and London boroughs. 

Property Implications 

85. None 

Other Implications 

86. None 

Options Considered 

Page 33



87. The CIPFA TM code require that the Council establishes arrangements for 
monitoring its investments and borrowing activities hence the performance 
and activities of the Council’s treasury operations is being reported to this 
Committee on a regular basis.  

88. This report is required to comply with the Council’s Treasury Management 
Policy statement, agreed by Council. 

Conclusions 

89. The Council held outstanding investments of £50.39m as at 31st December 
2020. This portfolio earned interest of £0.155m for the reporting period. 

90. The borrowing CFR forecast for 2021/22 is £1,466m which is in excess of last 
year closing position of £1,109m by some £357m. The MRP charge for 
2021/22 is estimated to be £13m based on estimated closing Gross CFR of 
2020/21 of £1,278m, however for the borrowing CFR of £1,236m the MRP 
chargeable to GF is £11.6m. See Appendix E of Annex 1 for more details. 

91. The Total Borrowing for 2019/20 stood at £989m, the forecast for 2020/21 has 
been increased slightly by £33m to £1,116m. The estimated closing total 
borrowing for 2021/22 is £1,346m. Indicating a borrowing need of some 
£357m more than the closing position of £989m for 2020/21 financial year. 
For more details, see section 3.3 of Annex 1. 

92. The Council loans to its companies is forecast to be £149.9m as at 31st March 
2021 and to be £204m by end 2021/22 financial year. Future provisions to the 
companies will include provision of working capital and injection of equities 
into the companies. For more details, see section 5.15 of the attached Annex 
1. 

93. Treasury management (TM) and the prudential indicators (PI) are set out in 
Appendix D of Annex 1 to enable all treasury management activities to be 
carried out in accordance with the approved limits. 

 

Report Author: Bola Tobun 
 Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury 
 Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk 
 Tel no. 020 8132 1588 
 
Date of report        22nd December 2020 
 

 
Appendices  
Annex 1 – Enfield Treasury Management Strategy Statement For 2021/22 
 
Background Papers 
The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report: 
i) TM Strategy Statement 2020/21 (Approved by Council February 2020) 
ii) Section 3 Local Government Act 2003 
iii) Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 
iv) MHCLG Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (fourth edition) February 2018 
v) MHCLG Capital Finance Guidance on Local Government Investments Feb 2018 

Page 34

mailto:Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk


vi) CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, 2017 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Draft Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement 

 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 

and  

Annual Investment Strategy 

 

 

London Borough of Enfield 

2021/22 

Page 37



 

Treasury Management Strategy - 2021/22 

 
 
Contents: 
 

Section  

1. Introduction 

2. Economic Outlook 

3. Borrowing Strategy 

4. Investment Strategy 

5. Treasury Management Indicators 

6. Related Matters 

7. Financial Implications  

8. Other Options Considered 

 
Appendices: 
 

Appendix A. Economic Context 

Appendix B. Interest Rate Forecast as at December 2020 

Appendix C. Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position 

Appendix D. Prudential Indicators 

Appendix E. Minimum Revenue Provision 

Appendix F. Approved Investment Counterparties and Limits  

  

Page 38



 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22 

1. Introduction 

1.1. Treasury management is the management of the Council’s cash flows, borrowing 

and investments, and the associated risks. Borrowing arises from spending on the 

Council’s Capital Programme; this report should be considered alongside the Ten 

Year Capital Programme. The Council has borrowed and/or invested substantial 

sums of money and is therefore exposed to potential financial risks including the 

loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The 

successful identification, monitoring and control of financial risk are therefore 

central to the Council’s prudent financial management.  

1.2. Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework of the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in 

the Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which 

requires the Council to approve a treasury management strategy before the start 

of each financial year. This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the 

Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code. 

1.3. The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that 

cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury 

management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 

cash being available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk 

counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, 

providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. 

1.4. The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 

the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 

need of the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that 

the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer-

term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans or using longer term 

cash flow surpluses. On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt 

previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives. 

1.5. CIPFA defines treasury management as:  

“The management of the local Council’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, 
its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of 
the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

1.6. Investments held for service purposes or for cashflow purposes are considered in 

a different report, the Investment Strategy (Section 4).   

  

Page 39



 

2. Economic Outlook 

2.1. Appendix A sets out the economic national context within which this Strategy has 

been constructed. The medium-term global economic outlook remains weak. 

Second waves of Covid cases have prompted more restrictive measures and 

further lockdowns in Europe and the UK. This ebb and flow of restrictions on 

normal activity will continue for the foreseeable future, at least until an effective 

vaccine is produced and importantly, distributed. 

2.2. Bank Rate is expected to remain at the current 0.10% level with central forecast of 

no change, but further cuts to zero, or perhaps even into negative territory, cannot 

be completely ruled out. 

2.3. Gilt yields are expected to remain low in the medium term. Shorter term gilt yields 

are currently negative and will remain around zero or below until either the Bank 

expressly rules out negative Bank Rate or growth/inflation prospects improve. 

2.4. Downside risks remain, and indeed appear heightened, in the near term, as the 

government reacts to the escalation in infection rates.  

2.5. A forecast of future interest rates provided by the Council’s Treasury Management 

advisers Arlingclose is set out in Appendix B. For the purpose of setting the 

budget, it has been assumed that new investments will be made at an average 

rate of 0.10%, and that new long-term loans will be initially borrowed at an 

average rate of 2.5% during financial years 2021/22 to 2022/23; and 3.5% from 

2023/24 onwards. 

2.6. Credit outlook: After spiking in late March as coronavirus became a global 

pandemic, credit default swap (CDS) prices for the larger UK banks have steadily 

fallen back to almost pre-pandemic levels. Although uncertainly around COVID-19 

related loan defaults lead to banks provisioning billions for potential losses in the 

first half of 2020, drastically reducing profits, reported impairments for Q3 were 

much reduced in some institutions. However, general bank profitability in 2020 is 

likely to be significantly lower than in previous years. 

2.7. The credit ratings for many UK institutions were downgraded on the back of 

downgrades to the sovereign rating. Credit conditions more generally though in 

banks and building societies have tended to be relatively benign, despite the 

impact of the pandemic. 

2.8. Looking forward, the potential for bank losses to be greater than expected when 

government and central bank support starts to be removed remains a risk. 

3. Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast 

3.1. The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the 

underlying resources available for investment.  The Council’s current strategy is to 

maintain borrowing and investments below their underlying levels, sometimes 

known as internal borrowing.  

Page 40



 

3.2. The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management 

activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential 

indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital 

expenditure plans.  In considering the affordability of its capital plans, the Council 

is required to consider all of the resources currently available to it/estimated for the 

future, together with the totality of its capital plans, revenue income and revenue 

expenditure forecasts for the forthcoming year and the following two years 

3.3. On 31st December 2020, the Council held £906m of borrowing and £50.39m of 

treasury investments. Forecast changes in these sums are shown in the balance 

sheet analysis in table 1 below 

 

31.3.20 

Actual £m 

31.3.21 

Estimate 

£m 

31.3.22 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.23 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.24 

Forecast 

£m 

31.3.25 

General Fund 

CFR 

882.3 965.0 1,152.4    1,212.9 1,225.5 1,228.4 

HRA CFR  226.7 271.4 313.4 414.4 514.8 520.8 

Total / 

Borrowing CFR  

1,109.0 1,236.4 1,465.8 1,627.3 1,740.3 1,749.2 

Less: Internal 

borrowing 

(120.0) (120.0) (120.0) (120.0) (120.0) (120.0) 

External 

borrowing 

989.0 1,116.4 1,345.8 1,507.3 1,620.3 1,629.2 

Breakdown of external borrowing: 

 

 

Existing 

Borrowing Profile 

989.0 904.9 881.5 858.0 835.6 812.6 

New Borrowing 

to be raised  

0.0 211.5 464.3 649.3 784.7 816.6 

 

3.4. As shown in table above, there is a need to borrow up to £816.6m in total from 

2021/2022 to 2024/25. For this financial year 2020/21, a total of over £77m of 

loans matured to date a further £15m is expected to mature by 31st March 2021. 

The Council is still able to borrow some £211.5m to finance its capital programme. 

If the Council is to borrow, the affordability of the capital programme has been 

included in assessing the cost of borrowing along with the loss of investment 

income from the use of capital resources held in cash 

3.5. The Council has an increasing CFR due to the requirements of the Council’s 

capital programme and will therefore be required to borrow up to £1.2bn over the 

forecast 10-Year period (2021/22 to 2030/31). As detailed in Table 2 below, the 

Council’s programme over the next 5 years is £1.7bn, of which £0.9bn is funded 

through borrowing. 

Page 41



 

 

Table 2: Capital Expenditure & Financing (not including Pipeline) 

  2020/21*  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24  2024/25  2025/26  2026/27-
2030/31 

Total 10 Yr 
Capital 
Programme 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Meridian Water 68.3 218.8 63.5 26.7 25.8 28.9 127.0 490.8 

Companies 23.2 55.0 11.9 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 68.3 

Snells & Joyce 
(GF) 

0.0 1.4 4.4 4.5 5.0 5.5 114.3 135.1 

Other General 
Fund 

60.0 140.2 75.4 47.1 35.7 41.1 116.4 455.9 

HRA 75.2 200.0 206.6 178.2 104.4 191.7 243.5 1,124.4 

Total 
Expenditure 

226.6 615.3 361.8 258.0 171.0 267.3 601.2 2,274.5 

Financed by: 

External Grants 
& Contributions 

(33.8) (174.4) (64.8) (63.9) (31.7) (21.6) (77.4) (433.8) 

S106 & CIL (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Revenue 
Contributions 

0.0 (0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (0.3) 

Capital 
Receipts 

(3.1) (17.9) (9.7) 0.0 (73.7) (73.2) (132.8) (307.3) 

Earmarked 
Reserves 

(6.1) (55.4) (2.6) 0.0 (0.7) 0.0 0.0 (58.8) 

Major Repairs 
Allowance 
(MRA) 

(17.9) (67.2) (44.4) (35.5) (14.5) (14.5) (56.7) (232.9) 

Prudential 
Borrowing 
Required 

165.8 300.0 240.4 158.6 50.3 158.0 334.3 1,241.5 

 

3.6. Table 2 includes projects that have not yet been approved or recommended in the 

10-Year Capital Programme, such as the General Fund element of the Snells & 

Joyce regeneration project. This project has been included due to the size of 

borrowing required to finance the project, and the need to illustrate the impact the 

borrowing will have on Council finances and debt limits. The HRA element is 

included within the HRA business plan for 3,500 new affordable homes.  

3.7. Table 3 below illustrates the impact of borrowing on the Council’s Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR) 

Table 3: Change in Capital Financing Requirement 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Meridian 

Water 
39.8 57.8 6.2 4.1 4.9 4.2 (1.3) (16.6) (3.3) 9.6 38.2 

Companies 16.9 53.9 10.2 (0.6) (2.2) (2.2) (2.3) (2.6) (2.8) (2.8) (2.9) 

Snells & 
0.0 1.4 4.4 4.5 5.0 5.5 5.3 27.9 15.4 37.1 27.9 

Page 42



 

*  Other General Fund exculudes Meridian Water; Snells & Joyce; and Companies) over the ten years includes but is not limited to £26m spend on ICT, £28m 

spend on Reardon Court, £79m spend on Highways, £25m on Vehicle Replacement, and £44m spend on Montagu Industrial Estate 

3.8. CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that 

the Council’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the 

next three years – Table 4 sets out the position over the forecasted period. It is 

worth noting that each year the Council sets aside a certain proportion of monies 

for borrowing via its Minimum Revenue Provision charge.  

Table 4:  Relation between Total Borrowing & Capital Financing Requirement. 

3.9. As at 31st December 2020 the Council holds £914 million of loans as part of its 

strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. This is set out in detail in 

Appendix C, which includes level of investments held at that time too. The 

balance sheet forecast in Table 2 shows that the Council expects to borrow 

approximately £166m in 2020/21 based on capital monitoring forecasts 

undertaken at 30th November 2020. The Council may also borrow additional sums 

to prefund future years’ requirements, providing this does not exceed the current 

years’ authorised limit for borrowing of £1.6 billion. This is not considered to be 

likely at present. 

3.10. Table 5 below shows how the interest is funded, broken down by fund. It is 

important to note that it is based on an interest rate of 2.5% for years 2021/22 to 

2022/23 and 3.5% for years 2023/24 onwards as the Council is being deliberately 

overly prudent. The Council is currently able to borrow in the short term at 

approximately sub1% and current PWLB rates for 20-25 years is circa 1.90%%. 

Borrowing at 1% equates to £1m of interest for every £100m borrowed. Therefore, 

as the Council borrows long-term for the Capital Programme and re-financing 

Joyce (GF)  

Other General 

Fund* 
28.1 74.4 39.7 4.5 (4.8) (0.4) (2.7) (10.5) (6.7) (15.6) (20.5) 

HRA 44.7 42.0 100.9 100.4 6.0 104.0 54.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total 72.8 116.4 140.7 105.0 1.2 103.6 51.3 (10.5) (6.7) (15.6) (20.5) 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  

Meridian Water 342.1 399.9 406.1 410.2 415.1 419.4 418.0 401.4 398.1 407.8 446.0 

Companies 149.9 203.7 214.0 213.4 211.2 209.0 206.7 204.1 201.3 198.4 195.5 

Joyce & Snells 
(GF)  

0.0 1.4 5.8 10.3 15.3 20.7 26.1 54.0 69.4 106.5 134.3 

Other General 
Fund 

473.0 547.4 587.1 591.6 586.8 586.5 583.7 573.2 566.5 551.0 530.5 

HRA 271.4 313.4 414.4 514.8 520.8 624.8 678.8 678.8 678.8 678.8 678.8 

Total 1,236.4 1,465.8 1,627.4 1,740.3 1,749.2 1,860.4 1,913.3 1,911.5 1,914.1 1,942.5 1,985.1 

Net Borrowing 1,063.0 1,342.9 1,506.8 1,622.3 1,631.9 1,742.1 1,795.1 1,793.4 1,795.5 1,823.9 1,866.5 

Page 43



 

existing debt the Council will update the Treasury Management Strategy with 

revised (and reduced figures). 

3.11. The impact on the General Fund in 2020/21 of £18.31m (made up of £11.57m 

MRP charge and £6.74m of interest payments) is therefore net of: 

a) Housing Revenue Account recharge of £9.58m, which is funded by rents 

b) Income generated by companies, which have separate sound business cases 

c) £8.18m Capitalised interest on Meridian Water (inclusive of loan arrangement 

fees), which will be repaid by capital receipts and which is anticipated to be 

completely repaid by 2043/44 and the difference of which will then be used to 

finance other aspects of the Capital Programme. 

Table 5: Breakdown of Indicative Interest rates (more detail in Appendix C) 

3.12. The Council ensures that its borrowing is affordable by ensuring that appropriate 

budgets exist. Consequently, the Council is increasing capital financing budgets 

from £19.86m in 2020/21 to £30.53m in 2025/26. This increase of over £10m 

during the next five-year period in its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is to 

ensure the Council can afford its aspirations. 

3.13. As outlined in the table below, the Council is able to draw down on the Capital 

Financing Reserves that it prudently put aside to mitigate any impact on revenue. 

If the Capital Programme was delayed or the Council was able to borrow at rates 

below 3.5% for an extended period of time, it would have the ability to release 

these reserves for other purposes.  This is particularly important with the continual 

demographic pressures that Councils face. 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

  £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s 

Gross Interest 28,708 33,600 39,266 43,687 46,287 48,848 52,095 53,617 54,067 55,057 56,590 

Debt Fees 79 118 98 81 43 79 58 44 42 50 55 

Total Debt Cost 28,787 33,718 39,364 43,767 46,330 48,927 52,153 53,661 54,109 55,107 56,645 

Recharges:                        

Meridian Water (8,179) (8,068) (8,947) (9,485) (9,948) (10,395) (10,820) (10,726) (10,510) (10,683) (11,490) 

Companies (4,240) (4,898) (5,315) (5,566) (5,550) (5,495) (5,439) (5,213) (5,091) (5,023) (4,952) 

Snells & Joyce 0 (17) (89) (223) (389) (573) (765) (1,348) (2,108) (3,029) (4,174) 

HRA (9,583) (11,829) (13,393) (15,807) (17,236) (18,786) (21,087) (21,914) (21,957) (22,043) (22,199) 

Debt Fees (44) (54) (43) (38) (6) (40) (21) (10) (5) (16) (23) 

Interest Charged 
to General Fund 

6,741 8,851 11,577 12,647 13,201 13,637 14,021 14,449 14,438 14,312 13,806 

                       

MRP 11,566 17,637 20,203 21,335 18,600 20,281 18,812 19,220 17,868 20,423 21,323 

Total Financing 
Cost Charged to 
General Fund 

18,306 26,488 31,780 33,982 31,801 33,918 32,834 33,669 32,305 34,735 35,129 

Page 44



 

3.14. Table 6 below shows the Capital Financing charges to the General Fund budget. 

In 2019/20, the Council set aside £1.42m into an earmarked reserve, followed by a 

drawdown of £4.92m and £7.70m in 2021/22 and 2022/23 financial year 

respectively to support capital financing charges. Under the current capital 

programme projections, the earmarked reserve would continue to support existing 

capital financing budgets over the remainder of the ten-year capital programme 

comfortably and not become strained or overspent.    

Table 6: Capital Financing Impact on General Fund Revenue Budget (net of 

recharges to companies, HRA and Meridian Water, I.e. General Fund impact)  

3.15. To ensure the financing position is sustainable, the Council also chooses to have 

both a 5-Year MTFP and a 10-Year Capital Programme and to project capital 

financing costs in the TMSS over a 10-year period. The Council carefully takes 

time to analyse how its debt is repaid. Chart 1 below shows the Council’s net loan 

debt over a 77-year horizon and compares it to the capital financing requirement, 

which peaks at £1.94bn. The debt peak is below the Council’s self-imposed debt 

cap of £2bn. The decrease in the curve reflects debt being repaid over time. The 

graph below reflects the current plans of the Council and assumes that the Council 

does not choose to speed up its debt repayments by increasing asset sales or 

leasing finished assets. The debt projections include the debt financing of the 

Snells & Joyce (General Fund) project. 

Chart 1: Borrowing Profile over 77 Years 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

  £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s 

Interest Charged 
to General Fund 

6,741 8,851 11,577 12,647 13,201 13,637 14,021 14,449 14,438 14,312 13,806 

MRP 11,566 17,637 20,203 21,335 18,600 20,281 18,812 19,220 17,868 20,423 21,323 

Total Financing 
Cost Charged 
to General 
Fund 

18,306 26,488 31,780 33,982 31,801 33,918 32,834 33,669 32,305 34,735 35,129 

                        

Budget 19,856 21,565 24,085 27,728 31,528 31,528 33,528 35,528 37,528 38,528 39,528 

Variance (1,550) 4,922 7,695 6,254 273 2,390 (694) (1,859) (5,223) (3,793) (4,399) 

                        

Reserves 21,550 16,627 8,933 2,679 2,406 16 710 2,569 7,791 12,584 18,984 

Page 45



 

 

3.16. Every year, the Council refreshes its 10-Year Capital Strategy, ensuring that it 

focusses on the Corporate Priorities and that the programme is affordable, which 

can mean non progression of a capital scheme; reprofiling capital schemes; and 

adding new schemes to the programme. The 2021/22 Treasury Strategy includes 

debt financing and associated borrowing costs for Snells & Joyce General Fund 

project. The project is yet to be approved by Members, however given the scale of 

the project and loan financing it is important that the 2021/22 Strategy 

demonstrates the impact of the project on the CFR profile as well as the revenue 

budget. More sensitivity analysis is being undertaken to evaluate the impacts of 

changes in interest rates. Note, assumptions for Capital Programme financing and 

models such a Meridian Water is based on a borrowing rate of 3.5% which 

exceeds the current borrowing rates available. However, this enables the Council 

to build in interest rate risk in the event interest rates rise in the future. It is 

important to recognise that as the Council has locked in much of its existing debt 

for decades to come the impact relates to the additional capital expenditure it is 

undertaking and in the re-financing of existing loans. Moreover, the ability to 

borrow in the short term at sub 1% rates in the local government market means 

that the short-term impact of interest rate changes is relatively small. However, in 

the longer term the impact on the capital financing budgets can be significant. 

Chart 2: Borrowing Net of Investments 

0

500,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,500,000,000

2,000,000,000

2,500,000,000

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
5

/2
6

2
0

2
8

/2
9

2
0

3
1

/3
2

2
0

3
4

/3
5

2
0

3
7

/3
8

2
0

4
0

/4
1

2
0

4
3

/4
4

2
0

4
6

/4
7

2
0

4
9

/5
0

2
0

5
2

/5
3

2
0

5
5

/5
6

2
0

5
8

/5
9

2
0

6
1

/6
2

2
0

6
4

/6
5

2
0

6
7

/6
8

2
0

7
0

/7
1

2
0

7
3

/7
4

2
0

7
6

/7
7

2
0

7
9

/8
0

2
0

8
2

/8
3

2
0

8
5

/8
6

2
0

8
8

/8
9

2
0

9
1

/9
2

2
0

9
4

/9
5

2
0

9
7

/9
8

CFR vs Net Loan Debt 

Total CFR Net Loan Debt

Page 46



 

 

3.17. The Council’s debt portfolio is split between FIVE main categories (as shown in 

the chart above): Meridian Water; Companies; Snells & Joyce (General Fund); 

HRA; and Other General Fund (GF). This enables more efficient management of 

debt and capital financing costs. It is worth noting that increasingly the Housing 

Revenue Account and non-Meridian Water General Fund capital expenditure will 

drive the Group Borrowing over the next 10 years.   

3.18. Meridian Water has a business plan in place which repays all debt by 2043/44. 

The Council lends to the Companies at rates higher than it borrows and therefore, 

the company borrowing does not have an adverse impact on the revenue budget. 

The HRA borrowing is supported through the 30-year HRA business plan and in 

part, some of the General Fund borrowing increases income and reduces 

expenditure.  

3.19. The Treasury Management Prudential Indicators, as shown in Appendix D, set 

out the limits on Council borrowing and supports the decision-making process 

around the affordability of the capital programme over the budgeted period. 

3.20. Appendix E sets out how the Council accounts for the repayment of debt. This is 

termed the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). This ensures the Council repays 

loan debt over a period of in line with the economic life of the assets. 

3.21. Objectives: The Council’s primary objective when borrowing money is to strike an 

appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving 

certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are required. The flexibility 

to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term plans change is a secondary 

objective. 

3.22. Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local 

government funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address the 

0.00

200.00

400.00

600.00

800.00

1,000.00

1,200.00

1,400.00

1,600.00

1,800.00

2,000.00

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31

Net Debt (£m) 

Meridian Water Companies Snells & Joyce (GF) Other General Fund HRA

Page 47



 

key issue of affordability without compromising the long-term stability of the debt 

portfolio. With short term interest rates currently lower than long term rates, it is 

likely to be more cost effective in the short term to either use internal resources, or 

to borrow short term loans instead. However, this approach will need to be 

managed pro-actively to prevent exposure to re-financing risk, the risk of interest 

rates moving in the future that will result in refinancing short-term loans or internal 

borrowing more expensive than the present time.    

3.23. The above strategy will allow the Council reduce net borrowing costs (despite 

foregone investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. The benefits of 

internal/short term borrowing will be monitored regularly against the potential for 

incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long term 

borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly. Arlingclose will assist the Council 

with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may determine whether 

the Council borrows additional sums at long term fixed rates in 2021/22 with a 

view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this causes additional cost in the 

short term. 

3.24. Sources of borrowing: The approved sources of long term and short-term 

borrowing are: 

i. Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and any successor body 

ii. any institution approved for investments (see below) 

iii. any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK 

iv. any other UK public sector body 

v. UK public and private sector pension funds (except the London Borough of 

Enfield Pension Fund) 

vi. capital market bond investors 

vii. UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies 

created to enable local Council bond issues 

viii. Mayor of London Energy Efficiency Fund (MEEF) 

ix. LEEF/EIB 

x. Insurance Funds 

3.25. Other sources of debt finance: In addition, capital finance may be raised by the 

following methods that are not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt 

liabilities: 

i. Leasing and hire purchase 

ii. Private Finance Initiative  

iii. sale and leaseback 

3.26. The PWLB - The Council has previously raised the majority of its long-term 

borrowing from the PWLB. However, In October 2019 the PWLB increased the 

Standard Rate by 100 basis points - in order to deter local authorities from 

borrowing to finance commercial investments. In late November 2020 HM 

Treasury published its outcome of the July 2020 consultation process and resulted 

in the PWLB issuing revised lending terms. The PWLB reduced its Standard Rate 

by 100 basis points, thus reversing the decision undertaken in October 2019. 

However, local authorities can now only access the PWLB as a means to 

Page 48



 

refinance existing borrowings or internal borrowing; and financing expenditure 

relating to service deliver; housing; regeneration; and preventative action. Loans 

from the PWLB cannot be used to finance expenditure relating to commercial 

investments for yield generation. Failure to comply with the revised terms would 

result in suspension of access to the PWLB; repayment of loans (with penalties) 

and a wider Government review of local authorities borrowing framework. 

3.27. The Council will only borrow from the PWLB to finance expenditure relating to: 

i) Service delivery 
ii) Housing 
iii) Regeneration of the Borough 
iv) Preventative action 
v) Refinance existing loans (maturing or non-maturing) 
vi) Refinance internal borrowing 

 

3.28. The Council will continue to seek other funding opportunities such as borrowing 

from the marketplace. Furthermore, there is currently less than £10 billion PWLB 

capacity for local government financing and set against the context of known 

requirements for other organisations, such as the North London Waste Authority’s 

borrowing requirements in excess of £1 billion. Consequently, LB Enfield may find 

itself unable to borrow large sums from the PWLB. 

3.29. To borrow efficiently, the Council may need to have a credit rating in order to raise 

finance in the bond markets. Arlingclose believe that there will likely be a 

‘stratification of funding costs between “strong” and “weak” authorities. Due to the 

ambition of the Council, it is unlikely to attract the lowest rates. This may affect the 

investment models for projects, if they involve greater levels of debt, regardless of 

the investment return. This will form part of the next steps.  

3.30. Municipal Bonds Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in 

2014 by the Local Government Association as an alternative to the PWLB. It plans 

to issue bonds on the capital markets and lend the proceeds to local authorities. 

This will be a more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for two reasons: 

borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond investors with a guarantee to 

refund their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any reason; 

and there will be a lead time of several months between committing to borrow and 

knowing the interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow from the Agency will 

therefore be the subject of a separate report to full Council. 

3.31. Short term and variable rate loans: These loans leave the Council exposed to 

the risk of short-term interest rate rises and are therefore subject to the interest 

rate exposure limits in the treasury management indicators below. 

3.32. Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity. 

This results in the Council either paying a premium (additional cost) to prematurely 

repay the loan or receiving a discount (refund of cost by PWLB). Premiums and 

discounts are calculated according to a set formula based on current interest 

rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature redemption 

terms. The Council may take advantage of this and replace some loans with new 

Page 49



 

loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is expected to lead to an 

overall cost saving or a reduction in risk. Currently, due to historically low interest 

rates and the high cost of premature redemption by PWLB, this is not viewed as a 

likely option for the near future. However, the Council will keep debt rescheduling 

opportunities under review and update Members as part of the treasury 

management reporting cycle throughout the financial year. 

3.33. Other Options: As the Table below indicates, there are a lot of options available 

to the Council, which the Council has not previously used, such as leasing assets 

in an income strip arrangement for a shorter period than the asset life (30 years) in 

order to retain the asset for the Council, while reducing the debt.  The reason that 

the Council needs to consider the wider range of options increasingly is that with 

its ambitious capital programme, costs may go up with greater borrowing if it is 

forced to borrow from the private sector. 

Table 7: Borrowing Options 

 PWLB Short 
Term LA 

Commer
-cial 
Paper 

LA Bills Long 
Term  
LA 

Bank 
Loans 

Private 
Place-
ment 

MBA Public 
Bonds 

Income 
Strip 

Size Any <£10m £100m <£10m <£10m >£5m >25m ? >£200m >20m 

Interest V, F V V V V, F V, F, I V, F, I F? F, I F,V, I 

Maturity <50yr <1yr <1yr <1yr ? <10yr 10 to 
50yr 

?  10yr + 10yr + 

Repayment M, A M M M M, A M, A M, A M? M, A M, A 

Tradeable No No  Yes Maybe Maybe Maybe Maybe Yes Yes No 

Credit 
Assessment 

No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Legal 
Documents 

No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Process Easy Easy Inten-
sive 

Mod-
erate 

Mod-
erate 

Mod-
erate 

Mo-
derate 

Inten-
sive 

Inten-
sive 

Intens-
ive 

Margin Highest Low Low Low Medium Medium Medium Medium Medium Higher 

 

3.34. The Council has will continue in 2021/22 to refinance short-term loans with longer 

term loans, locking in the very low rates that are on offer as a result of the change 

in the PWLB lending terms as mentioned above. However, as cash investments 

reduce to near zero, the Council may be forced to rely on short term loans  to 

finance the Councils cashflow activity while it takes time to determine as to how it 

will finance the capital programme given the large slippage position in 2020/21 

financial year. 

4. Investment Approach 

4.1. The Council invests primarily via its capital programme.  This is because during 

this era of low interest rates, treasury returns on cash balances tend to be lower 

and its cost effective to develop the Council’s estate with such low revenue 

charges for interest. However, this does not mean that there is no limit to 

borrowing. As the Council is primarily a borrower for social purposes and less for 

Page 50



 

commercial investment, the returns are lower and the Council’s Treasury Advisors, 

Arlingclose, have advised us that it would become increasingly difficult to borrow 

and/or expensive as it approaches £2 billion in today’s monetary terms. Ultimately, 

the Council prudently budgets at a 3.5% interest rate as this rate is close to its 

historical rate of borrowing and is also the current Treasury (HMT) Discount Rate. 

4.2. As such, the Council will limit itself to a hard cap of £2 billion plus inflation from 

2020/21 onwards.  In practice, it would also like to maintain a £0.2 billion gap 

below that in case any urgent needs are determined. For instance, previously the 

Council needed to find resources for fire prevention works and inevitably new 

unanticipated priorities will be uncovered. 

4.3. There is the related challenge of officer capacity and capability to manage the 

capital programmes that needs to be recognised. Currently, the organisation is 

heavily reliant on a few key officers and agency staff in critical roles. In particular, 

Finance, Legal, Property and Regeneration are gradually developing new skillsets 

that will take time to embed. The Capital Programme must be understood against 

the backdrop of the development of existing staff and the practical capacity limits 

on the Council to support the range of schemes against the service demands, 

especially in social care. 

4.4. Overall, the Council’s investment approach is aligned with its corporate priorities 

and as such regenerating the Borough and delivering affordable homes form the 

largest part of its capital programme and its borrowing requirements. That is not to 

say that investment in new schools, highways and transport improvements and 

internal investment to support productivity improvements are not included.  It is 

just that the latter, with the exception of those necessary for operations (ICT, 

centralisation of office buildings), tend to be heavily grant funded or are less 

resource intensive. 

4.5. The Council’s investment in social and affordable housing in the Borough can be 

demonstrated in Meridian Water and other planned schemes such as Joyce & 

Snells.  However, as social housing struggles to cover the capital financing costs 

(interest and principal repayments), even with grants, the Council has to be 

innovative in ensuring it can achieve on its aspirations. 

4.6. Over the next six to nine months, the Council will be reviewing the financing 

arrangements and delivery models of the Capital Programme as it seeks to 

maximise the leveraging of its balance sheet, while minimising the risk it 

undertakes.  There is a clear intent for this review to be reported to Council with 

the mid year Treasury Management report and to be undertaken under the context 

of retaining and developing existing assets, whenever it is in the best interests of 

the Borough. 

4.7. The next year will also the development of a fully fledged property strategy that 

examines all existing assets for their investment potential as compared with their 

realisable market value.  Currently, the Council has limited data as to the most 

efficient ‘sweating’ of assets. The Asset Management Software that is being 

Page 51



 

commissioned by Property should support the considered decision making 

necessary to maximise the assets of the Council’s estates. 

5. Treasury Investment Strategy 

5.1. The Council holds significant invested funds, representing income received in 

advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. All cash balances the 

Council holds during the year are invested with approved financial institutions as 

set out in Appendix F. The Council plans to have a zero daily current bank closing 

balance every day ensuring all surplus cash is always appropriately invested. 

5.2. The level of cash deposit will fluctuate during the course of the year. During 

2020/21, the Council on average held £60m in investments. However, this position 

is unlikely to continue in the forthcoming year, as the Council runs down its 

investments rather than undertake borrowing.  Appendix C sets the position as at 

31st December 2020. The ideal year-end actual invested cash balance is 

anticipated to be £25m, however, this may be higher as the Council may receive 

late grant awards from Central Government and Agencies.  

5.3. Objectives: The CIPFA Code requires the Council to invest its funds prudently, 

and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking 

the highest rate of return, or yield. The Council’s objective when investing money 

is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of 

incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment 

income. Where balances are expected to be invested for more than one year, the 

Council will aim to achieve a total return that is equal or higher than the prevailing 

rate of inflation, in order to maintain the spending power of the sum invested. 

5.4. Negative interest rates: Following the global outbreak of the Corona Virus 

pandemic at the start of the 2020 calendar year, the Bank of England Bank Rate 

has fallen to 0.10% to combat the impact of the virus on the UK economy. It is 

highly likely that the Bank Rate could be reduced below zero, which is likely to 

feed through to negative interest rates on all low risk, short-term investment 

options. Since investments cannot pay negative income, negative rates will be 

applied by reducing the value of investments. In this event, security will be 

measured as receiving the contractually agreed amount at maturity, even though 

this may be less than the amount originally invested. 

5.5. Strategy: Given the low interest rate environment and that the Council continues 

not to hold any non-core cash (i.e. deposits that will not be used in year). The 

Council continues to diversify cash deposits between short term unsecured bank 

deposits and money market funds.   

5.6. Business models: Under the new IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain 

investments depends on the Council’s “business model” for managing them. The 

Council aims to achieve value from its internally managed treasury investments by 

a business model of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore, where 

other criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted for at 

amortised cost. 

Page 52



 

5.7. Approved counterparties: The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of 

the counterparty types set out in Appendix F, subject to the cash limits (per 

counterparty).  

5.8. Credit rating: Investment limits are set by reference to the lowest published long-

term credit rating from a selection of external rating agencies. Where available, the 

credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, 

otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions 

are never made solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors 

including external advice will be taken into account. 

5.9. Banks unsecured: Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior 

unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other than multilateral 

development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a 

bail in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. See 

below for arrangements relating to operational bank accounts. 

5.10. Banks secured: Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other 

collateralised arrangements with banks and building societies. These investments 

are secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the unlikely 

event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail in. Where there is 

no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is 

secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the 

counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time limits. The 

combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the 

cash limit for secured investments. 

5.11. Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national 

governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development banks. 

These investments are not subject to bail in, and there is generally a lower risk of 

insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with the UK Central 

Government may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.  

5.12. Lending to Wholly Owned Council Companies: The Council can loan to its 

wholly owned companies but a business case must be undertaken and a review 

process that demonstrates that they are a sound option (non-loss making) and 

support the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan Objectives.  This plan must 

have been approved at the relevant requisite Committee. 

5.13. Lending to Joint ventures (JVs), Associates and Similar entities: The Council 

can invest in such organisations when they meet the same conditions as above.  

Moreover, there are instances when the Council is de facto required to invest or to 

deliver an alternative scheme (such as the North London West Authority). 

5.14. Lending to Companies or Charities, that are not wholly owned: The Council 

may lend to local Charities, that deliver services supporting the Medium-Term 

Financial Plan but it is must regularly confirm that the principal on the loans are 

protected.  Similarly, the Council can loan to companies, but the standard is that 

the loans must be on a commercial basis and that the Council has confidence in 

the nature that principal will be protected. The Council may make small loans to 

Page 53



 

organisations that are at a higher risk to support the local economy, possibly in 

relation to a complex regeneration scheme, but such loans, regardless of the 

amount, will require a delegated approval report, signed off by the Leader or the 

Cabinet Member responsible for Finance. 

5.15. Working Capital Facilities: These are explicitly not capital expenditure because 

they exist to manage cashflows, nor intended to be of a long-term nature. The 

Council can loan on a commercial basis to other organisations and the approval 

process is via the Section 151 Officer, who depending on the size of the loan 

may choose to request additional approval from the relevant Cabinet 

member. However, regular reviews of cashflow are a requirement, taking place no 

less than on a quarterly basis. It is anticipated that majority of such facilities would 

take in relation to wholly owned companies or JVs, and that they would be on a 

commercial basis.  However, where they do not, additional approval from the 

relevant Cabinet member, depending on the size of the loan, should be sought. 

One key aspect that must be considered in relation to working capital is that the 

cashflow review is not just for the demonstration of the healthiness of the borrower 

and ability to repay(plus interest), but to ensure that the loan is not being used for 

capital purposes and is solely due to the timing of cashflows. The latter requires a 

different governance process as noted within the financial regulations. 

5.16. Pooled funds: Shares or units in diversified investment vehicles consisting of the 

any of the above investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds 

have the advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled 

with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a fee. Short term 

Money Market Funds that offer same-day liquidity and very low or no volatility will 

be used as an alternative to instant access bank accounts, while pooled funds 

whose value changes with market prices and/or have a notice period will be used 

for longer investment periods.  

5.17. Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term but 

are more volatile in the short term. These allow the Council to diversify into asset 

classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the underlying 

investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are 

available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued 

suitability in meeting the Council’s investment objectives will be monitored 

regularly. 

5.18. Operational bank accounts: The Council may incur operational exposures, for 

example though current accounts, collection accounts and merchant acquiring 

services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and with assets 

greater than £25 billion. These are not classed as investments but are still subject 

to the risk of a bank bail in, and balances will therefore be kept below £15 million 

per bank. The Bank of England has stated that in the event of failure, banks with 

assets greater than £25 billion are more likely to be bailed in than made insolvent, 

increasing the chance of the Council maintaining operational continuity.  

5.19. Risk assessment and credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored 

by the Council’s treasury management advisers, Arlingclose, who will notify 

Page 54



 

changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded 

so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then: 

 

 no new investments will be made; 

 any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be; and 

 full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing 

investments with the affected counterparty. 

5.20. Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for 

possible downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch 

negative”) so that it may fall below the approved rating criteria, then only 

investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day will be made with that 

organisation until the outcome of the review is announced.  This policy will not 

apply to negative outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather 

than an imminent change of rating. 

5.21. Other information on the security of investments: The Council understands 

that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment default. Full 

regard will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of 

the organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial 

statements, information on potential government support, reports in the quality 

financial press and analysis and advice from the Council’s treasury management 

adviser. No investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive 

doubts about its credit quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above 

criteria. 

5.22. When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all 

organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2020, this is not generally reflected in 

credit ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, 

the Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit 

quality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the 

required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with 

prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient 

commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to invest the Council’s 

cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK Government via the 

Debt Management Office or invested in government treasury bills for example, or 

with other local authorities.  This will cause investment returns to fall but will 

protect the principal sum invested 

5.23. Investment limits: The Council will limit the risk of loss from a default from 

lending to any one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £25 

million.  A group of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single 

organisation for limit purposes. Limits will also be placed on fund managers, 

investments in brokers’ nominee accounts, foreign countries and industry sectors 

as below. Investments in pooled funds and multilateral development banks do not 

count against the limit for any single foreign country, since the risk is diversified 

over many countries. A group of entities under the same ownership will be treated 

as a single organisation for limit purposes. 

Page 55



 

5.24. Liquidity management: The Council uses its own in-house cash flow forecasting 

software model (Predictor) to determine the maximum period for which funds may 

prudently be committed. The forecast is compiled on a prudent basis to minimise 

the risk of the Council being forced to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its 

financial commitments. Limits on long term investments are set by reference to the 

Council’s medium term financial plan and cash flow forecast. 

6. Treasury Management Indicators 

6.1. The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks 

using the following indicators. 

6.2. Security: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit 

risk by monitoring the value weighted average credit score of its investment 

portfolio.  This is calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, 

AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each 

investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their perceived 

risk. 

Credit risk indicator Target 

Portfolio average credit score 6 

6.3. Liquidity: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to 

liquidity risk by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected 

payments within a rolling three month period, without additional borrowing. 

Liquidity risk indicator Target 

Total cash available within 3 months £25m 

6.4. Interest rate exposures: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to 

interest rate risk.  The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or 

fall in interest rates will be: 

Interest rate risk indicator Limit 

Upper limit on one year revenue impact of a 1% rise 

in interest rates 

+£4.0m 

Upper limit on one year revenue impact of a 1% fall 

in interest rates 

-£4.0m 

6.5. The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that 

maturing loans and investments will be replaced at current rates. The effect of an 

increase in interest rates will be mitigated through the Council’s risk budget. 

6.6. Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s 

exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure 

of borrowing will be: 

Refinancing rate risk indicator Upper limit Lower limit 

Under 12 months 30% 0% 

Page 56



 

12 months and within 24 months 35% 0% 

24 months and within 5 years 40% 0% 

5 years and within 10 years 45% 0% 

10 years and above 100% 0% 

6.7. Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of 

borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. 

6.8. Principal sums invested for periods longer than a year: The purpose of this 

indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by 

seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on the long term principal 

sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be: 

Price risk indicator 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Limit on principal invested beyond 

year end 

£15m £15m £15m 

7. Related Matters 

7.1. The CIPFA Code requires the Council to include the following in its treasury 

management strategy. 

7.2. Financial Derivatives: Local authorities have previously made use of financial 

derivatives embedded into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate risk 

(e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase 

income at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable 

deposits).  The general power of competence in Section 1 of the Localism Act 

2011 removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone 

financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or investment). 

7.3. The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, 

forwards, futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce 

the overall level of the financial risks that the Council is exposed to. Additional 

risks presented, such as credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken 

into account when determining the overall level of risk. Embedded derivatives, 

including those present in pooled funds and forward starting transactions, will not 

be subject to this policy, although the risks they present will be managed in line 

with the overall treasury risk management strategy. 

7.4. Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that 

meets the approved investment criteria. The current value of any amount due from 

a derivative counterparty will count against the counterparty credit limit and the 

relevant foreign country limit. 

7.5. Financial Derivatives: In the absence of any explicit legal power to do so, the 

Council will not use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, 

futures and options).  Derivatives embedded into loans and investments, including 

pooled funds and forward starting transactions, may be used, and the risks that 

Page 57



 

they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management 

strategy. 

7.6. Housing Revenue Account: On 1st April 2012, the Council notionally split each 

of its existing long-term loans into General Fund and HRA pools. In the future, new 

long-term loans borrowed will be assigned in their entirety to one pool or the other. 

Interest payable and other costs/income arising from long-term loans (e.g. 

premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be charged/ credited to the 

respective revenue account. Differences between the value of the HRA loans pool 

and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow (adjusted for HRA balance sheet 

resources available for investment) will result in a notional cash balance which 

may be positive or negative. This balance will be measured each month and 

interest transferred between the General Fund and HRA at the Council’s average 

interest rate on investments, adjusted for credit risk.  This is currently under 

review, as going forward keeping the historical HRA debt separate seems 

appropriate but it would be simpler and cheaper for both funds for the remaining 

debt to be split on a financing requirement basis, as it would prevent unnecessary 

borrowing.  

7.7. Markets in Financial Instruments Directive: The Council has opted up to 

professional client status with its providers of financial services, including advisers, 

banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to a greater range of 

services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and 

small companies. Given the size and range of the Council’s treasury management 

activities, the Director of Finance believes this to be the most appropriate status. 

7.8. Local Council Companies: The Council will only lend to wholly own companies 

by the Council or where the Council has a controlling majority interest in the 

company. 

7.9. All borrowing to companies owned by the London Borough of Enfield will require a 

formal on-lending agreement. 

7.10. Prior to that they will have to achieve to meet the following requirements: 

 An independently reviewed business case and cashflow forecast. 

 To be able to demonstrate the ability to repay both interest and principal over 

the agreed repayment scheduled. 

 Where possible the Council will secure the loan on the Council  

7.11. Lending to Schools with the HSBC Banking Scheme: Where LA schools with a 

HSBC bank account are in a structural overdraft position then the Council will 

provide a credit facility to ensure the school(s) remain in a credit position. Interest 

will be charged at ½% above the prevailing bank rate. 

8. Other Options Considered   

Page 58



 

8.1. The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy 

for local authorities to adopt. The Director of Finance having consulted the Cabinet 

Member for Finance, believes that the above strategy represents an appropriate 

balance between risk management and cost effectiveness.  Some alternative 

strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are listed below: 

 

Alternative Impact on income and 
expenditure 

Impact on risk 
management 

Invest in a narrower 
range of counterparties 
and/or for shorter times 

Interest income will be 
lower 

Lower chance of losses from 
credit related defaults, but 
any such losses may be 
greater 

Invest in a wider range of 
counterparties and/or for 
longer times 

Interest income will be 
higher 

Increased risk of losses from 
credit related defaults, but 
any such losses may be 
smaller 

Borrow additional sums 
at long-term fixed interest 
rates 

Debt interest costs will 
rise; this is unlikely to be 
offset by higher 
investment income 

Higher investment balance 
leading to a higher impact in 
the event of a default; 
however long-term interest 
costs may be more certain 

Borrow short-term or 
variable loans instead of 
long-term fixed rates 

Debt interest costs will 
initially be lower 

Increases in debt interest 
costs will be broadly offset 
by rising investment income 
in the medium term, but 
long-term costs may be less 
certain  

Reduce level of 
borrowing  

Saving on debt interest 
is likely to exceed lost 
investment income 

Reduced investment 
balance leading to a lower 
impact in the event of a 
default; however long-term 
interest costs may be less 
certain 

 

Page 59



 

Appendix A 

Economic Context 

Economic background: The impact on the UK from coronavirus, together with its exit 

from the European Union and future trading arrangements with the bloc, will remain a 

major influence on the Council’s treasury management strategy for 2021/22. 

The Bank of England (BoE) maintained Bank Rate at 0.10% in November 2020 and 

also extended its Quantitative Easing programme by £150 billion to £895 billion. The 

Monetary Policy Committee voted unanimously for both, but no mention was made of 

the potential future use of negative interest rates. Within the latest forecasts, the Bank 

expects the UK economy to shrink -2% in Q4 2020 before growing by 7.25% in 2021, 

lower than the previous forecast of 9%. The BoE also forecasts the economy will now 

take until Q1 2022 to reach its pre-pandemic level rather than the end of 2021 as 

previously forecast. 

 

UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) for September 2020 registered 0.5% year on year, 

up from 0.2% in the previous month. Core inflation, which excludes the more volatile 

components, rose to 1.3% from 0.9%. The most recent labour market data for the three 

months to August 2020 showed the unemployment rate rose to 4.5% while the 

employment rate fell to 75.6%. Both measures are expected to deteriorate further due 

to the ongoing impact of coronavirus on the jobs market, particularly when the various 

government job retention schemes start to be unwound in 2021, with the BoE 

forecasting unemployment will peak at 7.75% in Q2 2021. In August, the headline 3-

month average annual growth rate for wages were 0% for total pay and 0.8% for regular 

pay. In real terms, after adjusting for inflation, total pay growth fell by -0.8% while 

regular pay was up 0.1%. 

 

GDP growth fell by -19.8% in the second quarter of 2020, a much sharper contraction 

from -2.0% in the previous three months, with the annual rate falling -21.5% from -1.6%. 

All sectors fell quarter-on-quarter, with dramatic declines in construction (-35.7%), 

services (-19.2%) and production (-16.3%), and a more modest fall in agriculture (-

5.9%). Monthly GDP estimates have shown the economy is recovering but remains well 

below its pre-pandemic peak. Looking ahead, the BoE’s November Monetary Policy 

Report forecasts economic growth will rise in 2021 with GDP reaching 11% in Q4 2021, 

3.1% in Q4 2022 and 1.6% in Q4 2023. 

 

GDP growth in the euro zone rebounded by 12.7% in Q3 2020 after contracting by -

3.7% and -11.8% in the first and second quarters, respectively. Headline inflation, 

however, remains extremely weak, registering -0.3% year-on-year in October, the third 

successive month of deflation. Core inflation registered 0.2% y/y, well below the 

European Central Bank’s (ECB) target of ‘below, but close to 2%’.  The ECB is 

expected to continue holding its main interest rate of 0% and deposit facility rate of -

0.5% for some time with further monetary stimulus expected later in 2020. 

 

Page 60



 

The US economy contracted at an annualised rate of 31.7% in Q2 2020 and then 

rebounded by 33.1% in Q3. The Federal Reserve maintained the Fed Funds rate at 

between 0% and 0.25% and announced a change to its inflation targeting regime to a 

more flexible form of average targeting. The Fed also provided strong indications that 

interest rates are unlikely to change from current levels over the next three years. 

 

Former vice-president Joe Biden won the 2020 US presidential election. Mr Biden is 

making tackling coronavirus his immediate priority and will also be reversing several 

executive orders signed by his predecessor and take the US back into the Paris climate 

accord and the World Health Organization. 

 

Credit outlook: After spiking in late March as coronavirus became a global pandemic, 

credit default swap (CDS) prices for the larger UK banks have steadily fallen back to 

almost pre-pandemic levels. Although uncertainly around COVID-19 related loan 

defaults lead to banks provisioning billions for potential losses in the first half of 2020, 

drastically reducing profits, reported impairments for Q3 were much reduced in some 

institutions. However, general bank profitability in 2020 is likely to be significantly lower 

than in previous years. 

 

The credit ratings for many UK institutions were downgraded on the back of 

downgrades to the sovereign rating. Credit conditions more generally though in banks 

and building societies have tended to be relatively benign, despite the impact of the 

pandemic. 

 

Looking forward, the potential for bank losses to be greater than expected when 

government and central bank support starts to be removed remains a risk, as does the 

UK not achieving a Brexit deal, suggesting a cautious approach to bank deposits in 

2021/22 remains advisable. 

 

Interest rate forecast: The Council’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose is 

forecasting that BoE Bank Rate will remain at 0.1% until at least the end of 2023. The 

risks to this forecast are judged to be to the downside as the BoE and UK government 

continue to react to the coronavirus pandemic and the Brexit transition period ends. The 

BoE extended its asset purchase programme to £895 billion in November while keeping 

Bank Rate on hold. However, further interest rate cuts to zero, or possibly negative, 

cannot yet be ruled out but this is not part of the Arlingclose central forecast. 

 

Gilt yields are expected to remain very low in the medium-term while short-term yields 

are likely to remain below or at zero until such time as the BoE expressly rules out the 

chance of negative interest rates or growth/inflation prospects improve. The central 

case is for 10-year and 20-year to rise to around 0.5% and 0.75% respectively over the 

time horizon. The risks around the gilt yield forecasts are judged to be broadly balanced 

between upside and downside risks, but there will almost certainly be short-term 

volatility due to economic and political uncertainty and events. 

 

Page 61



 

A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is attached 

at Appendix B. 

  

Page 62



 

Appendix B 

Arlingclose Economic and Interest Rate Forecast December 2020  

Underlying assumptions:  

 The medium-term global economic outlook has improved with the distribution of 

vaccines, but the recent upsurge in coronavirus cases has worsened economic 

prospects over the short term. 

 Restrictive measures and further lockdowns are likely to continue in the UK and 

Europe until the majority of the population is vaccinated by the second half of 

2021. The recovery period will be strong thereafter, but potentially longer than 

previously envisaged. 

 Signs of a slowing UK economic recovery were already evident in UK monthly 

GDP and PMI data, even before the second lockdown and Tier 4 restrictions. 

Employment is falling despite an extension to support packages. 

 The need to support economic recoveries and use up spare capacity will result in 

central banks maintaining low interest rates for the medium term. 

 Brexit, whatever the outcome of current negotiations, will weigh on UK activity. 

The combined effect of Brexit and the after-effects of the pandemic will dampen 

growth relative to peers, maintain spare capacity and limit domestically 

generated inflation. The Bank of England will therefore maintain loose monetary 

conditions for the foreseeable future. 

 Longer-term yields will also remain depressed, anchored by low central bank 

policy rates, expectations for potentially even lower rates and insipid longer-term 

inflation expectations. There is a chance yields may follow a slightly different 

path in the medium term, depending on investor perceptions of growth and 

inflation, the deployment of vaccines or if the UK leaves the EU without a deal 

Forecast:  

 Arlingclose expects Bank Rate to remain at the current 0.10% level. 

 Our central case for Bank Rate is no change, but further cuts to zero, or perhaps 

even into negative territory, cannot be completely ruled out, especially with likely 

emergency action in response to a no-deal Brexit. 

 Gilt yields will remain low in the medium term. Shorter term gilt yields are 

currently negative and will remain around zero or below until either the Bank 

expressly rules out negative Bank Rate or growth/inflation prospects improve. 

Page 63



 

 Downside risks remain, and indeed appear heightened, in the near term, as the 

government reacts to the escalation in infection rates and the Brexit transition 

period comes to an end. 

 We expect gilt yields to remain at relatively low levels for the foreseeable future 

and judge the risks to be broadly balanced. 

Risk 

1. The table below sets out and assumes: 

PWLB Certainty Rate (maturity loans) = Gilt yield + 0.80% 

PWLB HRA Rate = Gilt yield + 0.80% 

PWLB Infrastructure Rate (maturity loans = Gilt yield + 0.60% 

 

  

Page 64



 

P
age 65



 

Appendix C 

Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position 

Treasury Management: Borrowing Summary 

Type of Loan 1st April 

2020 

New 

Borrowing 

Repaid 

Borrowing 

31st December 

2020 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

PWLB 897,347 0 (13,810) 883,537 

LA Short-Term 68,000 0 (68,000) 0 

LA Long-Term 8,000 0 (8,000) 0 

European Investment Bank 8,596 0 (332) 8,264 

LEEF 3,361 0 (486) 2,875 

MEEF 0 5,000 0 5,000 

HNIP 0 9,761 0 9,761 

SALIX 1,623 1,271 0 2,894 

GLA 2,065 0 0 2,065 

Total* 988,992 16,032 (90,629) 914,396 

 

Investments 

Treasury Management: Investment Summary 

Type of Loan 1st April 

2020 

30th June 

2020 

30th Sept. 

2020 

31st Dec 

  2020 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Money Market Funds (MMFs) 70,500 60,000 62,500 43,000 

On-call accounts 24,850 26,355 10,210 7,350 

 95,350 86,355 72,710 50,390 

 

 

  

Page 66



 

Detailed Breakdown of Interest and MRP Impact on Budgets 

This table breaks down the interest charges as to how they are funded.  It also shows 
the impact on the General Fund, and how the underspends and overspends are 
managed through an earmarked capital financing reserve. Commissioning costs are 
fees payable to the lender upon raising new debt finance. 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

Interest £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s 

PWLB- 
Maturity 

17,661 17,661 17,509 17,509 17,509 17,509 17,509 17,509 17,176 17,059 17,059 

PWLB- EIP 2,730 2,542 2,354 2,183 2,029 1,875 1,721 1,567 1,413 1,259 1,105 

PWLB- 
Annuity 

3,931 3,744 3,553 3,359 3,160 2,958 2,752 2,542 2,328 2,110 1,888 

LA- Short-
Term 

573 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

LA Long-
Term 

148 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

EIB 197 189 181 173 165 156 148 139 130 120 111 

LEEF 53 42 31 19 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 

MEEF 36 149 180 180 181 172 161 150 139 99 0 

HNIP 8 19 18 18 17 17 16 15 14 14 13 

Salix 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GLA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Future 
Borrowing  

3,372 9,255 15,440 20,246 23,217 26,161 29,788 31,694 32,867 34,396 36,414 

PWLB 
Commission 

54 93 73 56 18 54 33 19 17 25 30 

Temporary 
Loans 
Commission 

25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 

Total Gross 
Interest & 
Fees 

28,787 33,718 39,364 43,767 46,330 48,927 52,153 53,661 54,109 55,107 56,645 

Recharges:            

Meridian 
Water 

(8,179) (8,068) (8,947) (9,485) (9,948) (10,395) (10,820) (10,726) (10,510) (10,683) (11,490) 

Companies (4,240) (4,898) (5,315) (5,566) (5,550) (5,495) (5,439) (5,213) (5,091) (5,023) (4,952) 

Snells & 
Joyce (GF) 

0 (17) (89) (223) (389) (573) (765) (1,348) (2,108) (3,029) (4,174) 

HRA (9,583) (11,829) (13,393) (15,807) (17,236) (18,786) (21,087) (21,914) (21,957) (22,043) (22,199) 

Meridian 
Water 
Commission 

(23) (20) (2) (1) (2) (1) 0 0 0 (3) (13) 

Companies 
Commission 

(6) (19) (4) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Snells & 
Joyce (GF) 
Commission 

0 (0) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (10) (5) (13) (10) 

HRA 
Commission 

(16) (15) (35) (35) (2) (36) (19) 0 0 0 0 

Interest 
Charged to 
General 
Fund 

6,741 8,851 11,577 12,647 13,201 13,637 14,021 14,449 14,438 14,312 13,806 

MRP 11,566 17,637 20,203 21,335 18,600 20,281 18,812 19,220 17,868 20,423 21,323 

Total 
Financing 
Cost 
Charged to 
GF 

18,306 26,488 31,780 33,982 31,801 33,918 32,834 33,669 32,305 34,735 35,129 

Page 67



 

 

 

 

  

                        

Budget 19,856 21,565 24,085 27,728 31,528 31,528 33,528 35,528 37,528 38,528 39,528 

Variance (1,550) 4,922 7,695 6,254 273 2,390 (694) (1,859) (5,223) (3,793) (4,399) 

                        

Reserves 21,550 16,627 8,933 2,679 2,406 16 710 2,569 7,791 12,584 18,984 

Page 68



 

Prudential Indicators                                                                                 Appendix D 

Prudential Indicators 

This report covers the requirements of the 2017 CIPFA Prudential Code to set 
prudential indicators.  This item should be approved by the full Council before the start 
of the new financial year which is a legislative requirement.  The Local Government Act 
2003 requires the Council to have regard to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the 
Prudential Code) when determining how much money it can afford to borrow. 

The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that the 
capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, 
and that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good 
professional practice. To demonstrate that the Council has fulfilled these objectives, the 
Prudential Code sets out the following indicators that must be set and monitored each 
year.   

Prudential Indicator: Capital Expenditure 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management 
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential 
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital 
expenditure plans.  In considering the affordability of its capital plans, the Council is 
required to consider all of the resources currently available to it/estimated for the future, 
together with the totality of its capital plans, revenue income and revenue expenditure 
forecasts for the forthcoming year and the following two years.  

  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24  2024/25  2025/26  
2026/27-
2030/31 

Total 10 
Yr Capital 
Program
me 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Meridian Water 68.3 218.8 63.5 26.7 25.8 28.9 127.0 490.8 

Companies 23.2 55.0 11.9 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 68.3 

Snells & Joyce 
(GF) 

0.0 1.4 4.4 4.5 5.0 5.5 114.3 135.1 

Other General 
Fund 

60.0 140.2 75.4 47.1 35.7 41.1 116.4 455.9 

HRA 75.2 200.0 206.6 178.2 104.4 191.7 243.5 1,124.4 

Total 226.6 615.3 361.8 258.0 171.0 267.3 601.2 2,274.5 

Financed by:                 

External Grants 
& Contributions 

(33.8) (174.4) (64.8) (63.9) (31.7) (21.6) (77.4) (433.8) 

S106 & CIL (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Revenue 
Contributions 

0.0 (0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (0.3) 

Capital 
Receipts 

(3.1) (17.9) (9.7) 0.0 (73.7) (73.2) (132.8) (307.3) 

Earmarked 
Reserves 

(6.1) (55.4) (2.6) 0.0 (0.7) 0.0 0.0 (58.8) 

Major Repairs 
Allowance 
(MRA) 

(17.9) (67.2) (44.4) (35.5) (14.5) (14.5) (56.7) (232.9) 

Page 69



 

Impact on 
Borrowing 

165.8 300.0 240.4 158.6 50.3 158.0 334.3 1,241.5 

Prudential Indicator: Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  
The CFR is simply the total historical outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet 
been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.  It is essentially a measure of 
the Council’s underlying borrowing need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not 
immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.  CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the Council’s total debt should be lower 
than its highest forecast CFR over the next four years.  The tables and graph below 
show that the Council expects to comply with this recommendation during 2020/21. 

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 

In order to ensure that over the medium-term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the 
Council should ensure that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of 
the capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any 
additional capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial years.  
This is a key indicator of prudence. 

 
Prudential Indicator: Operational Boundary 

The operational boundary is based on the Council’s estimate of most likely, i.e. prudent, 
but not worst-case scenario for external debt. It links directly to the Council’s estimates 
of capital expenditure, the capital financing requirement and cash flow requirements, 
and is a key management tool for in-year monitoring.  Other long-term liabilities 
comprise finance leases, Private Finance Initiative and other liabilities that are not 
borrowing but form part of the Council’s debt. 

Estimated Debt 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

1,236 1,466 1,627 1,740 1,749 1,860 1,913 1,911 1,914 1,942 1,985 

PFI and Finance 
Leases 

41 40 38 36 34 33 31 29 27 25 23 

Total Capital Debt 
Requirement 

1,278 1,505 1,665 1,776 1,784 1,893 1,944 1,940 1,941 1,967 2,008 

External Borrowing 1,063 1,343 1,507 1,622 1,632 1,742 1,795 1,793 1,795 1,824 1,867 

Other Long-Term 
Liabilities 

41 40 38 36 34 33 31 29 27 25 23 

Total Debt 1,104 1,383 1,545 1,658 1,666 1,775 1,826 1,822 1,822 1,849 1,890 

Operating 

Boundary 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Borrowing 1,063 1,343 1,507 1,622 1,632 1,742 1,795 1,793 1,795 1,824 1,867 

Other Long 

Term 

Liabilities 41 40 38 36 34 33 31 29 27 25 23 

Page 70



 

 

Prudential Indicator: Authorised Limit 

A further key prudential indicator represents a control on the maximum level of 
borrowing.  This represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this 
limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt 
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in 
the longer term. 

Authorised 

Limit 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Borrowing                       

1,329  

           

1,679  

           

1,883  

           

2,028  

           

2,040  

           

2,178  

           

2,244  

           

2,242  

           

2,244  

           

2,280  

           

2,333  

Other Long-

Term 

Liabilities 

                            

41  

                 

40  

                 

38  

                 

36  

                 

34  

                 

33  

                 

31  

                 

29  

                 

27  

                 

25  

                 

23  

Total 

Operating 

Limit 

                      

1,370  

           

1,718  

           

1,921  

           

2,064  

           

2,074  

           

2,210  

           

2,275  

           

2,271  

           

2,271  

           

2,305  

           

2,356  

 

Prudential Indicator – Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream and the 
gross revenue budget for the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account, 
respectively.  It also exemplifies the element of housing rental that relates to financing 
costs, this calculation is notional and assumes all other things are equal. 

Estimated Ration of 

Financing Costs to: 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 

 % % % % % % % % % % % 

General Fund Net 

Revenue Stream 2.85% 3.68% 4.72% 5.07% 5.19% 5.27% 5.32% 5.38% 5.28% 5.13% 4.95% 

Housing Revenue 

Account Gross 

Revenue Budget 14.96% 18.27% 19.24% 21.16% 22.43% 22.33% 23.90% 24.30% 23.94% 23.64% 23.81% 

 

 

  

Total 

Operating 

Limit 1,104 1,383 1,545 1,658 1,666 1,775 1,826 1,822 1,822 1,849 1,890 

Page 71



 

Appendix E 

Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement (With effect from 1 April 2021) 

1) When the Council finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources 
to repay that debt in later years. The amount charged to the revenue budget for the 
repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although there 
has been no statutory minimum since 2008. The Local Government Act 2003 
requires the Council to have regard to the Ministry for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (the MHCLG 
Guidance). 

2) The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that debt is repaid over a 
period that is either reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital 
expenditure provides benefits, or, in the case of borrowing supported by 
Government Revenue Support Grant, reasonably commensurate with the period 
implicit in the determination of that grant. 

3) The MHCLG Guidance requires the Council to approve an Annual MRP Statement 
each year and recommends a number of options for calculating a prudent amount of 
MRP. The following statement incorporates options recommended in the Guidance 
as well as locally determined prudent methods. Council is asked to approve the 
continuation of the existing policy for the calculation of MRP, which is consistent with 
the guidance issued under the regulations and the introduction of the following: 

a) the principle that the determination of a prudent amount of MRP for any given 
year will take account of payments made in previous years, and an assessment 
of whether those payments exceed what the current policy would require in 
terms of prudence;   

b) For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008, and for capital expenditure 
incurred from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2011, and which is Supported Capital 
Expenditure (SCE), MRP will be calculated at 2% on a straight-line basis. 

4) The approaches are therefore as follows, with effect from 1 April 2021.  

a) For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008, and for capital expenditure 
incurred from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2011, and which is Supported Capital 
Expenditure (SCE), MRP will be calculated at 2% on a straight-line basis; 

b) For unsupported borrowing incurred from 1 April 2008 onwards, MRP is 
calculated based on amortising the amount borrowed over the estimated lives of 
the assets acquired (or the enhancement made) as a result of the related 
expenditure using the annuity repayment method in accordance with MHCLG 
Statutory guidance. 

c) For borrowing by companies for housing assets for onward rental, due regards 
has been given to the MHCLG guidance but due to the nature of the assets, a 
75-year asset life is considered appropriate. 

d) While no MRP is required to be charged in respect of assets held within the 
Housing Revenue Account, the Council may provide for a voluntary MRP charge 
so that all schemes undertaken are viable (i.e. repay all their debt over an 
appropriate period) and so that the HRA maintains borrowing capacity for future 
years. 

Page 72



 

e) Capital expenditure financed from borrowing incurred during one financial year 
will not be subject to an MRP charge until the asset moves into operation, except 
where the Section 151 officer deems it appropriate to charge it an earlier date. 

f) Assets acquired with the intention of onward sale which will not be used in the 
delivery of services will not generally attract MRP as in these events the capital 
receipts generated by the loan and sale will be set aside to repay debt. Loans 
made to third parties to enable them to incur capital expenditure are repaid by 
the borrower and so MRP provision does not need to be made by the Council 
from Council Tax. In the case of loans for investment assets, a prudent amount 
will be set aside for MRP in accordance with Government Guidance based on 
asset life. 

g) From 1 April 2021 onwards, asset lives for MRP charges will be charged on the 
following basis, except for schemes in which the asset is already in operation: 

i) ICT equipment – 5 years 

ii) Vehicles – 10 years 

iii) Highways & Transport Assets – 25 years 

iv) Parks & Landscape – 25 years 

v) Investment Assets – 40 years unless a business can be made that there is 
a residual value that means a longer asset life is possible 

vi) School buildings and community assets – 40 years unless a business case 
for a specific asset justifies a different lifespan 

vii) Housing Assets – 75 years 

viii) Leased Assets on the basis of the lease asset unless the above categories 
have a smaller asset life 

ix) All capital expenditure schemes less than £50k will be charged immediately 
to revenue 

h) MRP in respect of PFI liabilities will be calculated by spreading the cost of the 
capital repayments included in the ongoing charges over the estimated life of the 
asset on an annuity basis. 

i) Unless a specific justification for another MRP rate is given, the Council’s hurdle 
rate for investment of 3.5% shall be used. 

  

Page 73



 

Date of implementation and estimated MRP 

5 This policy will take effect from 2021/22. Government Guidance requires that an 
annual statement on the Council’s policy for its MRP should be submitted to 
Council for approval before the start of the financial year to which the provision will 
relate but that changes during the year are permitted if approved by full Council. 
Based on the Council’s latest estimate of its Capital Financing Requirement on 
31st March 2021, the MRP for 2021/22 is estimated as follows: 

  Est. CFR 
31 Mar 2021 

£m 

Est. MRP 
2021/22 

£m 

General Fund   

Capital expenditure before 1 April 2008 and Supported 
capital expenditure from 1 April 2008 to 31 Mar 2011 141.66 3.63 

Unsupported capital expenditure after 31 Mar 2008 331.34 10.48 

Unsupported capital expenditure after 31 Mar 2008- 
Meridian Water 342.14 0.30 

Loans to Council owned companies (met by 
repayments from the companies) 149.85 0.00 

Total General Fund  964.99 14.41 

HRA 271.41 0.00 

Overprovision set aside in MRP Reserve 0 (2.85) 

Total Excluding PFI 1,236.40 11.57 

PFI 41.30 1.67 

Total / Charge to General Fund 1,277.71 13.24 

Page 74



 

Counterparties                                                                                              Appendix F 

Approved Investment Counterparties and Limits  

General Counterparty List Credit Rating Cash Limit Max Time Limit 

Banks Unsecured AAA £25m 5 years 

AA+ 5 years 

AA 4 years 

AA- 3 years 

A+ 2 years 

A £15m 12 months 

A- 6 months 

Banks Secured AAA £25m 20 years 

AA+ £25m 10 years 

AA 5 years 

AA- 4 years 

A+ 3 years 

A 2 years 

A- 13 months 

UK Government AA+ Unlimited 50 years 

Corporates AA+ £5m 10 years 

AA 5 years 

AA- 4 years 

Registered Providers AA+ £5m 10 years 

AA 10 years 

AA- 10 years 

Money Market Funds* AAA £25m Next Day 

 

* As from 21 July 2018, there will be three structural options for existing MMFs, these 

are as follows: 

1. Public Debt Constant Net Asset Value (“CNAV”) MMFs (mainly government assets) 
2. Low Volatility NAV (“LVNAV”) MMFs (market fund doesn’t deviate by more than 
20bps) 
3. Variable NAV (“VNAV”) MMFs (more fluctuating assets)  
 
A group of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for 

limit purposes.  Limits will also be placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ 

nominee accounts, foreign countries and industry sectors as below 

 
  

Page 75



 

The following table provides additional information on the counterparties 

mentioned above 

 

Table 7 

Councils’ 

Main Bank 

Account - 

HSBC 

The Council banks with HSBC and will continue to bank with HSBC with a 

revised contract.  At the current time, it does meet the minimum credit 

criteria of A- (or equivalent) long term.  If the credit rating falls below the 

Council’s minimum criteria A-, it will continue to be used for short term 

liquidity requirements (overnight and weekend investments) and business 

continuity arrangements.  If funds come into the bank account during the day 

(after daily dealing has been undertaken) and cannot be placed out with any 

other approved financial institutions, they can be placed into the HSBC Call 

Account to attract interest even if it breaches the counterparty limit (the 

matter will be reported to the Director of Finance, Resources & Customer 

Services).  The temporary breach will be addressed on the next banking 

business day. 

Banks 

Unsecured 

Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with 

banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks.  

These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should 

the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail.   

Banks 

Secured 

Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other collateralised 

arrangements with banks and building societies.  These investments are 

secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the unlikely 

event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-in.  Where 

there is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the 

investment is secured has a credit rating, the highest of the collateral credit 

rating and the counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and 

time limits.  The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one 

bank will not exceed the cash limit for secured investments. 

Government Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national governments, 

regional and local authorities and multilateral development banks.  These 

investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is an insignificant risk of 

insolvency.  Investments with the UK Central Government may be made in 

unlimited amounts for up to 50 years. 

Corporates Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other than banks 

and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but 

are exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent.  Loans to unrated 

companies will only be made as part of a diversified pool in order to spread 

the risk widely. 

Registered 

Providers 

Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the assets of 

Registered Providers of Social Housing, formerly known as Housing 

Associations.  These bodies are tightly regulated by the Homes and 

Communities Agency and, as providers of public services, they retain a high 

likelihood of receiving government support if needed 

Money 

Market 

Shares in diversified investment vehicles consisting of any of the above 

investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the 

Page 76



 

Funds advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with 

the services of a professional fund manager in return for a fee.  Money 

Market Funds that offer same-day liquidity and aim for a constant net asset 

value will be used as an alternative to instant access bank accounts, while 

pooled funds whose value changes with market prices and/or have a notice 

period will be used for longer investment periods. 

Bond, Equity 

and Property 

Funds 

These offer the potential for enhanced returns over the longer term but are 

more volatile in the short term.  These allow the Council to diversify into 

asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the 

underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date, 

but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and 

continued suitability in meeting the Council’s investment objectives will be 

monitored regularly. 

 
  

Page 77



 

Appendix G 
 

 

Annuity A method of repaying a loan where the cash payment 
remains constant over the life of the loan, but the proportion 
of interest reduces, and the proportion of principal repayment 
increases over time. Repayment mortgages and personal 
loans tend to be repaid by the annuity method. 

Asset backed security 
(ABS) 

A bond that pays to investors the return received on its 
collateral. 

Authorised limit The maximum amount of debt that a local Council may legally 
hold, set annually in advance by the Council itself. One of the 
Prudential Indicators.  

BACS Bankers’ automated payment system. UK bulk payments 
system allowing transfers between bank accounts with two 
days’ notice, for a small charge. 

Bail-in A bail-in is rescuing a financial institution on the brink of 
failure by making its creditors and depositors take a loss on 
their holdings rather than the government or taxpayers.  

Bail-out A bailout is a colloquial term for the provision of financial help 
to a corporation or country which otherwise would be on the 
brink of failure or bankruptcy. 

Bank Regulated firm that provides financial services to customers. 
But see also Bank of England.  

Bank of England 
 

The central bank of the UK, based in London, sometimes just 
called “the Bank”. See also Monetary Policy Committee and 
PRA.  

Bank Rate The official interest rate set by the Monetary Policy 
Committee, and the rate of interest paid by the Bank of 
England on commercial bank deposits. Colloquially termed 
the “base rate”. 

BCA Baseline credit assessment - a credit rating agency’s risk 
assessment of a bank’s intrinsic credit risk, before 
considering the impact of junior debt and external support.  

Bid A bid to buy a security at a certain price (the bid price), or a 
bid to borrow money at a certain interest rate (the bid rate). 
See also offer. 

Bill A certificate of short-term debt issued by a company, 
government, or other institution, which is tradable on financial 
markets  

Bond A certificate of long-term debt issued by a company, 
government, or other institution, which is tradable on financial 
markets. 

Bond fund A collective investment scheme that invests mainly in bonds. 

Bookrunner Investment bank that maintains the book of orders from 
potential investors for a new bond or share issue. 

Borrowing 
 

Usually refers to the stock of outstanding loans owed and 
bonds issued. 

Borrowing Portfolio A list of loans held by the Council. 

Borrowing Requirements The principal amount the Council requires to borrow to 
finance capital expenditure and loan redemptions. 

Broker Regulated firm that matches either borrowers and lenders (a 
money broker) or buyers and sellers of securities (a 
stockbroker) with each other in order to facilitate transactions.  

Brokerage Fee charged by a broker, normally paid by the borrower. 

Call account A deposit account that can be called back, normally on 

Page 78



 

instant access.  

Cap Derivative option that requires payment when a variable, such 
as an interest rate, rises above a certain level. Can be 
embedded in a floating rate loan or deposit to prevent the 
variable rate rising above a certain limit. See also collar and 
floor. 

Capital (1) Long-term, as in capital expenditure and capital receipt. 
(2) Principal, as in capital gain and capital value. 
(3) Investments in financial institutions that will absorb losses 
before senior unsecured creditors. 

Capital expenditure 
 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of 
fixed assets that are expected to provide value for longer than 
one year, such as property and equipment, plus expenditure 
defined as capital in legislation such as the purchase of 
certain investments. 

Capital finance Arranging and managing the cash required to finance capital 
expenditure, and the associated accounting. 

Capital finance regulations Legislation covering local authorities’ activities in capital 
finance, treasury management and accounting. Separate 
regulations are published for the four nations of the UK. 

Capitalisation direction or 
regulations 

Approval from central government to fund certain specified 
types of revenue expenditure from capital resources. 

Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) 

Capital Financing Requirement- a measure of the Council’s 
underlying need to borrow to fund capital expenditure.  

Capital gain or loss An increase or decrease in the capital value of an investment, 
for example through movements in its market price.  

Capital markets The markets for long-term finance, including bonds and 
shares. See also money markets.  

Capital receipt Cash obtained from the sale of an item whose purchase 
would be capital expenditure. The law only allows local 
authorities to spend capital receipts on certain items, such as 
new capital expenditure. They are therefore held in a capital 
receipts reserve until spent. 

Capital strategy An annual report required by the Prudential Code that sets 
out a local authorities’ high-level plans for capital expenditure, 
debt and investments and its Prudential Indicators for the 
forthcoming financial year.  

Cash plus fund A collective investment scheme similar to a money market 
fund but with a WAM up to around six months. 

Central bank A government agency responsible for setting interest rates, 
regulating banks and maintaining financial stability.  

CET1 Core equity tier 1 - the purest form of capital for a financial 
institution, which is available to absorb losses while it remains 
a going concern, usually expressed as a ratio to risk weighted 
assets.  

Certainty rate Discount on PWLB rates for new loans borrowed, available to 
all local authorities that provide a forecast for their borrowing 
requirements. 

Certificates of Deposits A certificate of deposit (CD) is a time deposit, a financial 
product. CDs are similar to savings accounts in that they are 
insured and thus virtually risk free; they are "money in the 
bank." They are different from savings accounts in that the 
CD has a specific, fixed term (often monthly, three months, 
six months, or one to five years) and, usually, a fixed interest 

Page 79



 

rate. It is intended that the CD be held until maturity, at which 
time the money may be withdrawn together with the accrued 
interest. 

CHAPS Clearing House Automated Payment System. UK payments 
system for same-day transfer between bank accounts, 
commonly used for treasury management payments.  

CIPFA 
The Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and 
Accountancy 

The professional body for accountants working in the public 
sector. CIPFA also sets various standards for local 
government – see Treasury Management Code and 
Prudential Code. 

Constant net asset value 
(CNAV) 

A money market fund where the net asset value is held at a 
constant £1 per share providing the value of the underlying 
investments is between 99.5p and 100.5p per share. Since 
2019, this style of fund is restricted to those that only invest in 
government securities.  

Collar A combination of a cap and floor, so that the variable moves 
within a certain range only. Where the premium payable on 
the cap is equal to the premium receivable on the floor, it is 
known as a zero-cost collar. 

Collateral Assets that provide security for a loan or bond, for example 
the house upon which a mortgage is secured.  

Collective investment 
scheme 

Scheme in which multiple investors collectively hold units or 
shares. The investment assets in the fund are not held 
directly by each investor, but as part of a pool (hence these 
funds are also referred to as ‘pooled funds’). 

Commercial investment An investment whose main purpose is generating income, 
such as investment property.  

Commercial property Land and buildings used by businesses, as opposed to 
households. 

Commercial paper Commercial paper is a money-market security issued (sold) 
by large corporations to obtain funds to meet short-term debt 
obligations (for example, payroll), and is backed only by an 
issuing bank or corporation's promise to pay the face amount 
on the maturity date specified on the note. Since it is not 
backed by collateral, only firms with excellent credit ratings 
from a recognized credit rating agency will be able to sell their 
commercial paper at a reasonable price. Commercial paper is 
usually sold at a discount from face value, and carries higher 
interest repayment rates than bonds 

Cost of carry When a loan is borrowed in advance of need, the difference 
between the interest payable on the loan and the income 
earned from investing the cash in the interim. 

Counterparties Organisations or Institutions the Council lends money to e.g. 
Banks; Local Authorities and MMF.  

Counterparty limit The maximum amount an investor is willing to lend to a 
counterparty, in order to manage credit risk. 

Corporate bonds A corporate bond is a bond issued by a corporation. It is a 
bond that a corporation issues to raise money effectively in 
order to expand its business. The term is usually applied to 
longer-term debt instruments, generally with a maturity date 
falling at least a year after their issue date. 

Country limit The maximum amount an investor is willing to lend to all 
counterparties based in a foreign country, in order to manage 
credit risk.  

Page 80



 

Coupon The contractual interest rate payable on a bond, as a 
percentage of the nominal amount. This normally reflects 
market conditions when the bond was originally issued. 

Covenant 
 

A clause in a loan contract where the borrower makes certain 
commitments, for example to maintain a particular financial 
ratio or to publish regular financial statements. Breach of a 
covenant is usually classed as a default. 

Covered bonds Bond issued by a financial institution that is secured on that 
institution’s assets, usually residential mortgages, and is 
therefore lower risk than unsecured bonds. Covered bonds 
are exempt from bail-in. 

Consumer Prices Index & 
Retail Prices Index (CPI & 
RPI)  
 

The main inflation rate used in the UK is the CPI. The 
Chancellor of the Exchequer bases the UK inflation target on 
the CPI. The CPI inflation target is set at 2%. The CPI differs 
from the RPI in that CPI excludes housing costs. Also used is 
RPIX, which is a variation of RPI, one that removes mortgage 
interest payments. 

Credit Default Swap (CDS)  A kind of protection that can be purchased by MMF 
companies from insurance companies (for their investment) in 
exchange for a payoff if the organisation they have invested 
in does not repay the loan i.e. they default.  

Credit watch  Variety of special programmes offered by credit rating 
agencies and financial institutions to monitor 
organisation/individual's (e.g. bank) credit report for any credit 
related changes. A credit watch allows the 
organisation/individuals to act on any red flags before they 
can have a detrimental effect on credit score/history. 

Credit Arrangements Methods of Financing such as finance leasing 

Credit Ratings A scoring system issued by credit rating agencies such as 
Fitch, Moody's and Standard & Poors that indicate the 
financial strength and other factors of a bank or similar 
Institution. 

Creditworthiness How highly rated an institution is according to its credit rating. 

Custodian Regulated firm that provides custody.  

Custody The safekeeping of securities that are dematerialised, i.e. no 
longer held in paper form, including the vast majority of bonds 
and shares traded on financial markets.  

Debt (1) A contract where one party owes money to another party, 
such as a loan, deposit or bond. Contrast with equity. 
(2) In the Prudential Code, the total outstanding borrowing 
plus other long-term liabilities. 

Debt Management Office 
(DMO)  

The DMO is an agency of the HM Treasury which is 
responsible for carrying out the Government’s Debt 
Management Policy. 

Debt Rescheduling The refinancing of loans at different terms and rates to the 
original loan. 

Depreciation Method The spread of the cost of an asset over its useful life. 

Default Failure to meet an obligation under a debt contract, including 
the repayment of cash or compliance with a covenant, usually 
as a result of being in financial difficulty (rather than an 
administrative oversight). 

Deflation 
 

Negative inflation, which central banks are keen to avoid 
since households tend to delay spending waiting for prices to 
fall further, leading to further deflation. 

Page 81



 

Deposit 
 

A regulated placing of cash with a financial institution. 
Deposits are not tradable on financial markets. 

Depositary 
 

Regulated firm that performs safeguarding, record keeping 
and ownership verification of a collective investment 
scheme’s assets, including those which are not held in 
custody. 

Derivative 
 

Financial instrument whose value is derived from an 
underlying instrument or index, such as a swap, option or 
future. Derivatives can be used to gain exposure to, or to help 
protect against, changes in the value of the underlying. See 
also embedded derivative and hedge. 

Discount 
 

 (1) The amount that the early repayment cost of a loan is 
below its principal, or the price of a bond is below its nominal 
value. See also premium. 
(2) To calculate the present value of an investment taking 
account of the time value of money. 

Discount rate 
 

The interest rate used in a present value calculation. 
Diversification 
The spreading of risk across a variety of exposures in order 
to reduce the risk. For example, investing in a range of 
counterparties to limit credit risk or borrowing to a range of 
maturity dates to limit refinancing risk. 

Diversified income fund 
 
 

A collective investment scheme that invests in a range of 
bonds, equity and property in order to minimise price risk, and 
also focuses on investments that pay income 

Dividend 
 

Income paid to investors in shares and collective investment 
schemes. Dividends are not contractual, and the amount is 
therefore not known in advance. 

DMADF Debt Management Account Deposit Facility – a facility offered 
by the DMO enabling local authorities to deposit cash at very 
low credit risk. Not available in Northern Ireland. 

DMO 
 

Debt Management Office – an executive agency of HM 
Treasury that deals with central government’s debt and 
investments. 

Dove 
 

Monetary policy maker with a preference for lower interest 
rates. See also hawk. 

Duration 
 

In relation to a bond or bond fund, the weighted average time 
of the future cash flows from today, usually expressed in 
years. The longer the duration, the more the price moves for 
a given change in interest rates. 

ECB European Central Bank – the central bank of the Eurozone, 
based in Frankfurt, Germany.  

EIB 
 

European Investment Bank – a supranational bank owned by 
the member states of the European Union that mainly lends 
within the Union. 

EIP 
 

Equal instalments of principal. A method of repaying a loan 
where the principal is repaid over the life of the loan, in equal 
instalments. Interest payments reduce over time as the 
principal is repaid. 

EIR Effective interest rate - IFRS term for the average interest 
rate on a financial instrument, including the effect of 
premiums, discounts and fees. For a simple deposit or loan, 
the EIR is usually equal to the contractual interest rate; for a 
bond the EIR is usually equal to the yield. 

Page 82



 

Embedded derivative 
 

A derivative that is combined into another financial 
instrument, such as the options embedded in a LOBO. 

ESG Environmental, social and governance considerations. 

Equity (1) The residual value of an entity’s assets after deducting its 
liabilities. 
(2) An investment in the residual value of an entity, for 
example ordinary shares. 

Equity fund 
 

A collective investment scheme that mainly invests in 
company shares. 

Ex-dividend date 
 

The first date that a share or unit is traded without the right to 
receive the next dividend. The price therefore falls by the 
amount of the dividend. 

FATCA 
 

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act – a US regime 
applicable worldwide to limit tax evasion by US citizens. Local 
authorities are classed as exempt beneficial owners under 
FATCA. 

Fair value 
 

IFRS term for the price that would be obtained by selling an 
investment, or paid to transfer debt, in a market transaction. 

FCA 
 

Financial Conduct Council – UK agency responsible for 
regulating financial markets and the conduct of financial 
institutions, brokers, custodians, fund managers and treasury 
management advisors. 

Federal Reserve The central bank of the USA, often just called “the Fed”.  

Fiscal policy Measures taken by government to boost or slow the economy 
via taxation and spending decisions. Fiscal loosening or 
easing refers to cuts in taxes or increases in spending, while 
fiscal tightening refers to the opposite. See also monetary 
policy. 

Financial institution  A bank, building society or credit union. Sometimes the term 
also includes insurance companies. Financial instrument 
IFRS term for investments, borrowing and other cash payable 
and receivable. 

Financing costs 
 

In the Prudential Code, interest payable on debt less 
investment income plus premiums less discounts plus MRP. 

Floating rate note (FRN) 
 

A bond where the interest rate changes at set intervals linked 
to a market variable, most commonly 3-month LIBOR. 

Floor 
 

Derivative option that requires payment when a variable, such 
as an interest rate, falls below a certain level. Can be 
embedded in a floating rate loan or deposit to prevent the 
variable rate falling below a certain limit. See also cap and 
collar. 

Foreign exchange (FX) risk 
 

The risk that unexpected changes in foreign exchange rates 
cause a loss. Rarely an issue for local authorities since they 
are unable to borrow and tend not to invest in foreign 
currency. 

Forward deal 
 

An arrangement where a loan or deposit is arranged in 
advance of the cash being transferred, with the advance 
period being longer than the standard period (if any) for such 
a transaction. 

Financial Services 
Compensation Scheme 

UK deposit guarantee scheme that will compensate most 
depositors up to £85,000 in the event of a bank failure. 
However, most public sector organisations, financial 
institutions and collective investment schemes are excluded 
from receiving compensation. 

Page 83



 

FSMA 
 

Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, the main piece of 
UK legislation regulating financial services. 

FTSE 
 

Financial Times stock exchange – a series of indices on the 
London Stock Exchange. The FTSE 100 is the index of the 
largest 100 companies on the exchange, the FTSE 250 is the 
next largest 250 and the FTSE 350 combines the two. 

Future 
 

A derivative whose payments depend on the future value of a 
variable. 

Fund manager 
 

Regulated firm that manages collective investment schemes. 
Gate 
Restriction on the subscription or redemption of shares or 
units in a collective investment scheme. 

GDP 
 

Gross domestic product – the value of the national aggregate 
production of goods and services in the economy. Increasing 
GDP is known as economic growth. 

General Fund 
 

A local Council reserve that holds the accumulated surplus or 
deficit on revenue income and expenditure, except on council 
housing. See also Housing Revenue Account. 

Gilt Gilt-edged securities are bonds issued by certain national 
governments. The term is of British origin, and originally 
referred to the debt securities issued by the Bank of England, 
which had a gilt (or gilded) edge. Hence, they are known as 
gilt-edged securities, or gilts for short. Today the term is used 
in the United Kingdom as well as some Commonwealth 
nations, such as South Africa and India. However, when 
reference is made to "gilts", what is generally meant is "UK 
gilts," unless otherwise specified. 

Gilt yield 
 

Yield on gilts. Commonly used as a measure of risk-free long-
term interest rates in the UK 

Guarantee 
 

An arrangement where a third party agrees to pay the 
contractual payments on a loan to the lender if the borrower 
defaults. Haircut 
A reduction in the value of a bond or deposit as the result of a 
bail-in or other restructuring of the counterparty. 

Hawk 
 

Monetary policy maker with a preference for higher interest 
rates. See also dove. 

Hedge 
 

An arrangement where one instrument (typically a derivative) 
is used to offset the variability in another instrument. For 
example, an interest rate swap where interest is receivable at 
a variable rate can be an effective hedge for a variable rate 
loan. 

Hedge accounting 
 

Optional IFRS accounting arrangements to ensure that the 
accounting impact of a hedge matches the economic impact. 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards, the set of 
accounting rules in use by UK local authorities since 2010. 

Impairment 
 

A reduction in the value of an investment caused by the 
counterparty being in financial difficulty. 

Income return 
 

Return on investment from dividends, interest and rent but 
excluding capital gains and losses. See also total return. 

Income strip Long-term lease arrangement where the tenant pays index-
linked rent and has an option to buy back the property at the 
end of a lease for a nominal payment. Effectively a form of 
loan finance. 

Inflation risk The risk that unexpected changes in inflation rates cause an 

Page 84



 

 unplanned loss, for example by costs rising faster than 
income. 

Interest 
 

Compensation for the use of cash paid by borrowers to 
lenders on debt instruments. 

Interest Rate exposures A measure of the proportion of money invested and what 
impact movements in the financial markets would have on 
them. 

Interest rate risk The risk that unexpected changes in interest rates cause an 
unplanned loss, for example by increased payments on 
borrowing or lower income on investments. 

Interest rate swap 
 

A derivative where the parties swap a fixed and a variable 
interest rate on an agreed nominal sum for an agreed period 
of time. Widely used to manage interest rate risk. 

Internal borrowing 
 

A local government term for when actual “external” debt is 
below the capital financing requirement, indicating that 
difference has been borrowed from internal resources 
instead; in reality this is not a form of borrowing.  

Inverted yield curve Yield curve where yields decrease over time, suggesting that 
short-term interest rates will fall in future. A possible indicator 
of a recession. See also normal yield curve. 

Investment bank 
 

A bank that provides services including issuing new securities 
in the primary market and arranging company mergers and 
acquisitions. Investment banks may also undertake 
proprietary trading, i.e. investing the bank’s own money with a 
view to making a profit. 

Investment grade 
 

Entities and securities with a credit rating of BBB- and above, 
and therefore relatively unlikely to default. 

Investment guidance 
 

Statutory guidance issued by MHCLG and the devolved 
governments on local government investments. Local 
authorities are required by law to have regard to the relevant 
investment guidance. 

Investment property 
 

Land and buildings that are held purely for rental income 
and/or capital growth. Investment properties are not owner-
occupied and provide no direct service benefit. 

Investment strategy 
 

A document required by investment guidance that sets out a 
local Council’s investment plans and parameters for the 
coming year. Sometimes forms part of the Council’s treasury 
management strategy. 

The International Monetary 
Fund (IMF)  

is an intergovernmental organisation which states its aims as 
to foster global monetary cooperation, secure financial 
stability, facilitate international trade, promote high 
employment and sustainable economic growth, and reduce 
poverty around the world. 

Impaired investment  An investment that has had a reduction in value to reflect 
changes that could impact significantly on the benefits 
expected from it.  

Junior creditor Creditor that ranks below senior unsecured creditors but 
above equity investors in the event of a bank insolvency or 
bail-in, for example, subordinated bonds. 

Lease 
 

A contract where one party permits another to make use of 
an asset in return for a series of payments. It is economically 
similar to buying the asset and borrowing a loan, and 
therefore leases are often counted as a type of debt. 

Lessee Party to a lease contract that uses an asset owned by the 

Page 85



 

lessor. 

Lessor 
 

Party to a lease contract that own an asset but permits 
another (the lessee) to use it. 

Leverage ratio 
 

A measure of financial strength of a financial institution, 
calculated as tier 1 capital divided by total assets plus lending 
commitments. 

Liability benchmark 
 

Term in CIPFA’s Risk Management Toolkit which refers to the 
minimum amount of borrowing required to keep investments 
at a minimum liquidity level. Used to compare against the 
actual and forecast level of borrowing. 

LIBID  The London Interbank Bid Rate – it is the interest rate at 
which major banks in London are willing to borrow (bid for) 
funds from each other, traditionally 0.125% lower than 
LIBOR. 

LIBOR 
 

London interbank offer rate - the benchmark interest rate at 
which banks offer to lend cash to other banks. Published 
every London working day at 11am for various currencies and 
terms. Due to be phased out by 2022.  

Liquidity risk 
 

The risk that cash will not be available to meet financial 
obligations, for example when investments cannot be recalled 
and new loans cannot be borrowed. 

Loan Contract where the lender provides a sum of money (the 
principal) to a borrower, who agrees to repay it in the future 
together with interest. Loans are not normally tradable on 
financial markets. There are specific definitions in 
government investment guidance.  

Loan commitment An arrangement where a lender is committed to lend a loan if 
the borrower requests it. 

Loans CFR 
 

The capital financing requirement less the amount met by 
other long-term liabilities; i.e. the amount to be met by 
borrowing. 

LOBO 
 

Lender’s option borrower’s option – a long-term loan where 
the lender has the option to propose an increase in the 
interest rate on pre-determined dates. The borrower then has 
the option to either accept the new rate or repay the loan 
without penalty. LOBOs increase the borrower’s interest rate 
risk and the loan should therefore attract a lower rate of 
interest initially. 

Local indicators 
 

Prudential indicators or treasury management indicators that 
are not required by the relevant code of practice but have 
been designed locally to meet similar purposes. 

Local infrastructure rate 
 

Discount on PWLB rates for new loans borrowed, available to 
local authorities that have been successful in a bidding round. 

Long-term 
 

Usually means longer than one year. Long-term rating 
A credit rating, assessing of the risk of default over the long-
term. Where an agency publishes a range of long-term 
ratings, Arlingclose reports the rating most relevant to 
wholesale depositors. See also short-term rating. 

LVNAV 
 

Low volatility net asset value – the most common type of 
money market fund introduced in 2019 that can be bought 
and sold for £1 per share providing that the true net asset 
value is between 99.8p to 100.2p. 

Mark to market 
 

A process by which investments are revalued to market 
prices, usually with the entity accounting for the capital gain 

Page 86



 

or loss as income or expenditure. 

Market risk 
 

The risk that movements in market variables will have an 
unexpected impact. Usually split into interest rate risk, price 
risk and foreign exchange risk.  
 

Market Loans  Loans from banks available from the London Money Market 
including LOBOS (Lender Option, Borrowing Option) which 
enable the Council to take advantage of low fixed interest for 
a number of years before an agreed variable rate comes into 
force. 

Maturity (1) The date when an investment or borrowing is scheduled 
to be repaid. 
(2) A type of loan where the principal is only repaid on the 
maturity date. 

Maturity profile A table or graph showing the amount (or percentage) of debt 
or investments maturing over a time period. MHCLG 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP)  

This is the amount which must be set aside from the revenue 
budget each year to cover future repayment of loans.  

MiFID The second Markets in Financial Instruments Directive - a 
legislative framework instituted by the European Union to 
regulate financial markets in the bloc and improve protections 
for investors. 

Money Market Fund (MMF)  A ‘pool’ of different types of investments managed by a fund 
manager that invests in lightly liquid short term financial 
instruments with high credit rating. 

Monetary Policy Measures taken by central banks to boost or slow the 
economy, usually via changes in interest rates. Monetary 
easing refers to cuts in interest rates, making it cheaper for 
households and businesses to borrow and hence spend 
more, boosting the economy, while monetary tightening refers 
to the opposite. See also fiscal policy and quantitative easing. 

Monetary Policy Committee 
(MPC)  

Committee designated by the Bank of England; whose main 
role is to regulate interest rates. Responsible for 
implementing monetary policy in the UK by changing Bank 
Rate and quantitative easing with the aim of keeping CPI 
inflation at around 2%.  

Money markets The markets for short-term finance, including deposits and T-
bills.  

Money Markets Code Code of practice issued by the Bank of England for the 
operation of the London money market, which is mostly 
unregulated by MiFID II. 

Municipal bond Bond issued or guaranteed by local authorities.  

Municipal bonds agency 
(MBA) 

Company that issues bonds in the capital market and lends 
the proceeds back to local authorities. The bonds are 
guaranteed by the local authorities. 

NDA Non-disclosure agreement. Contract where two organisations 
agree not to disclose each other’s confidential information. 
Often required at the start of commercial loan negotiations.  

Negative Pledge Covenant where a borrower agrees to not to pledge certain 
assets as collateral for other loans. 

Net asset value (NAV) The current value of a fund’s assets, net of its liabilities, 
usually expressed as an amount per share or unit. 

Net borrowing Borrowing minus treasury investments. 

Net revenue stream In the Prudential Code, income from general government 

Page 87



 

grants, Council Tax and rates. 

Normal yield curve A yield curve where yields increase over time, which is the 
more common shape. See also inverted yield curve. 

Nominal The face value of a bond or share, often quite different from 
the market value. 

Note Another term for a bond. 

Notice account A deposit account where the cash can be called back after a 
given notice period. 

Non Specified Investments Government term for investments not meeting the definition 
of a specified investment or a loan upon which limits must be 
set. Since 2018, the term does not apply to treasury 
investments in England.  

Non treasury investment 
management practices 
(NTIMPs) 

Document required by the Treasury Management Code 
setting out a local Council’s detailed processes and 
procedures for commercial investments and service 
investments. 

OCF 
 
 

Ongoing charges figure – amounts charged to collective 
investment scheme that reduce the return for investors. 
Includes the AMC plus direct charges such as brokerage. 

OEIC Open-ended investment company, a type of collective 
investment scheme that is structured as a company, where 
investors buy shares in the company.  

Offer An offer to sell a security at a certain price (the offer price or 
ask price), or an offer to lend money at a certain interest rate 
(the offer rate). 

Other long term liabilities Prudential Code term for credit arrangements. 

Operational boundary A prudential indicator showing the most likely, prudent, 
estimated level of external debt, but not the worst-case 
scenario. Regular breaches of the operational boundary 
should prompt management action. 

Operational risk The risk that fraud, error or system failure leads to an 
unexpected loss. 

Option A derivative where the holder pays a premium to have the 
right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a security or enter 
into a defined transaction. 

PRA Prudential Regulation Council – the part of the Bank of 
England that regulates UK banks. 

Present value The value today of a series of future cash flows, calculated 
using a discount rate. 

Premium (1) The amount that the early repayment cost of a loan is 
above the principal (for example cost of early repayment of 
loan to PWLB to compensate for any losses that they may 
incur), or the price of a bond is above its nominal value.  
(2) The initial payment made under a derivative. 

Price risk The risk that unexpected changes in market prices lead to an 
unplanned loss. Managed by diversifying across a range of 
investments. 

Primary market A financial market where securities are initially issued, and 
investors buy from issuers or their agents. See also 
secondary market. 

Principal The amount of money originally lent on a debt instrument. 

Private finance initiative A government scheme where a private company designs, 
builds, finances and operates assets on behalf of the public 
sector, in exchange for a series of payments, typically over 30 

Page 88



 

years. Counts as a credit arrangement and debt. 

Private placement A loan or bond that is not traded on a financial market. 

Professional client MiFID II term for a client of a regulated firm that has a higher 
level of experience in financial markets than a retail client, 
and therefore needs a lower level of protection. Local 
authorities may “opt up” to be treated as professional clients if 
they meet certain requirements. 

Property fund A collective investment scheme that mainly invests in 
property. Due to the costs of buying and selling property, 
including stamp duty land tax, there is usually a significant fee 
charged on initial investment, or a significant difference 
between the bid and offer price. 

Prudential borrowing Another term for unsupported borrowing. Prudential Code 
Developed by CIPFA and introduced in April 2004 as a 
professional code of practice to support local Council capital 
investment planning within a clear, affordable, prudent and 
sustainable framework and in accordance with good 
professional practice. Local authorities are required by law to 
have regard to the Prudential Code. 

Prudential indicators Indicators required by the Prudential Code and determined by 
the local Council to define its capital expenditure and asset 
management framework. They are designed to support and 
record local decision making in a manner that is publicly 
accountable. 

PWLB Public Works Loans Board - a statutory body operating within 
the DMO that lends money from the National Loans Fund to 
local authorities and other prescribed bodies and collects the 
repayments. 

Quantitative easing (QE) Process by which central banks directly increase the quantity 
of money in the economy in order to promote GDP growth 
and prevent deflation. Normally achieved by the central bank 
buying government bonds in exchange for newly created 
money. Reversing QE by selling back bonds, or allowing 
them to mature without replacement, is sometimes called 
quantitative tightening. 

Rating watch A term used by credit rating agencies to indicate that a credit 
rating is under review, and that a change is likely within three 
months. The direction of potential change is usually indicated. 

Realised gain or loss Gain or loss that will not be reversed later, e.g. because the 
instrument has been sold. See also unrealised gain or loss.  

Revolving credit facility 
(RCF) 

It is a type of credit that does not have a fixed number of 
payments but comes with an established maximum amount, 
for a business and the business can access the funds at any 
time when needed. Typically used to provide liquidity for a 
company's day-to-day operations. 

Recession A period of economic slowdown. The technical definition is 
two consecutive quarters of negative GDP growth. 

Specified Investments Investments that meet the Council’s high credit quality criteria 
and repayable within 12 months. 

Security (1) A financial instrument that can be traded on a secondary 
market. 
(2) The concept of low credit risk. 
(3) Collateral. 

Secured investment An investment that is backed by collateral and is therefore 

Page 89



 

normally lower credit risk and lower yielding than an 
equivalent unsecured investment. 

Senior unsecured Creditors that are not secured, but rank above junior creditors 
and equity in the event of insolvency or bail-in.  

Service investments Investments made to promote a local Council’s public service 
objectives, for example a loan to a local charity or shares in a 
local company.  

Share An equity investment, which usually also confers ownership 
and voting rights.  

Share class 
 

A class of shares in a collective investment scheme with a set 
AMC and minimum investment size. 

Short bond fund 
 

A bond fund with a duration of less than one year. Short-term 
Usually means less than one year. 

Short-term rating 
 

A credit rating, reflecting the risk of default within the next 13 
months, usually linked directly to the long-term rating. 

Soft loan A loan made at below market interest rates. See also state 
aid.  

SONIA Sterling overnight interest average – a benchmark interest 
rate for overnight deposits. 

SORP Statement of Recommended Practice – an old term for the 
Code of Practice on Local Council Accounting in the United 
Kingdom.  

Specified investments 
 

Term used in government investment guidance for 
investments that are denominated in sterling, mature in less 
than a year, are not defined as capital expenditure, and are 
made with the UK government, another UK local Council or a 
high credit quality body, as defined by the local Council. 
Since 2018, the term does not apply to treasury investments 
in England. 

Speculative grade 
 

Investments with a credit rating of BB+ or below, and 
therefore more vulnerable to default than investment grade 
securities. 

Stamp duty land tax (SDLT) 
 

Tax levied on property transactions at between 0 and 15% of 
the purchase price. The rate on commercial property valued 
above £250,000 is 5%.  

State aid 
 

Financial assistance provided by the public sector to the 
private sector, such as grants and soft loans, which has the 
potential to distort competition and is therefore often, but not 
always, illegal.  

Strategic bond fund Bond fund with a duration of longer than one year.  

Strategic funds Collective investment schemes that are designed to be held 
for the long-term, comprising strategic bond funds, diversified 
income funds, equity funds and property funds. 

Subordinated bonds Bonds that rank below other bonds in the event of an 
insolvency or bail-in. They are therefore higher risk, but also 
higher yielding. 

Subscription The process of placing cash in a collective investment 
scheme and creating units or shares.  

Support rating A credit rating agency’s view on the likelihood and ability of 
parent companies or governments to provide external support 
to prevent a bank failure leading to losses for investors. 

Supported borrowing Borrowing for which the repayment costs are supported by 
government grant. 

Supranational bonds Supranational bonds are issued by institutions that represent 

Page 90



 

a number of countries, not just one. Thus, organisations that 
issue such bonds tend to be the World Bank or the European 
Investment Bank. The issuance of these bonds are for the 
purpose of promoting economic development 

Swap 
 

A derivative where the counterparties exchange cash flows, 
for example fixed rate interest and variable rate interest. See 
also interest rate swap.  

Swap rate The fixed rate on an interest rate swap. Commonly used as a 
measure of risk-free long-term interest rates. 

Tap 
 

Process by which additional amounts of an existing bond are 
issued.  

Temporary borrowing Borrowing with a term of less than one year. Term deposit 
A deposit that is repayable after a fixed period of time. 

TMS 
 

(1) Treasury management strategy. 
(2) Treasury management system. 

Total return 
 

The overall return on an investment, including interest, 
dividends, rent, fees and capital gains and losses. See also 
income return. 

Transferred debt 
 

 Debt contractually held by one local Council but whose costs 
are borne by another Council, usually following local 
government reorganisation. 

Treasury bills (or T-bills) Treasury bills (or T-bills) mature in one year or less. Like 
zero-coupon bonds, they do not pay interest prior to maturity; 
instead they are sold at a discount of the par value to create a 
positive yield to maturity. Many regard Treasury bills as the 
least risky investment available. 

Treasury investments 
 

Investments made for treasury management purposes, as 
opposed to commercial investments and service investments. 

Treasury management The management of an organisation’s cash flows, investment 
and borrowing, with a particular focus on the identification, 
control and management of risk. Specifically excludes the 
management of pension fund investments 

Treasury management 
advisor 
 

Regulated firm providing advice on treasury management, 
capital finance and related issues. 

Treasury Management 
Code (TM Code) 
 

CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Services and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes, to which 
local authorities are required by law to have regard. 

Treasury management 
indicators 
 

Indicators required by the Treasury Management Code to 
assist in the management of credit risk, interest rate risk, 
refinancing risk and price risk. Treasury management policy 
statement 
Document required by the Treasury Management Code 
setting out a local Council’s definition of and objectives for 
treasury management. 

Treasury management 
practices (TMPs) 
 

Document required by the Treasury Management Code 
setting out a local Council’s detailed processes and 
procedures for treasury management.  

Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement 

Annual report required by the Treasury Management Code 
covering the local Council’s treasury management plans for 
the forthcoming year.  

Treasury management 
system 

Computer programme for recording investments, borrowing, 
cash flow forecasts and market data to assist with treasury 
management operations. 

Page 91



 

 
 
 

Unrated institution An institution that does not possess a credit rating from one 
of the main credit rating agencies. 

Unrealised gain or loss Gain or loss that may be reversed later, e.g. from marking to 
market. Also called a paper gain or loss. See also realised 
gain or loss. 

Unsupported Borrowing Borrowing where costs are wholly financed by the Council.  
Sometimes called prudential borrowing since it was not 
permitted until the introduction of the Prudential Code in 
2004. See also supported borrowing. 

Usable reserves Resources available to finance future revenue and/or capital 
expenditure. Some usable reserves are ringfenced by law for 
certain expenditure such as on schools or council housing.  

Vanilla A simple instrument without any additional features such as 
embedded derivatives. 

Volatility A measure of the variability of a price or index, usually 
expressed as the annualised standard deviation. 

WAL Weighted average life – the average time to maturity of an 
investment portfolio, weighted by the size of the investment 
and normally expressed in days.  

WAM Weighted average maturity – the average time to the next 
interest rate reset on an investment portfolio, weighted by the 
size of the investment and normally expressed in days. A 
portfolio of fixed rate investments will have a WAM identical 
to its WAL. 

Working capital The cash surplus or deficit arising from the timing differences 
between income/expenditure in accounting terms and 
receipts/payments in cash terms.  

Yield A measure of the return on an investment, especially a bond. 
The yield on a fixed rate bond moves inversely with its price. 

Yield curve A chart of yields or interest rates for similar instruments over 
a range of maturity dates. See also inverted yield curve and 
normal yield curve. 

Page 92



Page 1 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

      
London Borough of Enfield 

 
General Purposes Committee 
 
14 January 2021 
 

 
Subject:   Corporate, Brexit and COVID-19 Risk Register Updates 
 
Cabinet Member:  N/A 
 
Executive Director: Ian Davis, Chief Executive 
   
Key Decision:  N/A 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1 This report presents the revised Corporate Risk Register, COVID-19 Risk 

Register and Brexit Risk Register. 
 

2 As we continually seek to improve Risk Management within the Council, we have 
begun the transition of moving risk registers onto the Councils’ Risk Management 
System (Pentana). 
 

3 Advantages of doing this include monitoring and reporting as well as allowing 
improved analysis of risks across the Council. This is reflected with the addition of 
a new column on the Brexit and Covid-19 Risk Registers identifying where risks 
are linked between the risk registers and the Corporate Risk Register. 
  

4 As a result of this transition and the addition of the linked risks column, the risk 
registers in appendix A, B & C have a slightly different layout; however, all 
information previously presented has been maintained.  
 

5 Another advantage of using Pentana, is that we are now able to include heat 
maps in this report. The heat map is a visual representation of a risk register, 
where each risk is shown in the box corresponding to its likelihood and impact 
score. The numbers in the heat map represent how many risks have a particular 
risk score.  

 
6 Further improvements achieved through use of this system will be reported at 

future General Purposes Committee meetings. 
 
7 The Corporate Risk Register has been circulated for review by Departmental 

Management Teams (DMTs) and the Executive Management Team (EMT) and 
has been updated accordingly  
 

8 A summary of the risks on the Corporate Risk Register are shown in the heat 
map below and full details can be found in Appendix A. 

Page 93 Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

 

 
By way of illustration, the figure of 2 in the top right hand corner shows that the 
Corporate Risk Register has two high risks each with a total risk score of 25 (a 
Likelihood score of 5 and an Impact score of 5). 

 
9 The COVID-19 Risk Register has been developed with the Council’s COVID-19 

Recovery Group and Silver and has been circulated to both groups for review and 
update 
 

10 A summary of the risks on the Covid-19 Risk Register are shown in the heat 
map below and full details can be found in Appendix B. 
 
 

 
 

11 The Brexit Risk Register has been circulated for review to the Brexit Panel and 
has been updated accordingly  
 

Page 94



Page 3 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

12 A summary of the risks on the Brexit Risk Register are shown in the heat map 
below and full details can be found in Appendix C. 
  

 
 

13 Comments made by the General Purposes Committee at the last meeting have 
been considered by the relevant officers and the risk registers have been updated 
accordingly. However, no changes to risk scores have been made. 

 
Proposal 
 
14 The General Purposes Committee is requested to note and provide comment on 

the risks recorded in the: 
 

- Corporate Risk Register 
- COVID-19 Risk Register 
- Brexit Risk Register 

 
Reason for Proposal 
 
15 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy requires the regular review of the 

Council’s risk registers. In accordance with the Strategy, the General Purposes 
Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective development and operation 
of risk management in the Council. Therefore, the Corporate Risk Register, 
COVID-19 Risk Register and the Brexit Risk Register are presented to the 
Committee for review and comment. 

 
Relevance to the Council’s Plan 
 
Good Homes in Well-Connected Neighbourhoods 
 
16 An effective Audit and Risk Management Service helps to provide assurance over 

any risks that might adversely affect the delivery of good homes in well- 
connected neighbourhoods. 

 

Page 95



Page 4 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

 Safe, Healthy and Confident Communities 
 
17 An effective Audit and Risk Management Service is an essential management tool 

which will help the Council achieve its objectives to sustain safe, healthy and 
confident communities. 

 
 An Economy that Works for Everyone 
 

18 An effective Audit and Risk Management Service will help the Council achieve its 
objectives in building a local economy that works for everyone. 

 
Background 
 
19 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy allows for the regular review of the risks 

the Council faces. 
 
20 In accordance with the Strategy, the General Purposes Committee is responsible 

for monitoring the effective development and operation of risk management in the 
Council.  

 
21 Therefore, the Corporate Risk Register (Appendix A,) the COVID-19 Risk 

Register (Appendix B) and the Brexit Risk Register (Appendix C) are presented to 
the Committee for review and comment. 

 
22 The nature of the risks on the Corporate Risk Register means responsibility and 

ownership overlap with various departments within the Council. For simplicity, 
each risk has been allocated a lead department, however this does not absolve 
other Departments from responsibility.    

 
23  The Risk Management Team continues to provide oversight, challenge and 

advice to departments regarding effective risk mitigation and governance. 
 
Main Considerations for the Council 
 
24 Any large complex organisation needs to have a well-established and systematic 

risk management framework in place to identify and mitigate risks it may face. 
 
25 The Audit and Risk Management Service supports management in the 

identification and mitigation of risks as part of its work. 
  
Safeguarding Implications 
 
26  There are no safeguarding implications arising directly from this update from the 

Audit and Risk Management Service. 
 
Public Health Implications 
 
27  Whilst the risk registers are produced to identify risks to Public Health (among 

other issues) and enable preventative action to be undertaken, there are no 

Page 96



Page 5 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Public Health implications arising directly from this update from the Audit and Risk 
Management Service.  

 
Equalities Impact of the Proposal  
 
28  Corporate advice has been sought regarding equalities and an agreement has 

been reached that it is not relevant or proportionate to carry out an equalities 
impact assessment/analysis for this report. 

 
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
 
29 One of the additional corporate risks (CR19) which is now being recognised is in 

relation to Climate Change, specifically that climate change and severe weather 
events may result in a disruption to delivery of services across the Council. It is 
recognised that a key mitigation will be delivery of the Council’s recently adopted 
Climate Action Plan, which includes a range of actions as well as targets for 
monitoring progress. 

 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
 
30 Any large complex organisation needs to have a well-established and systematic 

risk management framework in place to identify and mitigate risks it may face. 
 
31 The Audit and Risk Management Service supports management in the 

identification and mitigation of risks as part of its work and therefore, if this work is 
not carried out, reviewed and followed up, the Council faces the risk of legal, 
financial and reputational loss. 

 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will be 
taken to manage these risks 
 
32 N/A 
 
Financial Implications 
 
33 There are no specific financial implications related to this report. 

 
Legal Implications 
  
34 There are no specific legal implications related to this report. 
 
Workforce Implications 
 
35 There are no specific workforce implications related to this report. 
 
Property Implications 
 
36 There are no property implications arising related to this report 

 
 

Page 97



Page 6 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Other Implications 
 

37 N/A 
 
Options Considered 
 
38 It is generally accepted best practice that a Council’s key risks are regularly 

reviewed by senior stakeholders, therefore no alternative options have been 
considered 

 
Conclusions 
 
39 The General Purposes Committee is requested to note and provide comment on 

the risks recorded in the Corporate Risk Register, the COVID-19 Risk Register 
and the Brexit Risk Register. 

 

Report Author: Gemma Young 
 Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
 Gemma.Young@Enfield.gov.uk 
 Tel: 07900 168938 
 
Date of report        4 January 2021 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A:  Corporate Risk Register 
Appendix B:  COVID-19 Risk Register 
Appendix C:  Brexit Risk Register 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
  

Page 98



Page 7 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Appendix A - Corporate Risk Register 
 

Key to Symbols        Key to Linked Risks 
 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 
Level 

Risk 
Response 

Monitoring Icon  Linked 
Risk 

Risk Register 

1-8 Low Accept Six Monthly 
 

 CR Corporate Risk Register 

9-15 Medium Mitigate Quarterly 
 

 CV Covid-19 Risk Register 

16-25 High Escalate Monthly 
 

 BR Brexit Risk Register 

 
 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

CR01 - Budget Management   
If the Council’s financial position 
is adversely affected by external 
factors (including; Brexit, 
economic downturn, political 
change, and change to the 
funding framework etc) then this 
could affect service delivery.  

 
- Monthly reporting and forecasts 
reviewed by senior management  
- Budget Pressures board set up  
- Regular reporting to EMT &, 
Cabinet  
- Monitoring of the Council Tax 
and Business Rates tax base  
- Contingencies/reserves 
reviewed annually  
- Forward planning  
- Brexit Panel in operation  
- 5-year MTFP, 10-year capital 
programme and treasury strategy   

 
- Ongoing review of adequacy 
reserves  
- Fair Funding Review  
- Keeping up-to-date   

Resources - This risk continues to remain high and we 
estimate that our comprehensive response to the 
COVID-19 crisis including ongoing support for 
our residents and businesses will cost the 
Council approximately £68m in 2020/21 and 
increase the 2021/22 budget gap by £16m to 
over £30m. Grant funding to support this position 
has been received however, there remains a 
2020/21 budget gap of £19.2m which consists of 
the Collection Fund.  
- This is an ongoing forecast and the total impact 
will continue to be updated. Enfield Council’s 
position is broadly equivalent to most other 
councils in London, we have neither incurred 
higher than expected costs or experienced 
excess loss of income. The financial position will 
continue to be monitored to ensure our fiscal 
management continues to be robust and 
responsible.  
- As part of this responsible approach to fiscal 
management we still aim to deliver the budget 
savings agreed in February for 2020/21 which 
will include some staff restructures planned 
before the pandemic and unrelated to the crisis.  

P
age 99



Page 8 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

- Details on the financial impact of COVID-19 
were provided to Cabinet in May 2020 and 
subsequently updated as part of the quarterly 
budget monitoring reports.   

CR02 - Failure to maximise 
income  

If income (all included traded, 
council tax, grants) is not 
maximised, then this could lead 
to financial pressures and an 
inability to deliver services. 
Failure to collect invoiced 
income.   

 
- Dedicated Commercial team 
focussed on supporting services 
on maximising income  
- Targets and KPIs regularly 
monitored  
- Benchmarking fees and charges 
with other LAs  
- Commercial pipeline   

 
- Delivering the Payment 
Programme to make paying 
easier, more accessible and 
efficient.  
- Delivering functionality to issue 
electronic debt reminder 
notifications to recover ASH 
Sundry debt.  
- Implementation of commercial 
microsite and new CRM/CMS 
platform to facilitate payment 
upfront and booking capability for 
seamless delivery of services and 
better customer experience 
(Customer Experience 
Programme).  
- Improve understanding of 
traded services income and 
expenditure.  
- Development of a debt 
prevention and recovery strategy   

Resources - This risk continues to remain medium although 
the following work has been undertaken:  
 
- A Traded Services Forum meeting took place to 
support upskilling of colleagues across the 
council. 
 
- Work is continuing with the Commercial Team 
to look at opportunities to increase income.  
 
- The CRM and CMS projects are on track to 
deliver the minimum viable product (phase 1) by 
June 21.   
 
  
 
The Fair Debt and Income Board (first meeting 
November 20) is developing action plans to 
deliver each of the 7 objectives if the strategy – 
from income maximisation and debt reduction, to 
supporting vulnerable people and protecting the 
public purse.  

CR03 - Fraud/Corruption  

If there are ineffective internal 
controls and governance 
arrangements in place this could 
lead to the Council being 
subjected to an incident of 
organised or high value fraud, 
bribery and/or corruption, 
resulting in financial and 
reputational loss.   

 
- Fraud awareness training  
- Whistleblowing policy  
- Anti-Fraud strategy and action 
plan  
- Reporting to GPC/EMT - Pursue 
maximum sanctions in line with 
policy and regulations  
- Adequately resourced and 
qualified internal audit and anti-
fraud service  
- Annual review of anti-fraud 
policies and procedures  
- Annual audit plan and 

 
- Participation in anti-fraud 
exercises, including the National 
Fraud Initiative and a data 
matching pilot lead by Cifas. 
- Development of apprentices to 
enable succession planning 
within the team. 
- Improved Fraud Awareness 
eLearning module now available. 
- Participating in pilot exercise to 
share financial fraud intelligence 
with financial institutions. 
- Dedicated Counter Fraud 

Chief 
Executives 

- We recognise that there is an inherently high 
risk and likelihood of fraud in emergency 
management situations, primarily due to the 
decrease in the levels of staffing, redeployment 
of staff to new areas and the difficulty that 
services may have in delivering services which 
will lead to temporary changes in the control 
environment. We have been mitigating this risk 
by:  
- Contacting Heads of Service to highlight 
increased fraud risks, and planning to work with 
HoS colleagues to develop a new Corporate 
Fraud Risk Register;  

P
age 100



Page 9 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

implementation of 
recommendations  
- Ongoing rigour to ensure that 
audit actions are implemented in 
a timely way  

support being provided to 
Housing Assessment & Advice 
Team. 
- Continue to carry out pre-award 
assurance checks for the Small 
Business Grant Fund scheme. 
- Promote proportionate use of 
internal controls, working with 
Heads of Service via our risk 
assurance framework. 

- Undertaking targeted post-event assurance 
checks on Small Business Grant Fund payments, 
and helping to verify payments due during the 
second lockdown period;  
- Seconding a Fraud Investigator to supervise the 
Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme;  
Undertaking a proactive exercise with Audit 
colleagues during Q4 to identify purchasing 
anomalies during COVID-19;  
- Establishing a working group of schools’ staff to 
raise awareness of fraud in schools, and will be 
providing a refreshed eLearning package;  
- Delivering five online fraud awareness sessions 
to 200 staff as part of International Fraud 
Awareness Week and producing a video to 
highlight heightened fraud risks during the 
pandemic.   

CR04 - Information 
Governance  

If there are inadequate security 
controls and/or staff training, then 
this could lead to a loss, 
corruption, disclosure or breach 
of data, resulting in reputational 
damage, legal action and/or fines 
due to non-compliance with Data 
Protection / GDPR / PCI 
legislation   

 
- Data Protection Officer (DPO) in 
place  
- Mandatory E-Learning for all 
staff  
- Acceptable use policy in place  
- FOI team in place with regular 
monitor of responses  
- IGB board in place - Regular 
reminders sent to staff  
- Cyclical audit of governance 
arrangement.  
- Implement recommendations 
from GDPR internal Audit which 
took place in 2018/2019.   

 
- Communication and 
implementation of clear desk 
policy, security measures and 
access control  
- Embedding of Information 
Governance culture and best 
practice  
- Communicating procedures for 
reporting breaches   

Chief 
Executives 

- FOIA internal audit for 2019/2020 complete and 
draft report presented to HOLS and Manager of 
CAIT. Audit complete  
- Reasonable assurance given  
- Clarity of retention policies and communication 
with all staff will be picked up by DPO in 
workshops. HR are also now on IGB board and 
are picking up information governance training 
issues corporately.  
- Communication of the right of erasure (right to 
be forgotten) to all staff will be picked up by 
DPO.  
- More control of documentation is being taken 
forward by the Data quality project IGB have 
completed annual review of policies  
- IGB have reviewed the terms of reference to 
strengthen data governance and reporting lines.  
The SIRO and HOLS have undergone SIRO 
training to better understand the role.  
- New risks around disclosure of personal data 
due to COVID-19 measures are being managed 
by documenting legal basis for sharing, 

P
age 101



Page 10 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

discussion at IGB and data sharing agreements, 
where appropriate. This is an area which needs 
to be kept under close review.   

CR05 – Duty of Care  

If the Council fails in its statutory 
duties to Adults & Children within 
the borough, this could result in 
potential harm to individuals / 
families, potential legal 
challenges and reputational 
damage.   

 
- Safeguarding procedures  
- Policies  
- DBS checks for staff and 
volunteers  
- Performance monitoring of 
contractors/partners  
- Multi-Agency Safeguarding 
Hubs  
- Adults & children’s services 
combined under one directorate  
- Internal audit and quality 
assurance processes  
- Risk management panel  
- Complaints & compliments 
system  
- Assurance Board   

 
- Planned programme of audits 
covering children and adults 
safeguarding  
- External Inspections (Internal 
controls help to manage and 
reduce risk, but risk cannot be 
eliminated from this area of work)   

People Safeguarding - Adults, Internal Audits for 2020-
21  
- Mental Health Act 1983 –AMHP  
- Eclipse Access Controls  
 
Safeguarding – Children, Internal Audit for 2020-
21  
- Unregulated Providers  
- Disproportionality in Out of Court Disposals  
- Troubled Family Grants  
 
-COVID-19 will impact on the Council’s ability to 
meet statutory regulations in Adults Social Care, 
Children’s Social Care and Education SEN. 
Government has given Local Authorities 
guidance on easements for delivery of services. 
DMT is recording all non-compliance issues for 
statutory regulations and reporting to Gold.   

CR06 - Customer Demand 

If demand changes (due to 
changes in population, changing 
demographics, Brexit, political 
etc.) then this could result in an 
inability to meet service delivery 
No Deal Brexit likely to have a 
significant impact on the 
construction sector and increase 
in homelessness and people with 
no recourse to public funds If 
there is a failure to deliver the 
homelessness prevention 
strategy, then this will result in 
increased levels of homelessness 
and user demand for council 
services and temporary 
accommodation   

 
- Brexit panel  
- Eligibility criteria for services  
- Making Every Contact Count 
(MECC) for staff  
- Services are focussed on early 
help and enablement to prevent 
escalation of need  
- MyLife Portal & Eclipse 
implementation complete Nov 20 
(HASC Transformation 
Programme)  
- Development of the Children’s 
Portal (Children’s Transformation 
Programme)  
- Models of social work practice  
- Smoking cessation  
- Sexual health  
- Substance misuse services  

 
- Predictive analytics  
- Increasing SEN Places in the 
borough  
- Monitor the housing market  
- Improve self-serve options for 
customers  
- Build capacity in customers to 
resolve issues  
- New homelessness prevention 
service model and Board  
- New Community Solutions Hub 
and Project (Customer 
Experience Programme) 
addressing demand failure and 
prevention.   

People; Place - MECC training for 500 staff commenced in 
August 2019.  
- The department continues to monitor closely 
SEND numbers and future plan for schools’ 
places to meet need; and ensure that the 
planned projects are completed to time to meet 
pupil need.  
- MyLife is available and continues to be 
developed  
- The Children’s Portal (Children’s 
Transformation Programme) was launched 
during July 2019 and continues to assist 
professionals and the public to make the right 
referral for either family support or child 
protection. The information advice and guidance 
section will assist professionals to sign post and 
the public to self-serve.  
- New homelessness service model in 

P
age 102



Page 11 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

- There were 203 additional 
places opened in September 
2019 in Special Schools and 57 
additional places in mainstream 
schools run by special schools.   

development  
- The Community Hub Solutions model is a 
project currently under development within the 
Customer Experience Programme to address 
demand failure and prevention.  
- MyLife & Eclipse Projects (HASC 
Transformation Programme) - enabling clients to 
help themselves via the MyLife Portal and 
implementation of a new case management 
system that allows our specialist teams to focus 
and spend more time with the service users 
(Eclipse).  
In response to the national increase in domestic 
abuse referrals during the COVID-19 lockdown 
period, a Domestic Abuse multi-agency hub has 
been set up to enhance the service to support 
victims. The new Domestic Abuse Hub 
strengthens current arrangements and will help 
in responding to concerns quickly to reduce risks 
and ensure the safety of children and vulnerable 
adults.   

CR07 - Loss of IT  

Failure of the Councils ICT and/or 
Digital systems (due to cyber-
attack, hardware failure etc..) will 
lead to a severe disruption of 
service delivery.   

 
- Regular audits  
- Acceptable use policy and cyber 
security  
- Mandatory staff E-Learning on 
Acceptable use policy and cyber 
security policy  
- Business continuity plan in 
place and to be reviewed 
regularly.  
- Resilient infrastructure e.g. 
backup, Data servers  
- Data recovery service in place   

 
- Ongoing improvement of the 
infrastructure Resilience through 
the delivery of the infrastructure 
programme.  
- Complete the new device rollout 
programme and ongoing 
hardware refresh  
- Complete the IT restructure and 
recruitment, building a 
procurement and contract 
management capability to 
manage supplier relationships 
effectively.   

Resources - This risk continues to remain medium although 
the following work has been undertaken:  
- Actions continue to be progressed on the 
infrastructure programme. In Q3 we will be 
complete replacing end-of-life equipment in our 
on-site server room. Our network will be 
upgraded by March 2020.  
- We have conducted Inter and External 
penetration tests and the result highlighted a high 
number of vulnerabilities in the Inter test and low 
number in the External test.  
- Remediation Programme has been developed 
and we are in procurement process for remedial 
work to resolve all outstanding security risks  
- Cyber security training which is mandatory – 
need for staff to be more aware, IGB to raise 
awareness; Senior Leadership Network update 
for all Heads of Service was delivered on 

P
age 103



Page 12 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

12/09/19.  
- Customer Experience Programme has a project 
in delivery and on track to support the existing 
CRM platform should this be required as a 
contingency (Microsoft Global Upgrade)   

CR08 – Business Continuity  

If the Council is subject to a 
significant event that causes 
business interruption and fails to 
respond adequately, then this 
could lead to significant financial 
loss and disruption of services.   

 
- Business Continuity 
Management Board  
- Training  
- Adequate Insurance in place  
- Corporate business continuity 
plan in place  
- Departmental business 
continuity plans in place   

 
- Department & Service BC Plans 
are constantly being undated and 
reviewed during COVID-19  
- Corporately Services and 
Department will be encouraged to 
review existing plans once 
lessons learnt during COVID-19 
are available.   

Chief 
Executives 

- The EP Team are supporting departments as 
needed  
- Ensuring critical teams are continuing to 
maintain appropriate services  
- Departments are required to complete weekly 
SitReps which are shared with the Council’s 
Silver and Gold Groups  
- Critical Service Leads are required to update 
the BC SitRep as and when needed  
- Email has gone out to all service leads that 
have identified they use external providers/ 
contractors requesting they make contact with 
them and confirm that they are still able to 
provide a service after the UK leaves the EU.  
- Email has gone out to all critical services to find 
out if there is a need for stockpiling of 
resources/materials due to Brexit.   

CR09 – Emergency Incident  

If there is a failure to respond 
adequately following a major 
incident within the borough that 
adversely affects residents / 
businesses, then this may result 
in significant reputational 
damage.   

 
- Staff are adequately trained to 
respond  
- Staff volunteers to assist in 
responding  
- Out of hours response team  
- Incident management policies  
- Additional officers has led to an 
increase in resilience within the 
EP team  

 
-Strategic Training with the 
Emergency Planning College – 3 
Golds and 2 members of EP 
Team have received training.  
The remaining two Golds and 
EPO will be attending the EPC in 
January 2021 
-Tactical Training with the 
Emergency Planning College was 
postponed in May 2020 due to 
Covid a new date will be 
arranged for all Council Silvers 
for 2021   

Chief 
Executives 

- London Standardisation Training has taken 
place, all teams are fully staffed.  
- The Emergency Response Management 
Teams consists of 9 teams and each team 
consist of 10 officers which includes the Council 
Gold  
- During the COVID-19 response the EMRT will 
continue as BAU, with a dynamic approach.  
- Communications Team, EP Team and Council 
Golds have received Crisis Communications 
Training which was held by the Emergency 
Planning College   

CR09A – Coronavirus  

An outbreak could lead to a 
significant number of people 

 
- Flu plan tested in a multi-
agency exercise last year  
- Business continuity plans in 

 
- Continue to monitor and 
disseminate information from 
relevant agencies.  

People - The UK is extremely well prepared for any 
potential outbreak of an infectious disease – we 
are one of the first countries in the world to have 

P
age 104



Page 13 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

being infected within a short 
period of time. This could lead to 
severe consequences including; - 
Deaths to vulnerable people -
Overload on Adult Social care 
service - Severe disruptions to 
services - Staff shortages   

place and being reviewed by all 
departments   

- LRF meeting 11/2/20   developed a test for the new virus and a team of 
public health experts has been established in 
Heathrow Airport to support anyone travelling in 
from abroad who feels unwell.  
- The Council has prepared for an increase in 
cases and just last year the Council’s pandemic 
flu plan was tested in a multi-agency exercise.  
- As part of the Customer Experience 
programme, Face to Face customer access is 
being moved to flagship libraries enabling our 
most vulnerable customers to receive assistance 
nearer their homes. This will be conducted 
observing the social distancing measures,  
- Enfield’s Local Outbreak Plan has been 
approved and is maintained and updated by 
members of the Local Authority Outbreak Control 
Team (OCT).  
- The Council has set up a weekly Public Health 
Strategic Management Group to review 
coronavirus data. This ensures the Council 
maintains a strategic overview of the situation 
and can agree action as and when necessary   

CR10 – Health & Safety  

If there is an avoidable incident 
affecting staff / public / tenants 
(residential & commercial) then 
this could lead to injury/death, 
legal challenge and reputational 
damage. If we do not comply with 
H&S requirements for buildings, 
then this could lead to 
injury/death, regulatory 
enforcement action and 
reputational damage.   

 
- H&S Procedures  
- Training / E-learning  
- Occupational Health provider  
- Corporate Landlord 
responsibilities  
- Housing  
- Cladding / Smoke alarms 
Electric / Gas safety  
- Highway maintenance  
- Winter Maintenance plan  
- Grounds Maintenance  
- Waste Collection  
- Asbestos awareness  
- Security/access to buildings and 
schools   

 
- Regular reports to Corporate 
H&S Committee and Assurance 
Board  
- Ensuring works comply with 
legislation, codes of practice and 
contracts are performance 
managed  
- H&S to be included in decision 
making when setting budgets for 
20/21   

Place - Risk rating revised from High to Medium  
- Corporate policies and processes in place to 
effectively manage the council’s operations  
- Robust risk management systems are in place 
to control operational risks  
- Corporate training programmes are in place to 
ensure staff have the skills and knowledge 
required to operate safely and mitigate risk to 
relevant persons  
- Adequate systems are in place to manage 
statutory compliance across the residential and 
corporate Landlord portfolios with planned 
improvements to provide robust management  
- Appropriate performance monitoring and 
reporting to provide assurance via the Corporate 
Health and Safety Management Plan, the 
Departmental and Corporate Performance 

P
age 105



Page 14 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

reports, the Departmental and Corporate Health 
and Safety Committees and the Council’s 
Corporate Assurance Board  
- Reports to Assurance Board every other month 
and corporate H&S committee every quarter   

CR11 - Housing 

If there is a failure to deliver the 
housing strategy, then this will 
result in an inadequate supply of 
social and private sector 
properties within the borough.   

 
- Housing strategy in place, with 
teams and resources in place to 
deliver  
- Continually review policies to 
keep abreast of current climate 
and good practice   

 
- Monitor housing delivery 
through the Housing Delivery 
Board  
- Regular meetings to monitor 
service delivery capacity among 
management and HR  
- We will continue to scan the 
horizon in order to prepare for 
major changes in the housing 
sector including: the introduction 
of a new Regulator for Social 
Housing Standards; and changes 
to the powers of the Housing 
Ombudsman such as 
enforcement action and a new 
compensation regime.   

Place - Housing Strategy published.  
- 3,500 council owned homes programme 
agreed.  
- Low Yield programme lead in place.  
- Proposals to intensify existing estate regen 
schemes in progress.  
- Meridian Water Phase 2 100% affordable 
housing out to procurement  
- Preparing to address the requirements to meet 
the regulatory standards. Reviewing complaints 
handling within the service – looking at 
organisational learning to make long term service 
improvements   

CR12 – Major Capital Projects  

If there is a failure of key 
schemes (Meridian Water, 
Electric Quarter, Joyce Avenue 
and Snells Park Estates, etc.) to 
regenerate the borough this will 
lead to a reputational damage 
and financial loss.   

 
- Close attention to recruitment 
and skills of council.  
- Using independent specialist 
advisors  
- Capital Board reporting  
- Ensure executive oversight of 
major schemes  
- Monthly risk reviews of all major 
projects   

 
- Build in-house capacity to 
deliver GLA capacity funding  
- Ensure robust procurement 
controls and contact 
management by in house staff  
- Improve risk registers in 
housing development   

Place Unchanged. There is a detailed risk register for 
Meridian Water that manages all risks and we 
are satisfied that the risk is still medium 

CR13 – Supply Chain/Contract 
management  

The Council fails to effectively 
commission, procure and/or 
contract manage its key 
contractors or partners, leading to 
the Council being unable to 
deliver key services or 

 
- Contract Procedure Rules  
- P&C Board  
- Commercial board  
- Training  
- London Tender Portal  
- Single Contract registers for the 
council  
- Reporting non-compliance to 

 
- Review of Contract procedure 
rules  
- Review Training  
- Improvement plan to ensure 
consistent good practice across 
organisation  
- Ongoing review and 
improvement to the quality of the 

Resources - This risk continues to remain medium although 
the following work has been undertaken:  
- New CPR’s implemented in July 2020 with 
supporting manual. Training carried out to 
support understanding of new CPR’s.  
- Updated contract management guide has been 
put on the intranet. Training strategy to support 
the upskilling of staff in contract management 

P
age 106



Page 15 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

demonstrate value for money.   audit committee  
- Performance monitoring   

information held on contract 
register   

drafted. Audit completed; implementation of 
actions ongoing.  
- Departmental contract boards – now up and 
running. Supplier Resilience programme started 
in Place to review impact of COVID-19 on supply 
chain.   

CR14 - Trading companies  

If the Council’s trading 
companies fail or perform poorly 
then this will result in significant 
reputational damage and 
financial loss.   

 
- Line of delegation and reserve 
matters for LBE shareholder 
decisions 
- Quarterly reporting of company 
performance against business 
plan targets 
- Annual submission of company 
business plans 
- Governance review and action 
plan in place 
- Council member and officer 
presence on all company Boards  

 
- Review Public Interest Reports 
from other authorities and draw 
up action plans for Enfield. 
- Review of SLA efficiency and 
effectiveness 
- State Aid compliance review 
- Document process for 
considering Energetik extensions 
- Expanding monitoring to 
separate HGL business units  

Resources - This risk continues to remain medium. 
Coronavirus risks have been managed by 
companies and have not to date impacted 
performance for most.  
- Separate risk register for the companies have 
been developed which will support risk 
monitoring. This is shared with Assurance Board 
on a regular basis.  
- Annual accounts have shown good progress for 
majority of companies against business plans.   

CR15 - Staffing  

If the council is unable to 
recruit/retain highly skilled staff 
and/or those in high demand, 
then this will result in poor staff 
morale, reduced levels of service 
delivery, increased costs due to 
agency/interim staff and will 
impact statutory responsibilities.   

 
- Recruitment & selection policies 
reviewed  
- Flexible working  
- Mentoring schemes  
- Regular review of the use of 
agency staff  
- Regular review of staff absence  
- Benefits package  
- Alternate rewards  
- Training and development  
- Recruitment & Selection training 
for managers is live.  
- Departmental CPD budgets 
established and sit within each 
department   

 
- Reduce agency workers  
- Customer experience 
programme  
- Culture change project and 
forum  
- Social Work Apprenticeship  
- Staff Seminars  
- Technology to support flexible 
engaging recruitment practises.   

Chief 
Executives 

- Digital Service Strategy was discussed at SDB 
on 10 Nov 2020. ERP was agreed as the 
preferred organisational tool (Digital Services will 
take this forward and work with HR and Payroll)  
- The agency reduction strategy has been 
developed; and is now being implemented. 
Regular update and review meetings are taking 
place with senior officers and the Cabinet Lead 
for Finance to ensure compliance.  
- Future focus will include workforce planning, 
learning and development; and talent/succession 
planning.  
- A greater emphasis has been placed on 
supporting flexible working – which will also form 
part of ‘Build the Change’. A draft ‘Smart Working 
Policy’ has been developed to support the new 
ways of working – giving greater flexible to 
working arrangements across the council. This 
would potentially attract more talent to the 
council.  
- Greater emphasis to be placed on using the 

P
age 107



Page 16 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

apprenticeship levy on existing staff  
- Regular reviews of MFS in line with labour 
market.  
-workforce strategy 2018- 21 is due to be 
refreshed to ensure the people element is 
integrated into the council plan   

CR16 - Financial Management  

If the Council fails to maintain its 
financial controls and or has its 
Statement of Accounts (SOA) 
qualified, then it could suffer 
significant reputational damage 
with its partners (customers, 
residents, suppliers and public 
bodies). This is because the 
Statement of Accounts reflects 
that the Council is a ‘going 
concern’   

 
- General Purposes Committee 
and Assurance Board review of 
audit actions  
- Director of Finance has 
oversight SOA  
- Plan of improvement reviewed 
and updated to Audit & Risk 
Committee.  
- SOA - Bi-weekly meetings by 3 
most senior finance officers   

 
- Restructure in Corporate 
Finance to review opportunities to 
strengthen team 

Resources - General Purposes Committee to be updated 
monthly  
- Lead Member updated weekly  
- Schools have been updated with changes.  
- External audit underway   

CR17 – Tax  

As the Council has become more 
complicated in its commercial 
arrangements, the complexity of 
VAT, Corporation Tax and SDLT 
(Stamp Duty Land Tax) has 
grown. The risk to the council 
from getting the partial tax 
exemption wrong in any year is at 
least a £2m hit to revenue.   

 
- A new monthly tax meeting 
takes place.  
- A plan of improvement is being 
developed to ensure that VAT in 
particularly is being robustly 
monitored and so that risks are 
flagged early.  
- Finance is now involved in most 
SDLT decision-making 
conversations.  
- A new mailbox has been 
created   

 
- The Council plans to send out a 
formal email to all key officers, 
particularly project managers 
about the need to seek tax advice 
and to ensure that all projects are 
opted to tax.  
- SharePoint will be set up with all 
records in one spot for all of the 
Council so there is one version of 
the truth.   

Resources The Tax Officer is reviewing and projecting future 
tax liabilities to assess the options to manage the 
partial VAT exemption under the 5% threshold. 

CR18 - Civil unrest 

A confluence of significant events 
could cause tensions in the 
community that may result in 
violence causing injury, death, 
financial loss and property 
damage   

 
- A number of partnership 
meetings with the police enable a 
good flow of information sharing 
to highlight specific risks and 
provide an opportunity for the 
Council to contribute as part of 
wider local partnership- e.g. 
CCTV  

 
- Development of pan London 
protocols to deal with unlicensed 
events. Targeted outreach, 
information sharing and a number 
of strategies including 
Community Safety Partnership 
Plan. 

People There have been several unlicensed music 
events across London during the summer. 
London boroughs and the Metropolitan Police 
have agreed a protocol to respond to these. 
Public demonstrations in support of the Black 
Lives movement have taken place without 
incident. 

P
age 108



Page 17 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department  

Update 

- Heightened awareness, 
targeted projects   

CR19 - Climate change 

Climate change and severe 
weather events may result in a 
disruption to delivery of services 
across the Council, with financial, 
operational, reputational and 
legal Consequences   

 
- The council has invested 
heavily in the delivery of a 
number of flood mitigation 
schemes in recent years.  
- Declaration of climate 
emergency  
- Climate action plan   

 
- Implementation of action plan   Place Action plan agreed and launched. 

 
 

P
age 109



Page 18 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Appendix B - Covid-19 Risk Register 
 

Key to Symbols        Key to Linked Risks 
 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 
Level 

Risk 
Response 

Monitoring Icon  Linked 
Risk 

Risk Register 

1-8 Low Accept Six Monthly 
 

 CR Corporate Risk Register 

9-15 Medium Mitigate Quarterly 
 

 CV Covid-19 Risk Register 

16-25 High Escalate Monthly 
 

 BR Brexit Risk Register 

 
 
 
Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

CV01 - Staff Safety 

If there is a virus outbreak within 
staff offices, then this may cause 
large numbers of staff to become 
unwell and may endanger life   

 
-Staff advised to work from home 
where compatible with their role to 
minimise number of Staff on-site. 
-Managers reporting any cases or 
suspected cases among Staff to the 
Public Health team. 
-Introduction of physical distancing for 
Staff and visitors while in the Council 
buildings. 
-Risk Assessments carried out for all 
Corporate buildings. -Regular updates 
provided to Staff 
-PPE available. 

 
-Continued monitoring of Government 
advice  
-Additional safety and distancing measures 
being introduced in buildings including 
such as one-way systems  
-Guidance for individual areas on PPE 
provided and being updated  
-Cleaning of offices etc to be part of 
recovery workstream.  
-LBE TTT due to go live week 
commencing 12th Oct  
-LFD testing commenced 8th Dec  
-Further roll out expected before Xmas   

People CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CR15 Staffing 
 

CV02 - Mental Health and 
Wellbeing of Staff 
There may be an increase in 
employee related mental health and 
wellbeing issues which impacts on 
the Council's ability to deliver 
services during the crisis and 
recover post crisis.   

 
-Regular communication to promote 
health & wellbeing and support 
services 
-Virtual Team meetings to ensure 
colleagues are staying connected 
-Employee Advice and Counselling 
Service for specialist confidential 
support for staff and household 
members 
-Crisis communications strategy 
agreed by Gold and implemented. 

 
-Departments to carry out resourcing 
assessment of their teams to identify areas 
where additional skills may be required, 
and where possible redeploy staff 
accordingly  
-Departments to develop plans to enable 
services to operate on skeleton staff if 
necessary  
-Series of events organised by the Mental 
Health and Wellbeing Network -Continue 
to communicate regularly with residents 

Chief Executives BR06 Anxiety and 
Stress  

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CR15 Staffing 
 

P
age 110



Page 19 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

-Dedicated crisis advice helpline for 
staff now open Monday to Friday 
10am - 4pm 
-Staff FAQs in place & updated on 
weekly basis. Communications to 
staff also managed at Bronze levels 
-Via Silver, ensuring managers are 
checking in with their staff on a 
regular basis and prioritising welfare 
discussions due to high numbers 
working from home, self-isolating 
and/or acting as shield for vulnerable 
family member 

and staff on all matters relating to COVID-
19 including latest health and safety 
advice.  
-Latest COVID-19 comms strand being 
push externally and internally is promoting 
Test and Trace  
-Staff also being regularly updated on 
related Build the Change activity and 
community response initiatives through 
Culture Matters comms channels and 
through the Chief Executive updates.   

CV03 - Loss of Staff 
If there is a significant loss of staff 
(25%-50%) due to the virus, then 
the delivery of critical services could 
suffer   

 
-Existing Staff Redeployment 
Process: James Smith is leading on 
corporate priority service planning to 
identify where existing staff can be 
redeployed from non-critical to critical 
service areas when/if required. Plan 
identifies transferrable skills, existing 
security checks (e.g. DBS) to ensure 
redeployment to appropriate roles 
when necessary. This has been 
approved by Gold and is now in effect 
-External Temporary Employment: 
Sam Buckley is leading on external 
recruitment via Matrix for 
redundant/unemployed Enfield 
residents to carry out specific 
roles/duties for specified periods of 
time. 
- Services are making Sam & James 
aware when there are staff shortfalls 
so they can either re-deploy staff or 
look to work in partnership with Matrix 
through external advert. This is a live 
situation and so linked in to updates 
at Silver. Also linked they are running 
daily stats on HR sickness to look at 
any significant trends in staff absence 

 
-Process in place and if further shortages 
apply these can be advertised on the 
council website in partnership with Matrix 

Resources BR04 Staffing 
 

CR08 Business 
Continuity  

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CR15 Staffing 
 

P
age 111



Page 20 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

which could impact on critical services 
-Public Health: Managers reporting 
any cases or suspected cases among 
staff to the Public Health team. SIT 
reporting mechanisms in place. MI 
portal adapted so that HR are 
receiving reports of both COVID and 
non-COVID related sickness. 

CV04 - Staff Visits 
There is an increased risk of staff 
being exposed to infection whilst 
attending care visits and 
appointments   

 
-PPE available for staff  
-Covid risk assessments of work 
activities have been undertaken by 
managers detailing measures to take 
to minimise risk   

 
-Corporate Health and Safety Team have 
reviewed COVID risk assessments and 
any revisions of them as requested by 
services 
-Managers responsible for keeping their 
COVID risk assessments under review and 
amend as needed (e.g. changes to work 
activity, legislation or guidance change) 

Place CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CV05 - Financial Impact on 
Income 
The pandemic may bring about an 
economic downturn, which could 
lead to a reduction in income as 
businesses and individuals become 
unable to meet their liabilities to the 
Council.   

 
-Monitoring of income and continuing 
to follow robust yet sympathetic debt 
collection processes. 

 
-We are in negotiations with central 
government to see how the impact of the 
suspension of business rates is to be 
mitigated.  
-We are ready to convene remote 
magistrates' courts to summons 
appropriately for Council Tax. This is 
expected to start with a small number of 
cases in January.  
-Courts have not yet agreed to summons 
for NNDR   

Resources BR05 Funding in the 
First Quarter post 
Brexit 

 

BR14 Local 
Businesses  

CR02 Failure to 
maximise income  

CV06 - Financial Impact of 
Additional Expenditure 
If the COVID-19 expenditure 
exceeds the organisation's financial 
reserves, then we will not have 
sufficient funds to support activities 
in the medium to longer term. There 
is also a risk that some/all financial 
savings for FY19/20 and FY20/21 
may not be realised   

 
-Process drawn up for tracking 
COVID-19 expenditure across the 
whole organisation (Finance). Latest 
budget position update should be 
available end of March 
-Authority report submitted to Director 
of Law & Governance to release £3m 
of reserves to cover current 
expenditure 
-Regular meetings taking place with 
North Central London group to 
support forecasting. 

 
-North Central London Finance 
undertaking focussed work on Council Tax 
and Business Rates. 
-Undertaking scenario planning in the 
event that there's a shortfall in Government 
funding 
-Government funding continuing to be drip 
fed through. Currently £35.7m of support 
against £61.4m of cost/lost income. 
Lobbying and in discussion with MHCLG. 

Resources BR12 Welfare 
 

BR13 Additional 
care requirements  

CR01 Budget 
Management  

P
age 112



Page 21 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

CV07 - Fraud 
During times of crisis and economic 
downturn, the level of staffing may 
decrease (potentially rendering the 
system of internal control less 
effective) whilst fraud attempts 
increase.   

 
-Services aware of the importance of 
internal controls.  
-Counter Fraud Team active and 
available.  
-Fraud Awareness training, including 
Cyber Security, delivered to staff as in 
November 2020.  
-The Counter Fraud Team have 
produced a video for staff highlighting 
the importance of maintaining internal 
controls during Covid-19.  
-An investigator has been deployed to 
support the Business Rates Team’s 
verification of grant payments, to help 
ensure that assistance is only paid to 
those genuinely entitled to receive it. 

 
-Corporate Anti-Fraud Team to 
communicate with key services to monitor 
fraud attempts and to obtain assurance 
that controls are operating effectively. 
-Refreshed Fraud Awareness training is 
being developed and will be made 
available to schools during Q4.    

 

Chief Executives CR03 
Fraud/Corruption  

CV08 - Loss of ICT 
If ICT team / services / capabilities 
go down or remote working is not 
available to priority services and the 
wider staff group, then the 
organisation will be significantly 
restricted with immediate effect in 
its ability to deliver critical services.   

 
-ICT COVID-19 action plan for 
Bronze/Silver/Gold in place & 
monitored daily to address identified 
weaknesses in technical capabilities, 
service provision & monitor progress 
to resolve identified issues. Remote 
working test carried out on 17/03/20 
- issues identified & now resolved. All 
users now transferred to VPN for 
improved remote access. 
-ICT has scaled up its ability to 
support more than 3000 users 
working from home remotely and 
accessing key/priority applications as 
well as the ability to hold conference 
and video calls. 
-Issued guidance to staff on working 
from home and how to maximise 
bandwidth etc. Guidance continues to 
be issued via ICT intranet page with 
daily Tips of the Day emails to all 
Council staff. 
-ICT Business Continuity Plan has 
been reviewed & is up to date 

 
-Teams rollout and removal of Skype by 
Dept on going. 
-Guidance/Training. On-going review of 
Network capability with Supplier. 
-First wave of critical applications identified 
which can't be used remotely (Atrium, 
Synergy, Liquid Logic, Northgate, Hope & 
Carefirst). These have now been resolved. 
Prioritisation of next set of critical 
applications follows Silver & Gold 
authorisation process. 
-Awaiting review of Network Capability 
commenced 7/9/20 and completion of 
Infrastructure Programme during Q3/Q4 to 
ensure Teams rollout is complete, and 
network robust. 
-Teams rollout to all services is complete 
but require completion of Network 
Programme to ensure connectivity and 
capacity are robust. Expected between 
now and end of Financial Year 

Resources CR07 Loss of IT 
 

CR08 Business 
Continuity  

P
age 113



Page 22 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

-Weekend ICT service desk support 
terminated w/e 18/04/20 
-Calls to the ICT Service Desk has 
stabilised. 

CV09 - Failure of suppliers 
If LBE's external contractors who 
provide services on behalf of the 
organisation cease operating, then 
critical services could cease as a 
result, falling back to LBE to deliver 
under duty of care legal requirement   

 
-Regular review & monitoring of 
existing contracts 
-Services in this position have been 
asked to identify & prepare 
contingencies, such as alternative 
suppliers on SAP, shared services 
with other local authorities and 
existing supplier contingency plans 
-All external contractors identified on 
BIAs have been contacted. Service 
Leads are satisfied that key suppliers 
have adequate contingencies in 
place. Emergency Planning have 
listed all information. 

 
-Continued monitoring of contracts where 
suppliers are most at risks. 
-BCP Service Leads have been requested 
to continually keep in contact with external 
contractors ensuring that they are able to 
supply the service 

Chief Executives BR08 Supply Chain 
 

CR09 Emergency 
Incident  

CR13 Supply 
Chain/Contract 
management 

 

CV10 - Reduction in Service 
Delivery 
Service delivery may be affected if a 
significant amount of staff are 
unwell leading to delays in 
processing and responding to 
service requests.   

 
-All employees able to work from 
home 
-Maintain register of employees that 
can be redeployed to other areas 
based on need and skills required 
-Regular information sharing with 
employees via email 
-Monitoring of absences and 
management of return to work within 
government guidelines 
-Business Continuity Plans and staff 
cover rotas ensure cover in the office 
is maintained 

 
-Develop a contingency plan for a potential 
second wave of outbreak 
-Train employees to cover vacant roles as 
required. 
-Develop plans to enable services to 
operate on skeleton staff. 

Chief Executives CR06 Customer 
Demand  

CV11 - Supply Shortages 
If essential supplies run low within 
Council offices, then this could 
cause health & safety issues, 
reducing/preventing our ability and 
that of our partners to deliver 
services to our residents & 
vulnerable service users   

 
-ICT: carrying out daily hardware 
stock checks to understand gaps in 
mobile device & accessories and 
identify critical users to prioritise 
redeployment of hardware for remote 
working when required via Gold 
authorisation process. 
-Procurement: (Peter Alekkou & 

 
-Procurement supplier findings & 
proposals to go to Matt Bowmer & Fay 
Hammond for review. Matt to review & 
share with Silver and Gold the corporate 
guidance for supplier relief. 
-Stock Monitoring still place and suppliers 
still able to provide stock with slightly 
longer lead in times 

Resources BR02 Medicine and 
Supplies Shortages  

BR08 Supply Chain 
 

CR13 Supply 
Chain/Contract 
management 

 

P
age 114



Page 23 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

Claire Reilly) are identifying key 
suppliers against critical services list 
to ensure suppliers have emergency 
plans in place regarding supply chain, 
and work with services to identify 2nd 
& 3rd tier supply chain suppliers in 
case of 1st tier failure. Corporate 
guidance drafted based on Cabinet 
Office guidance note for supplier relief 
- with Matt Bowmer for review. 

-Supplier at Risk programme put in place 
with initial support from EY and being run 
through Departmental Procurement 
Boards 
-No further planned action 

CV12 - Increased demand for 
Social Care services 
If the NHS is unable to cope with 
additional demands, this may place 
extra burden on the Council along 
with a general rise in demand for 
services due to COVID-19   

 
-Single point of contact created for 
each hospital on the Enfield patch 
with Enfield leading for NMDDX to co-
ordinate health and social care 
response to the pandemic 
-Daily sitrep meetings with health and 
council partners 
-Daily sitreps received via Public 
Health on infection and death rates in 
Enfield 
-Daily sitreps received via our social 
care providers on infection/death 
rates and ability to accept new 
referrals 
-Service response stepped up to 
seven days per week to facilitate 
timely discharges from hospital 
-Additional capacity created both for 
COVID-19 positive cases step down 
and non-positive cases 
-Opened two units at BW house to 
provide a further 20 
residential/nursing beds for hospital 
discharges from NMDDX 

 
-Infection control training provided via local 
NHS trusts to community and care home 
staff 
-Information/advice shared with providers 
incl. Carers/personal assistants 
-DP users provided with information re 
access to free flu jabs and PPE for 
carers/personal assistants 
-VCS services around info/advice 
remobilised as part of a community 
response service for vulnerable and 
shielding people together with NHS social 
prescribing offer 
-NCL sub-region response has created 85 
step up/step down beds for COVID 
positive cases with no admissions to care 
homes of people who have tested positive 
-Current embargos on care homes kept 
under review to assess suitability of lifting 
these to release further residential capacity 
(already begun but ongoing). Currently 
have 15% vacancy rates in care home 
market. 
-Community equipment service continues 
to work Mon-Sat with option to ramp up to 
7 day working if needed 
-Gov funding (ICF) distributed to providers 
as per guidance 

People BR02 Medicine and 
Supplies Shortages  

BR13 Additional 
care requirements  

CR01 Budget 
Management  

CR05 Duty of Care 
 

CR06 Customer 
Demand  

P
age 115



Page 24 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

CV13 - Sustainability of 
interventions 
If the current level of interventions is 
required for a medium to long 
timeframe with intermittent removal 
& implementation to re-flatten the 
infection curve, then this would be 
hard to sustain from both a service 
and financial viewpoint as the draw 
on resources would be significant 
and intensive for short periods of 
time and repeated frequently   

 
-BCP will need to be reviewed for 
long term impact.  

-Business Unit operating models will need 
to be reviewed and amended to 
accommodate new ways of working both in 
terms of staff numbers, physical resources 
and budgets this is likely to be driven by 
demand on services and finances 
available. Closely linked to CO14. This is 
managed, reviewed and modified via Silver 
Group.   

People BR13 Additional 
care requirements  

CR05 Duty of Care 
 

CV14 - Sustainability of Social 
Care provider markets 
If provider market is affected, then 
potential quarantine of homes or 
reduced community service with 
reduced availability of critical 
support services   

 
-Council continues to follow 
PHE/government advice & distribute 
information regularly through comms 
plan to providers; 
-Daily ring arounds to all providers to 
assess staff availability, 
infection/death rates, PPE supplies 
and food supplies; BCPs requested 
from all providers; 
-IWE continue to act as Council PLR -
Single point of contact for provider 
queries through brokerage; 
-Review of current embargos on 
providers; 
-8 additional beds opened at BW 
house for OP/LD clients for 
permanent and respite support. Two 
additional units opened at BW house 
to provide 20 residential/nursing beds; 
continue to escalate calls for PPE and 
co-ordinate for providers any 
deliveries issued through hospital 
sites; 

 
-Lifting any embargos on providers to 
create additional capacity if it is safe to do 
so;  
-Provision of temporary grant funding for 
residential providers -continued payment 
against commissioned services for 
community  
-Passporting of additional Government 
infection control funding to community and 
residential providers to ensure staff wages 
and other infection control costs are 
covered including Phase 2 funding  
-Support additional recruitment campaigns 
across NCL and locally for care staff and 
nursing staff including through mutual aid 
programme  
-Currently 270 void beds in Enfield care 
homes (15%) -Joint work with CCG to 
commission care  
-Free PPE through Gov portal & local 
supplies  
-Day care providers continue to fund at 
100% commissioned service   

People BR13 Additional 
care requirements  

CR05 Duty of Care 
 

CR13 Supply 
Chain/Contract 
management 

 

CV15 - Supply of PPE 
If the supply of PPE is not managed 
effectively, then stock availability 
will reduce quickly for both LBE staff 

 
-Ensuring sourcing of PPE is based 
on volumes, lead in times, 
consideration regarding certification of 
products, and provider track record; 

 
-Government portal in place to supply free 
PPE  
-Letter sent to all direct payment users 
14/10/20 informing of access to free PPE 

People BR08 Supply Chain 
 

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

P
age 116



Page 25 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

and care providers in the Borough 
reliant on Council provision.   

-Sending requests to the NHS to 
consider incorporating into the wider 
NHS supply chain; 
-Multiple supply sources (local & 
regional) are in place (current levels 
are adequate); 
-Carrying out due diligence on Pan 
London Memorandum of Agreement 
adding to supply providers (short term 
arrangement); 
-Investigating CLIPPER supply 
options (medium term option); 
-Providing breakdown of PPE stock 
levels to Gold 3x per week; 
-Calling residential care providers 
every day to understand stock 
requirements. 

arrangements  
-Brexit risk register updated to reflect risk 
to supply chain -Stock levels maintained at 
least 3 months  
-Gov infection control funding used to 
procure additional supplies in line with 
guidance to minimise impact on council 
budget  
-Continued sourcing of supplies 
maintaining sufficient to meet current and 
future needs   

CR13 Supply 
Chain/Contract 
management 

 

CV16 - Activation of Business 
Continuity Plans (BCPs) 
If BCPs have not been reviewed 
recently or are in place, and 
circumstances dictate that they 
must be enacted at short notice, 
then this could severely impact the 
organisation's ability to plan and 
address the crisis, restricting its 
ability to fulfil duty of care to 
residents.   

 
-Emergency Planning conducted 
update of all BPCs and presented 
findings to Doug Wilkinson (Silver 
Chair) 
-Gold, Silver & Bronze groups are 
now in place and active 
-COVID-19 risk register created & 
monitoring with Doug Wilkinson's 
oversight, escalations to Gold group 
as required 
-Emergency planning exercises have 
been carried out recently for critical 
services and those who have 
requested these. 

 
-Lead officers to continue to monitor and 
disseminate information from relevant 
agencies. 
-Weekly SitReps are being sent to London 
Local Authority Coordination Centre. 
-Weekly internal SitReps are being 
completed and circulated to Silver and 
Gold 
-PH Strategic Management Group has 
been established and meets twice a week 

Chief Executives CR08 Business 
Continuity  

CV17 - Fuel Shortage 
If there are fuel shortages caused 
by panic buying and/or delays to 
supply, then this will cause 
disruption to delivery of LBE key 
services as well as contributing 

 
-Fuel reserves held with regular 
deliveries to keep fuel tanks topped 
up. 
-Operational contingency plans in 
place with Fleet Services National 
and local fuel plans in place. 

 
-Continue to monitor situation locally on a 
weekly basis and through London 
Resilience Team. Fleet Services monitor 
daily fuel stock held at Morson Road, 
Pymmes Park and Trent Park and order in 
advance to ensure fuel stocks are 

Chief Executives BR01 Fuel Shortage 
 

CR08 Business 
Continuity  

CR09 Emergency 
Incident  

P
age 117



Page 26 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

towards civil unrest (see C011)   -Enfield identified designated fuel 
station is at Tesco (Ponders End) 
plans in place and was exercised last 
year 
-Local fuel plan in place to prioritise 
operations/ essential services. 

constantly at optimum. All front-line 
services have been issued with fuel cards 
to use local filling stations if necessary, to 
preserve our own stocks should shortages 
arise 

CR13 Supply 
Chain/Contract 
management 

 

CV18 - Civil Unrest 
If uncertainty and tensions rise 
across the community, then this 
could lead to further panic buying, 
riots and disturbance   

 
-Existing Civil Emergency 
Management plan in place.  
-Emergency Management Response 
Team in place with on call officers 
including Council Gold and Silver 
-Lead officers continue to monitor and 
disseminate information from relevant 
agencies. 
-Head of Community Safety regularly 
liaise with the Enfield Police Service 

 
-Liaising and sharing information with 
partners including emergency services via 
the Enfield Borough Resilience Forum. 
Fortnightly updates requested from 
Partners including the Emergency 
Services on the Enfield Borough 
Resilience Forum and shared with TMG 
(Silver) and SMG (Gold) 
-Head of Community Safety reports back 
to the TMG (Silver) on any issues within 
the borough these currently include 
protests and UMEs- signed UME protocol. 
COVID car from MPS for Enfield but 
limited resource for new restrictions is 
likely due to conflicting demands with XR 
etc. Not clear whether there will be 
compliance within community during this 
phase of COVID management, or whether 
there will be resource for LAs in terms of 
“Marshalling”. 
-Raised question of potential London 
Lockdown at MPS Planning meeting for 
further discussion on Nov 4th agenda will 
also include community tensions, Autumn 
Nights (crime reduction seasonal). Update 
to be provided thereafter. 

People BR03 Civil Unrest 
 

CR05 Duty of Care 
 

CR09 Emergency 
Incident  

CR18 Civil unrest 
 

CV19 - Health and Wellbeing of 
community 
There may be a significant impact 
on the health and wellbeing of the 
community leading to an increase in 
demand for welfare and care 

 
-Regular calls to vulnerable residents 
-Community Hub in place to support 
our most vulnerable residents with 
food and medical supplies 
-Temporary housing supported 
accommodation. 

 
-Work with Local Strategic Partnership to 
identify local emerging needs  
-Review of grants to further support the 
needs of the community  
-Deliver agreed communications plan and 
update/amend as needed  

Resources BR06 Anxiety and 
Stress  

BR12 Welfare 
 

CR05 Duty of Care 
 

P
age 118



Page 27 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

services   -Crisis communication plan in place -
Webpage updated 

-EST hub responding to requirements of 
CEV residents depending on tier status, 
and also referrals to non-CEV residents 
needing support with food, social 
befriending, financial hardship.  
-EST hub also leading implementation of 
Covid Winter Food Grant from Dec 20 – 
March 21. New communications delivered.   

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CV20 - Local Businesses 
The pandemic may bring about an 
economic downturn, resulting in 
business no longer being able to 
operate in Enfield.   

 
-Grants / Business rates relief 
-Learn from and build upon the 
Business Portal, set up during 
COVID-19 to become a go to space 
for Enfield businesses 
-Gather data and insight to support 
businesses now and in the future 
-Create a space for small businesses 
to possibly highlight council support 
and share a forum for business 
interaction 

 
-Liaison with Heads of Service for 
Economic Development, Customer 
Experience and Commercial to build upon 
existing Business Portal  
-Engage with businesses to ask what they 
need now and in the future for Information, 
Advice and Guidance, including grant and 
bid opportunities.  
-Business portal for administration of 
grants run by Resources – all working well)   

Place BR14 Local 
Businesses  

CR02 Failure to 
maximise income  

CR06 Customer 
Demand  

CV21 - Unaffordable and 
inaccessible space to trade and 
work from 
Bedroom and small businesses may 
find it difficult and expensive to find 
fledgling accommodation and 
employees may want to work 
elsewhere, adopting the remote 
working culture further - and leading 
to vacant spaces and buildings   

 
-Good growth fund at Fore Street 
Library an example of future design  
-Seize opportunities to create 
infrastructure including access to 
strong wi-fi from wherever, whereby 
Enfield and neighbouring residents 
alongside LBE employees can work 
elsewhere and stay local. Thus, 
benefitting the local economy from 
disposable income spend and 
facilitate collaborative working. 

 
-Use Fore Street Library and other builds 
as prototype modelling and design in 
keeping council properties purposeful, 
flexible and relevant to Enfield business  
-Growth in Enfield economy and 
prosperity, building upon its industrial and 
electrical manufacturing history to a 
modern, flexible and affordable place of 
working for ICT, media, creative and 
mediacultural businesses  
-Support empty shop and spaces for 
fledgling businesses make their way into 
the high street gradually, tend to be pop up 
and different variety to high street retailers 
offering diversity and interest into the high 
street   

Place    

CV22 - Rise in unemployment 
DWP has reported that 950,000 
new claims for universal credit were 
made between 16 and 31 March, 

 
-Support employers with finding the 
right workforce, trained and ready and 
plug gaps in specialised industries 
-Libraries already work with partners 

 
-Build upon successes and make Enfield 
Council a hub for supporting Enfield 
workforce not only for the Council but for 
surrounding businesses  

Place CR02 Failure to 
maximise income  

CR05 Duty of Care 
 

P
age 119



Page 28 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

suggesting that a sharp rise in 
unemployment has already taken 
place (although some of these 
claims will also relate to people 
experiencing a temporary drop in 
income without having lost their job 
or closed their business).   

such as Maximus, DWP, JC+, THFC 
etc to run job fairs, training of NEETS, 
CV writing and a variety of job clubs 
-Council can increase apprentices 
and work placements especially 
keeping workforce diverse such as 
finding employment for adults with 
learning disabilities, can advise 
businesses on job carving etc 
-Increase training and coaching for 
young people such as STEM, robotics 
and Logistics learning -Support 
residents and businesses to diversify 
and review transferable skillsets 
-Learn from COVID-19 agile 
employment procedures for residents 
at risk or who have lost employment 
through COVID-19 gaining access to 
Enfield Council roles 

-Learn from COVID-19 agile employment 
procedures for residents at risk or who 
have lost employment through COVID-19 
gaining access to Enfield Council roles  
-Only high as access to physical spaces to 
conduct support are closed. However, 
solution over a medium term could be 
virtual interviews, webinars etc  
-Enfield vacancies are advertised on the 
council’s website  
-Economic Development are working the 
DWP to access the Kickstart initiative and 
working with HR to establish how this can 
be mirrored across and accessed by the 
Council.   

CR06 Customer 
Demand  

CV23 - Closure of LBE buildings 
If LBE buildings are forced to close, 
then some priority services may not 
be able to fulfil their legal 
obligations impacting on service 
delivery to residents & vulnerable 
service users and there will be no 
ability to provide face to face 
customer service in buildings such 
as Civic Centre, libraries, 
homelessness & social care service 
buildings   

 
-Overall services have adapted well to 
moving face to face services to 
online/via telephone etc. 
-ICT: ICT testing & recent increase in 
remote working has demonstrated 
that the majority of staff can work 
remotely and access the systems 
they require. See CV1&4 for further 
details. Registrars Safe & Connected 
and Refuse & Fleet services can now 
work remotely (software & hardware 
compatible). 
-Libraries: Libraries have shut, 
moving as many services online as 
possible -Emergency Planning: All 
Business Continuity Plans have been 
reviewed and at present all up to 
date. 
-Community Hub: Hub set up with 
dedicated telephone support line & 
CRM system, online presence with 

 
-Emergency Planning: Named officer to 
contact officers when Business Continuity 
Plans are nearing review dates.  
-ICT - Impact has been reduced as ICT 
provision is such that loss of ICT at this 
juncture given the mitigating actions now in 
place would have a reduced impact on the 
overall risk. Stable support in place for 
remote working. (MS) Any issues being 
reviewed as part of day to day support, 
treating remote working as normal.  
-Libraries are now open with restricted 
services but also includes face to face 
customer support  
-EST Hub continues to support CEV and 
other residents struggling with food, 
financial hardship and social isolation, and 
the occasional emergency delivery. Ready 
to support tier 3 if needed.   

Resources CR08 Business 
Continuity  

P
age 120



Page 29 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

online form, call centre team, food 
distribution logistics & prescription 
delivery support to most vulnerable & 
shielded residents. Needs are being 
met. Costs are being incorporated 
into MHCLG reporting (Shielded and 
Non-Shielded Vulnerable) 

CV24 - Regeneration and housing 
programmes 
The pandemic is bringing about an 
economic downturn, which could 
lead to an inability to deliver the 
Council’s ambitious regeneration 
and housing programmes.   

 
-Development and Regeneration 
Board reviewing progress with 
schemes monthly 
-Ongoing review and monitoring by 
project managers. 
-Place procurement board monitoring 
major development/regen suppliers 
and partners 

 
-Proposals for a Registered Provider 
framework to provide a way to engage a 
wider group of partners in opportunities – 
including if schemes stall – being put into 
place although will take a year. 
-Affordable Housing Providers (AHP) 
programme 2021/26 currently considering 
bids. 
-Lobbying and seeking out opportunities 
for regeneration funding which may not be 
included in the AHP programme 

Place CR11 Housing 
 

CR12 Major Capital 
Projects  

CV25 - Emergency repairs and 
health and safety compliance in 
council housing 
If there are infrastructure failures 
like power during the crisis and 
suppliers are not in a position to 
carry out repairs, then Council 
Housing tenants and vulnerable 
residents could be left without 
lighting, heating, means of access 
etc. which could lead to further 
burden on emergency services and 
other Council services in the short 
term   

 
-In house workforce provides 
resilience, government guidance in 
place providing clarity over means of 
safe access to homes. 
-Challenges with recruiting suitable 
technical staff being reviewed with HR 

 
-Preparations underway to prepare for 
winter in the event of a second spike and 
responding to the higher impact of power 
and component failures.  
-Lift replacement and planned programme 
underway. 

Place CR11 Housing 
 

CR12 Major Capital 
Projects  

CV26 - Excess Death 
If death rates increase dramatically, 
then there will not be enough 
storage space in the borough for the 
bodies prior to cremation/burial 
posing a health & safety risk to 
residents.   

 
 
-Joint plan with LB Haringey for 
excess death  
-A MHCLG portacabin body storage 
unit is in place to create additional 
capacity at Haringey for Enfield (and 

 
-Haringey and Enfield excess mortality 
groups will be reinstated when needed. 
-London temporary body storage regional 
hubs will be stood up again if triggered by 
increased excess deaths and reduction of 
available body storage in LAs and NHS 
mortuaries  

Place CR05 Duty of Care 
 

CR09 Emergency 
Incident  

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

P
age 121



Page 30 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

becomes a shared London resource if 
needed).  
-NCL excess mortality group is 
meeting as needed during the second 
wave  
-In addition, the London Resilience 
Group (MMG) is closely monitoring 
the death rate and the body storage 
capacity in London amongst LAs, 
NHS and funeral directors.  
-All London Borough have agreed and 
funded the regional temporary body 
storage hubs for London if needed 
(the hubs are on standby if needed)  
-Enfield have measures in place 
should we need to increase the 
number of funerals for wave 2 
Registrars have measures in place 
should they need to increase capacity 
for death registration for wave 2   

-Have plans and ability to scale up burials 
capacity and death registration for second 
wave as needed.  
-Have created additional burial space at 
both Edmonton and Southgate Cemeteries 
which is nearing completion.   

CV27 - High & fast infection rates 
If infection rates follow worst case 
scenario predictions, then the 
outbreak could lead to a significant 
number of people being infected 
within a short period of time. This 
could lead to severe consequences 
including: deaths to vulnerable 
people, overload on Adult Social 
Care service, severe disruptions to 
services and staff shortages (see 
CO2)   

 
-Flu plan tested in a multi-agency 
exercise last year -Following & 
enacting central government advice to 
flatten infection curve as quickly as 
possible. 
-COVID-19 emergency planning now 
active, Bronze, Silver & Gold all live, 
business continuity plans being 
reviewed by all services 
-All service leads are required to 
complete a BCM Situation Report and 
monitor the service on a daily basis 
and amend SitRep where changes to 
service delivery occur. 
-All Directors to supply an update 
every day on to a SharePoint 
document and feedback on any 
issues at Silver Meetings to ensure 
any issues are captured and dealt 
with before they become any issue. 

 
-All teams have undertaken 'look back' 
exercises which has been feedback to 
Gold. Local Outbreak Control Plan has 
been written and published on the Council 
website.  
-Online scenario planning held with 
schools -Seminar held with Headteachers  
-Letter sent to all Enfield households  
-Social media being used to communicate 
messages  
-Cllrs have produced videos in non-English 
languages  
-PH and Comms working to promote NHS 
app when launched  
-Continuing work with the Faith Forum  
-LBE Test Track and Trace now live 
-Lateral Flow Device testing starting Dec 
2020   

People BR13 Additional 
care requirements  

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

P
age 122



Page 31 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

CV28 - Community Shielding Hub 
& volunteer support 
If the number of volunteers reduce 
significantly as lockdown eases and 
volunteers return to their jobs, then 
delivery of services which are 
currently dependent on volunteers 
for Shielded and Non-Shielded 
Vulnerable residents will need to be 
revised/re-designed to 
accommodate the decrease in 
resources available to the Hub.   

 
-Recovery phase Gold meeting took 
place on 05/06/20 including 
Community Shielding Hub to discuss 
mitigating actions and plan for 
recovery phase. 

 
-Understand what post-lockdown support 
requirements are for Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable (CEV) and Non-CEV 
Vulnerable  
-Enfield Voluntary Action (EVA) will 
provide volunteers if needed, currently 
completing the processes for this to work   

Resources BR12 Welfare 
 

CR05 Duty of Care 
 

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CV29 - Lockdown/ Quarantine 
If restrictions on movement increase 
within and outside of London 
resulting in lockdown or 
quarantines, then it will be difficult to 
deliver essential services and staff 
will not be able to move around the 
Borough/outside of London   

 
-Library based services which suit 
online have been moved to digital 
accordingly. 
-Community Hub: Hub set up with 
dedicated telephone support line & 
CRM system, online presence, call 
centre team, food distribution logistics 
& prescription delivery support to 
most vulnerable & shielded residents 
-Critical services previously requiring 
face to face interactions have been 
moved to online/telephone with 
suitable work arounds to ensure 
continued service provision during 
crisis. 
-Transport remains in place and 
Council key workers have received 
letter authorising their continued 
circulation around the Borough along 
with ID card provision 

 
-Work with Emergency Services partners 
to ensure Council services can still be 
delivered during lockdown/quarantine. This 
will be kept under review and monitored 
via Silver group.  
-Sub-regional group established to provide 
consistency across NCL area, includes 
Met Police with Borough Commander in 
attendance and London Councils.  
-Community Testing Programme group 
being established to plan for mass testing 
across the borough if required.   

Chief Executives CR02 Failure to 
maximise income  

CR08 Business 
Continuity  

CV30 - Prolonged school 
closures 
If schools close for a number of 
months, then LBE staff with children 
may not be able to work due to lack 
of childcare which will impact on the 
organisation's staff capacity to 

 
-All children came back to school in 
September and have been in school 
for the term and this will continue in 
the spring term. Detailed risk 
assessments are in place to ensure 
compliance with COVID guidance.  
-Some schools have had to close for 

 
-Support is to continue to be provided by 
education, HR and public health to support 
headteachers with decision making. 
Weekly meetings are held with 
headteacher reps and also monthly 
briefings for headteachers. There are 
regular comms with schools through the 

People CR05 Duty of Care 
 

P
age 123



Page 32 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Description (Cause & Effect of 
Risk) 

Original 
Risk 

Existing Risk Mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead Department Linked Risks Score 

deliver essential services.   periods of up to 2 weeks mainly due 
to lack of staff and this is likely to 
continue but there have been no 
lengthy schools’ closures – children 
switch to remote learning if they are 
not in school.   

Director and through the hub   

CV31 - Tier Changes 
If London changes Tier, there will 
be restrictions on movement within 
and outside of the Borough making 
it difficult to deliver essential 
services.   

 
- Staff have been issued with letters 
from the Chief Executive identifying 
them as critical workers to enable 
travel to work for essential services to 
be maintained. This will also enable 
childcare/ schooling places to be 
secured to further enable essential 
workers to attend workplace 

 
- Work with Emergency Services partners 
to ensure Council services can still be 
delivered whilst London is in Tier 3.  
-This will be kept under review and 
monitored via Silver group  
- All Directors have been requested to 
complete a service impact of 
Enfield/London going into Tier 3   

Chief Executives BR12 Welfare 
 

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CV32a - Second wave Care 
Homes/supported living schemes 
If there is a “second wave” of Covid 
19, this will result in significant 
increased risk to Enfield’s care 
home/supported living scheme 
residents   

 
-Infection control training delivered 
with refresh training available  
-No admissions for C19 positive 
people  
-85 NCL step up/step down beds 
secured for C19 positive people 
where residential/nursing care 
needed Regular visiting advice 
developed and distributed to Care 
homes   

 
-This will be kept under review and 
monitored via HASC Bronze Group & 
Senior Management Team  
-Care homes contacted x 3 weekly to 
monitor infection rates and deaths  
-Working with PH registrars good practice 
guidance to be distributed  
-Phase 2 government infection control 
funding to be distributed  
-Continue to regularly monitor use of new 
rapid flow testing and roll out of 
vaccination programme expected in 
January 21  
  

Place BR12 Welfare 
 

CR02 Failure to 
maximise income  

CR09 Emergency 
Incident  

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CV32b - Second wave DayCare 
If there is a “second wave” of Covid 
19, this will result in significant risk 
to day care returners.   

 
-Daycare project group in place  
-Regular Testing capacity in place  
-Bubbles created with limited number 
of returners in phase 1 Individual risk 
assessments done for highest priority 
cases including impact on 
carers/family where service cannot 
resume or continue   

 
-This will be kept under review and 
monitored via HASC Bronze group and the 
Senior Management Team  
Continue to monitor availability of testing 
and lab capacity to support the Daycare 
project. Phase 1 continues with access to 
PCR and LFD testing capacity for a move 
to Phase 2 of reopening in the new year.   

Place BR12 Welfare 
 

CR02 Failure to 
maximise income  

CR09 Emergency 
Incident  

CR10 Health & 
Safety  

 
 

P
age 124



Page 33 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Appendix C - Brexit Risk Register 
 

Key to Symbols        Key to Linked Risks 
 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 
Level 

Risk 
Response 

Monitoring Icon  Linked 
Risk 

Risk Register 

1-8 Low Accept Six Monthly 
 

 CR Corporate Risk Register 

9-15 Medium Mitigate Quarterly 
 

 CV Covid-19 Risk Register 

16-25 High Escalate Monthly 
 

 BR Brexit Risk Register 

 
 
 
Risk Title & Description Original 

Risk 
Existing risk mitigations Current 

Risk 
Further Planned Actions Lead 

Department 
Update Linked Risks Score 

BR01 - Fuel Shortage 

Fuel shortage caused by 
panic buying and/or delays 
to supply, causes disruption 
to key services   

 
Fuel reserves held with 
regular deliveries to keep 
Fuel tanks topped up. 
Operational contingency 
plans in place. National and 
local Fuel plans in place 

 
Plans to prioritise operations/ 
essential services in place. 
Continue to monitor situation 
via Single Point of Contact 
network to regional/national 
guidance 

CEX Actions ongoing CR08 Business 
Continuity  

CR09 Emergency 
Incident  

CV17 Fuel 
Shortage  

BR02 - Medicine and 
Supplies Shortages 
Delay in access to 
medicines and/or shortage 
of supply may result in 
increased costs and 
disruption in service 
(including vaccinations and 
PPE) and increased poor 
health (including Covid)   

 
NHS national co-ordination 
centre leading on this issue 
and will update when 
information becomes 
available. Overview of flu 
vaccination availability by 
HWB. Panel is attended by 
North Middlesex Hospital 
representative 

 
Further updates to be brought 
back to the meeting as 
information becomes 
available. NHS 
Representatives: Chase 
Farm, NCL CCG (Clinical 
Commissioning Group), 
Barnet, Enfield and Haringey 
Mental Health (BEHMHT), 
North Middlesex Hospital 
invited to attend 

People Actions ongoing. Further details 
added to risk description. -More 
formalised discussions with NHS 
representatives have been 
ongoing. 

CR05 Duty of 
Care  

CR13 Supply 
Chain/Contract 
management 

 

CV11 Supply 
Shortages  

CV12 Increased 
demand for Social 
Care services 

 

BR03 - Civil Unrest 
Uncertainty may cause 
panic buying, riots and 
disturbance   

 
Existing emergency plan in 
place. Gold command in 
place. 

 
Lead officers to continue to 
monitor and disseminate 
information from relevant 
agencies. 

People Risk rating increased due to current 
tensions 

CR05 Duty of 
Care  

CR18 Civil unrest 
 

P
age 125



Page 34 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department 

Update Linked Risks Score 

CV18 Civil Unrest 
 

BR04 - Staffing 
Uncertainty of the Brexit 
process may lead to staff 
disruption/absences.   

 
Unlikely to see any issues 
until 2020. No concerns 
raised by staff or 
management. 

 
No further actions planned, 
Risk currently at an 
acceptable level 

CEX; People No change CR15 Staffing 
 

CV03 Loss of 
Staff  

BR05 - Funding in the 
First Quarter post Brexit 
Temporary delay on EU 
direct funding/grants 
scheduled to be received in 
first quarter post Brexit.   

 
Exposure currently at a very 
low level with no disruption 
expected 

 
No further actions planned, 
Risk currently at an 
acceptable level 

Resources No change CR01 Budget 
Management  

CR02 Failure to 
maximise income  

CV05 Financial 
Impact on Income  

BR06 - Anxiety and 
Stress 
Increased levels of anxiety 
and stress amongst 
population and staff may 
lead to an increase in 
demand on services.   

 
Crisis communication plan in 
place. Webpage updated.  

Deliver agreed 
communications plan and 
update/amend as needed 

CEX Actions ongoing CR10 Health & 
Safety  

CR15 Staffing 
 

CV02 Mental 
Health and 
Wellbeing of staff 

 

CV19 Health and 
Wellbeing of 
community 

 

BR07 - Community Offer 
Inadequate provisions 
and/or communications by 
LBE regarding services 
offered to facilitate 
transition post Brexit for EU 
residents of the Borough   

 
Council has agreed to 
provide some community 
support via its 4 flagship 
libraries. LBE & Citizens 
Advice Bureau to deliver joint 
community offer services to 
local people. Funding for 
Citizens Advice Bureau 
agreed on 9 April 2019 to 
enhance services to local 
people. 

 
Citizens Advice Bureau offer 
at our flagship libraries being 
promoted as part of our 
overall Brexit information 
campaign. Enfield Town and 
Palmers Green are in a good 
position, additional work 
required with Edmonton 
Green and Ordnance Road 
libraries. 

Resources Actions ongoing CR06 Customer 
Demand  

BR08 - Supply Chain 
Disruption to supply chain 
may cause adverse effects 

 
Analysis of existing 
emergency suppliers 
identified no issues. Will 

 
Extensive exercise being 
carried out on critical 
suppliers to identify any 

CEX Existing strategies that have been 
put into place have now been noted 

CR13 Supply 
Chain/Contract 
management 

 

P
age 126



Page 35 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department 

Update Linked Risks Score 

on delivery of services & 
essential equipment eg 
PPE and/or increased 
costs.   

continue to maintain at least 
12 weeks of PPE stock to 
mitigate against possible 
future supply shortages. 

potential issues CV09 Failure of 
suppliers  

CV11 Supply 
Shortages  

CV15 Supply of 
PPE  

BR09 - Compliance of 
Data and Applications 
Data transfers between the 
UK and EU / US may not 
be legal or compliant and 
could be open to challenge.   

 
Data Protection Officer in 
place. Regulatory framework 
will be unaffected. All data 
and applications held by 
existing suppliers is hosted in 
the UK, or is under contracts 
relying on standard 
contractual clauses which will 
continue to be valid post-
Brexit. All new cloud based 
data will be hosted on UK 
servers. 

 
Discussion ongoing to 
migrate existing cloud based 
data to UK servers. 

CEX; 
Resources 

Actions ongoing CR04 Information 
Governance  

BR11 - Housing checks 
and immigration right to 
rent 
Impact of updated 
guidance.   

 
  

 
Housing representative to be 
invited to future meeting 

Place To be discussed further. CR11 Housing 
 

BR12 - Welfare 
Increased costs and supply 
shortages may lead to a fall 
in the standard of welfare, 
including food insecurity & 
fuel poverty,   

 
Regular donations made by 
the Council to the food banks. 
Monitor homelessness 
applications closely. 

 
Additional funds will be made 
available to local food banks 
if necessary. 

Resources To be discussed further. CR05 Duty of 
Care  

CR06 Customer 
Demand  

CV06 Financial 
Impact of 
Additional 
Expenditure 

 

CV19 Health and 
Wellbeing of 
community 

 

CV31 TIer 
changes  

P
age 127



Page 36 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department 

Update Linked Risks Score 

CV32 Second 
Wave  

CV32a Second 
wave Care 
Homes/supported 
living schemes 

 

CV32b Second 
wave DayCare  

CV28 Community 
Shielding Hub & 
volunteer support 

 

BR13 - Additional care 
requirements 
There may be increased 
health care costs due to 
elderly British nationals 
returning to the UK who 
require more support.   

 
  

 
  People To be discussed further. CR01 Budget 

Management  

CV13 
Sustainability of 
interventions 

 

CR05 Duty of 
Care  

CR06 Customer 
Demand  

CV06 Financial 
Impact of 
Additional 
Expenditure 

 

CV12 Increased 
demand for Social 
Care services 

 

CV14 
Sustainability of 
Social Care 
provider markets 

 

CV27 High & fast 
infection rates  

BR14 - Local Businesses 
 

Grants / Business rates relief. 
 

Create a space for small Resources New risk identified and added to CR02 Failure to 
 

P
age 128



Page 37 of 37 

CE 2020/025 
 

Risk Title & Description Original 
Risk 

Existing risk mitigations Current 
Risk 

Further Planned Actions Lead 
Department 

Update Linked Risks Score 

Brexit may compound the 
economic effects of Covid-
19, resulting in business no 
longer being able to 
operate in Enfield.   

-Translate the learnings and 
build upon the Business 
Portal set up due to Covid-19 
to become a go to space for 
Enfield businesses. 

businesses to possibly 
highlight council support and 
share a forum for business 
interaction. -Gather data and 
insight to support businesses 
now and in the future. 

register maximise income 

CV05 Financial 
Impact on Income  

CR06 Customer 
Demand  

CV20 Local 
Businesses  

 

 

P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

  
London Borough of Enfield 

 
General Purposes Committee 
 
14 January 2021 
 

 
Subject:   Audit and Risk Management Service Progress 

Update 
 
Cabinet Member:   N/A 
Executive Director:  Ian Davis, Chief Executive 
   
Key Decision:   N/A 
 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1.  The Audit and Risk Management Service Progress Update Report (Annex A) 

summarises: 
 

- the results of the work that the Audit and Risk Management Service has 
undertaken during the period 1 April 2020 to 17 December 2020 
 
- the continued work of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management, in 
collaboration with the internal Assurance Board, to target limited audit 
resources at the highest priority Corporate and Schools’ services 

 
2. Progress has been made in delivering the 2020/21 Internal Audit plan, with 

90% of reviews having commenced. Of these, 34% have been finalised. This 
compares to 89% commencement and 31% completion in December 2019. 
Work on starting the 2020/21 audit plan was delayed due to the impacts of 
Covid-19. 

 
3. Whilst we continue to make progress in delivering the plan, it should be noted 

that a risk remains of not having sufficient assurance work on which to base 
the annual Head of Internal Audit opinion. This is being reported to, and 
monitored by, the Assurance Board. We will continue to update the 
Committee on this risk.  In view of the current progress rate, we are optimistic 
this risk won’t materialise. 

 
4. Since the audit plan was agreed by the General Purposes Committee in July 

2020, 16 audits have been cancelled and three further audits have been 
added to the plan.  

 
5. 17 audits have been completed since the start of the year. 11 were grant 

certifications or management letters and therefore an assurance opinion was 
not given. Of the six remaining audits, one was given Substantial assurance, 
three Reasonable assurance, and two Limited assurance. 

 

Page 131 Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

 
6. With the support of the Assurance Board, there has been a substantial 

improvement in the implementation of agreed actions over recent months. 
Tracking of agreed actions arising from internal audit work has confirmed that 
as at 17 December 2020, the implementation rate for high risk actions (on a 
12 month rolling basis) is 83% and for medium risk actions is 85%. A 
summary of overdue high risk and medium risk audit actions at 17 December 
2020 is also presented.  

 
7. Following successful Risk Management training in October 2020, a 

programme of Risk Management training is being developed.  To improve the 
visibility and reporting of risks across the Council, an initiative to update all 
Departmental, Director and Service risk registers and to load these onto 
Pentana, a risk management and performance reporting tool, is currently 
being undertaken. 

 
Proposal 
 
8. The General Purposes Committee is requested to: 
 

- note the work completed by the Audit and Risk Management Service 
during the period 1 April 2020 to 17 December 2020 and the key themes 
and outcomes arising from this work 

 
- provide feedback on the contents of this report 

 
Reason for Proposal 

 
9. In line with the Council’s Internal Audit Charter which is based on the 

requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the Head 
of Internal Audit and Risk Management has a responsibility to regularly 
update the General Purposes Committee on the work of the Audit and Risk 
Management Service through periodic and annual reports. 

 
Relevance to the Council’s Plan 
 
Good Homes in Well-Connected Neighbourhoods 
 
10. An effective Audit and Risk Management Service helps to provide assurance 

over any risks that might adversely affect the delivery of good homes in well- 
connected neighbourhoods. 

 
 Safe, Healthy and Confident Communities 

 
11. An effective Audit and Risk Management Service is an essential management 

tool which will help the Council achieve its objectives to sustain safe, healthy 
and confident communities. 

 
 An Economy that Works for Everyone 
 

12. An effective Audit and Risk Management Service will help the Council 
achieve its objectives in building a local economy that works for everyone. 

Page 132



Page 3 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

 
Background 
 
13. In line with the Council’s Internal Audit Charter which is based on the 

requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the Head 
of Internal Audit and Risk Management has a responsibility to regularly 
update the General Purposes Committee on the work of the Audit and Risk 
Management Service through periodic and annual reports.   

 
14. These reports should include details of audit activities with significant findings 

along with any relevant recommendation. Periodic information on the status of 
the annual audit plan should also be included.   

 
15. The Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 was submitted to and agreed by the 

General Purposes Committee on 23 July 2020. 

 
16. This report summarises the work completed by the Audit and Risk 

Management Service between 1 April 2020 and 17 December 2020. 
 

 
Main Considerations for the Council 
 
17. Any large complex organisation needs to have a well-established and 

systematic risk management framework in place to identify and mitigate risks 
it may face. 

 
18. The Audit and Risk Management Service supports management in the 

identification and mitigation of risks as part of its work. 
  
Safeguarding Implications 
 
19. There are no safeguarding implications arising directly from this update from 

the Audit and Risk Management Service. 
 
Public Health Implications 
 
20. Whilst the risk registers are produced to identify risks to Public Health (among 

other issues) and enable preventative action to be undertaken, there are no 
Public Health implications arising directly from this update from the Audit and 
Risk Management Service. 

 
Equalities Impact of the Proposal  
 
21. Corporate advice has been sought regarding equalities and an agreement 

has been reached that it is not relevant or proportionate to carry out an 
equalities impact assessment/analysis for this report. 

 
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
 
22. There are no environmental and Climate Change considerations arising 

directly from this update from the Audit and Risk Management Service. 
However, Climate Change has been identified in the 2020/21 Audit Plan, 

Page 133



Page 4 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

which recognises the risk posed and the priority that climate action is now 
being given within the Council. 

 
 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
 
23. Any large complex organisation needs to have a well-established and 

systematic risk management framework in place to identify and mitigate risks 
it may face. 

 
 
24. The Audit and Risk Management Service supports management in the 

identification and mitigation of risks as part of its work and therefore, if this 
work is not carried out, reviewed and followed up, the Council faces the risk of 
legal, financial and reputational loss. 

 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will 
be taken to manage these risks 
 
25. N/A 
 
 
Financial Implications 
 
26. Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that every local 

authority in England and Wales should “make arrangements for the proper 
administration of their financial affairs”.  The Chief Finance Officer (Section 
151 Officer) in a local authority must lead the promotion and delivery, by the 
whole authority, of good financial management so that public money is 
safeguarded at all times and used appropriately, economically, efficiently, and 
effectively.  The role of the Section 151 includes ensuring that the systems 
and processes for financial administration, financial control and protection of 
the authority’s resources and assets are designed in conformity with 
appropriate ethical standards and monitor their continuing effectiveness in 
practice. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (England and Wales), 
requires that a ‘relevant body shall maintain an adequate and effective 
system of internal audit of its accounting records and its system of internal 
control’.  

 
27. The role of audit supports this by undertaking a review of the controls in 

place, the Internal Audit plan sets out in partnership to achieve this by: 
 
28. Ensuring that the authority puts in place effective internal financial controls 

covering codified guidance, budgetary systems, supervision, management 
review and monitoring, physical safeguards, segregation of duties, accounting 
procedures, information systems and authorisation and approval processes.  

 
29. Ensuring that these controls are an integral part of the authority’s underlying 

framework of corporate governance and that they are reflected in its local 
code. 

 

Page 134



Page 5 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

30. In this context, the Internal Audit plan is developed in partnership with the 
wider organisation, seeking to focus on areas of the greatest risk in order to 
ensure that the appropriate controls are in place and where controls are found 
to be inadequate plans to address these are implemented.     
 

Legal Implications 
  

31. The Council’s chief finance officer (the ‘Section 151 officer’ – section 151 
Local Government Act 1972) has statutory status and is responsible for 
financial administration. The chief finance officer is also under a statutory duty 
to issue a formal report if s/he believes that the Council is unable to set or 
maintain a balanced budget (the ‘section 114 report’ (section 114 Local 
Government Finance Act 1988). 

32. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the ‘2015 Regulations’) places an 
obligation on local authorities to maintain a system of internal audit whereby 
it: 

(a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of 
its aims and objectives; 

(b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority 
is effective; and 

(c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

33. The internal audit service must be effective in order to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards or guidance. 

34. Each financial year the council must conduct a review of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control required by regulation and prepare an Annual 
Governance Statement. 

35. This report addresses the statutory obligations for local audit processes in 
compliance with the 2015 Regulations. 

 
Workforce Implications 
 
36. There are no workforce implications arising directly from this update from the 

Audit and Risk Management Service. 
 
 
Property Implications 
 
37. There are no property implications arising directly from this update from the 

Audit and Risk Management Service 
 

 
Other Implications 

 
38. N/A 
 

Page 135



Page 6 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

 
 
Options Considered 
 
39. Given the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, no 

other options were considered. 
 
Conclusions 
 
40. The General Purposes Committee is requested to: 
 

- note the work completed by the Audit and Risk Management Service 
during the period 1 April 2020 to 17 December 2020 and the key 
themes and outcomes arising from this work 

 
- provide feedback on the contents of this report 
 

 
 

 

Report Author:    Gemma Young 
  Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
  Gemma.Young@Enfield.gov.uk 
  Tel: 07900 168938 
 
Date of report: 4 January 2021        
 
Appendices 
 
Annex A:  Audit and Risk Management Service Progress Update 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 136



Page 7 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Annex A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Audit and Risk Management Service 
Progress Update 
December 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 137



Page 8 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

 
Internal Audit  
 
During the period 1 April 2020 to 17 December 2020, the Internal Audit team has 
commenced 45 assignments (90% of the current plan) of which 17 (34%) have been 
completed.  For the same period in 2019, 54 audits (89%) had commenced and 25 
(31%) had been completed.  
 
The five audits not started for 2020/21are all grant certifications, which are not yet due. 
 
The following chart summarises the 2020/21 progress compared to 2019/20: 
 
 
Chart 1: 2020/21 Internal Audit Progress vs 2019/20 
 
 

                
 

 
Due to the impacts of Covid-19, the audit plan was started later this year than in 
2019/20.  The time was spent finalising 2019/20 audits, updating our schools’ work 
programme and undertaking training and, when possible, planning 2020/21 audits.  
 
Whilst we continue to make progress in delivering the plan, it should be noted that a risk 
remains of not having sufficient assurance work on which to base the annual Head of 
Internal Audit opinion. This is being reported to, and monitored by, the Assurance Board 
and we will continue to update the Committee on this risk.  In view of the current rate of 
progress, we are optimistic that this risk won’t materialise.  

 
Changes to the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan 

 
Since internal audit plan was approved by the General Purposes Committee in July 
2020, 16 audits have been cancelled and three audits have been added. 

 
The cancelled audits are: 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



Page 9 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

 
Table 1:  Cancelled Audits 
 

Department  Audit  Reason for Cancellation  

Cross Cutting Procurement Social Value Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th November. 

Cross Cutting Organisational Development Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th November. 

Chief Executive Energetik Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th November. 

Chief Executive
   

Members’ Ethics Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th 
November. 

Resources Web content Accessibility Guidelines 2.1 
(WCAG 2.1) 

Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th November. 

Resources Digitalisation Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th 
November. 

People Disproportionality in Out of Court 
Disposals 

Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th 
November. 

People St Paul’s CE Primary School Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th 
November. 

People St Ignatius College Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th 
November. 

People  Bush Hill Park Primary School Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th November. 

Place  Capital Works and Building Control  Agreed with management to 
defer to 2021/22. Interim 
assurance will be presented to 
the Assurance Board during 
2020/21. 

Place Housing Compliance - Safety Checks 
and Management of Lift Maintenance  

Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th 
November. 

Place Meridian Water – Contract Management Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th November. 

Place Housing repairs and maintenance Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th November. 

Place Local Transport Capital Funding   

 

No longer a requirement for the 
grant to be audited 

LATC HGL – Lettings Agency Defer to 2021/22. Agreed at 
Assurance Board 6th 
November. 

Page 139



Page 10 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

 
 

The additional audits are: 
 
Table 2: Additional Audits 
 

Department  Audit  

Resources  Enfield Stands Together  

Resources Consultants Payments Review 

People   Enfield County School for Girls – Schools Direct Grant Certification  

 
 
A revised version of the audit plan is attached at Appendix A. 

 
Completed Audits 
 
17 audits have been completed so far this year and these are summarised below: 

 
Table 3:  Completed Audits at 17 December 2020 

 

Department Title Assurance Level 

People Unregulated Placements LIMITED 

People Mental Health – AMHP Service LIMITED 

Resources Council Tax REASONABLE 

People - Schools Starks Field Primary School REASONABLE 

Resources National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) REASONABLE 

LATC HGL – Property Services Purchasing SUBSTANTIAL 

Cross Cutting Adult Social Care/Financial Assessments 
- Follow Up 

N/A – Management 
Letter 

Chief Executive’s Mayor’s Accounts N/A – Management 
Letter 

Place BEGIN Grant N/A- Grant Certification 

Place Bus Service Operators Grant N/A- Grant Certification 

People Troubled Families Grant - June N/A – Grant Certification 

People Troubled Families Grant - July N/A – Grant Certification 

People Troubled Families Grant - September N/A – Grant Certification 

People Troubled Families Grant - October N/A – Grant Certification 

Resources Enfield Stands Together – Just Giving N/A – Management 
Letter 

Resources IT Software Procurement N/A – Management 
Letter 

Resources Consultants Payments Review 
N/A – Management 
Letter 

 
One audit with a Limited assurance opinion has been issued since the last meeting. The 
following summary from the audit report briefly explains the reasoning behind the Limited 
assurance opinion: 
 

Page 140



Page 11 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Mental Health – AMHP Service 
 
Generally, the control environment within the AMHP Service was operating well, but 
some control weaknesses were identified. Due to the nature of the Service and the four 
medium risks highlighted, this resulted in an overall Limited assurance opinion.  
 
This review identified four medium risk and three low risk findings.   
 
The following medium risk findings were identified:   
 

 Although data sharing agreements were found to be in place, we were unable to 
determine whether they were compatible with the arrangements outlined in 
the Enfield Strategic Partnership information sharing protocol. This specific protocol 
was referred to in an out of date Section 75 Agreement, signed in 2016, to enable 
to AMHP Service to share confidential information with other agencies securely.  

 The absence of an up to date, complete and consistent AMHP Service ‘Practice 
Procedures and Guidance Protocol’ manual.   

 Improvements are required to the approval and re-approval processes, including 
ensuring a formal record is held to evidence panel decision making.  

 Referral records that are maintained do not evidence 
that the statutory requirement for acknowledging referrals within four hours is being 
met and there is inconsistency in how the reading of patients’ rights is recorded.  

 
 
Corporate Audit Actions Implementation 

 
The Internal Audit and Risk Management teams are responsible for tracking managers’ 
progress with the implementation of internal audit actions.   
 
As at 17 December 2020, the implementation rate (12 month rolling basis) for high risk 
actions is 83% and for medium risk actions is 85%. 
 
Of the 47 actions identified from the work of Internal Audit on Corporate audits that 
remained open, 10 high risk and 22 medium risk actions were not fully implemented by 
their original due date and are, therefore, classified as overdue.  Overdue actions are 
shown by the solid coloured part in the graph below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 141



Page 12 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Chart 2: Managers’ progress with implementation of agreed audit actions 

 

 
 

Details of the overdue Corporate high-risk actions are provided in Appendix B. 

 

Of the 22 medium risk overdue actions, 9 have been overdue by more than one year 
and details of these are provided in Appendix C. 
 
The Assurance Board continues to review the progress of action implementation 
including holding supplementary meetings to focus on specific areas. Outstanding 
actions are currently at the lowest level they have been in the last three years, with 
recent trends indicating an improvement in implementing actions on time.  
 

Schools’ Actions Implementation 
 
As can be seen from the following chart, schools continue to make progress with action 
implementation. Open and overdue actions have continued to reduce in the last few 
months.  
 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Chief
Executive's

People Place Resources Chief
Executive's

People Place Resources

High Risk Medium Risk

Open audit actions at 17 December 2020 

Not due

Overdue

Page 142



Page 13 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

 
 
 

 
Internal Audit Quality Assessment 
 

The performance of the Internal Audit service for 2020/21 to 17 December 2020 is 
shown in the following table: 
 
Table 4: Internal Audit Quality Assurance Measures 

 

KPI / Quality Metric Target Actual  

Days from end of fieldwork to issue of draft report 15 11 

Days from receipt of management comments to issue 
of final report 

10 4 

Level of satisfaction score with audit work 80% 95% 

% of the audit plan delivered to draft report stage  
 

95% (by 31 
March) 

38% 

 
 

Risk Management  
  

Everybody's a Risk Manager  
  
As part of our ongoing efforts to embed risk management across the Council, we 
delivered an extended virtual introductory Risk Management course (12 hour course, 
over four sessions) via an external trainer in October 2020.  We had previously run the 
course as a face to face event over 2 days in March 2020 with 18 attendees.  
  
The course was well attended with over 50 delegates from across all area of the Council. 
The trainer commented on the high level of engagement from the delegates throughout 
the course.  
  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

17 Sep 17 Oct 17 Nov 17 Dec 17 Sep 17 Oct 17 Nov 17 Dec

High Medium

Schools Open audit actions at 17 December 2020 

Not Due

Overdue

Page 143



Page 14 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

  
In light of the positive feedback received and our ongoing plans to embed Risk 
Management within the organisation, the Assurance Board has endorsed our proposal 
for the development of Risk Management training that will be rolled out for all staff. This 
will include a programme of training applicable to different levels with the Council, a 
mandatory video for new starters and more advanced training for senior officers. 
 

Offering this course to all staff will enhance the risk profile of the Council and will be 
viewed positively by insurers when they are considering renewal premiums.  To our 
knowledge no other London Council offers an extended programme such as this for all 
staff.   
 
As the Corporate, Covid-19 and Brexit Risk Registers are now well established, we are 
now ensuring robust supporting risk registers are in place.  To this, we have tasked 
leaders with updating their Department, Director and Service level risk registers and 
sending these to us by 31 December 2020.  We will then centrally collate the risk 
registers on Pentana, a risk management and performance reporting tool used by the 
Council.  This will allow greater transparency of the risks in all areas of the Council, allow 
us to provide challenge to those risk registers and improve reporting of the risks 
identified. 
 
 
 
 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 144



Page 15 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Appendix A 
 
2020/21 Audit Plan Status 

 
Department Title Audit Status 

Chief Executives Legal Planning 

Chief Executives Mayors Accounts Completed 

Chief Executives Members Ethics Deferred to 2021/22 

Chief Executives Recruitment Planning 

Chief Executives IR35 Follow Up Planning 

Chief Executives Organisational Development Deferred to 2021/22 

Chief Executives Energetik Deferred to 2021/22 

Cross Cutting Schools Financial Monitoring  Draft Report Issued 

Cross Cutting Adult Social Care/Financial Assessments - 
Follow Up 

Completed 

Cross Cutting Contract Management Follow Up Planning 

Cross Cutting Remote Working – IT Fieldwork 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – May Cancelled 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – June Completed 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – July Completed 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – August Cancelled 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – September Completed 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – October Completed 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – November Fieldwork 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – December Not started 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – January Not started 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – February Not started 

People Troubled Families Grant Claims – March Not started 

People Unregulated Placements Completed 

People Disproportionality in Out of Court Disposals Deferred to 2021/22 

People Mental Health - AMHP Service Completed 

People Eclipse Planning 

People West Grove Primary School Planning 

People Oaktree School  Draft Report Issued  

People Starks Field Primary School Completed 

People Broomfield Secondary School Fieldwork 

People George Spicer Primary School Planning 

People St Paul's CE Primary School Deferred to 2021/22 

People Hazelwood Schools Planning 

People St Ignatius College Deferred to 2021/22 

People Bush Hill Park Primary School Deferred to 2021/22 

Page 145



Page 16 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Department Title Audit Status 

People St Ignatius College and St Anne’s Catholic High 
School for Girls - Joint Procurement 

Planning 

People Enfield County School for Girls – Grant 
Certification 

Fieldwork 

Place BEGIN Grant Completed 

Place Cleaning Service Fieldwork 

Place Housing Repairs and Maintenance Deferred to 2021/22 

Place Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and 
Neighbourhood CIL 

Planning 

Place Meridian Water – HIF Planning 

Place Bus Service Operators Grant (BSOG) Completed 

Place Local Transport Capital Funding Grant No longer required 

Place Capital Works and Building Control Deferred to 2021/22 

Place Housing Compliance - Safety Checks and 
Management of Lift Maintenance 

Deferred to 2021/22 

Place Meridian Water - Procurement Strategy Planning 

Place Climate Change Planning 

Place Meridian Water – Contract Management Deferred to 2021/22 

Resources General Ledger Follow Up Planning 

Resources Pre-Paid and Purchase Cards Planning 

Resources Accounts Payable  Planning 

Resources Council Tax Completed 

Resources National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Completed 

Resources Treasury Management Fieldwork 

Resources Supplier Resilience Fieldwork 

Resources Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.1 
(WAGC 2.1) 

Deferred to 2021/22 

Resources Cloud Management – IT Fieldwork 

Resources Cyber Security – IT Planning 

Resources Digitalisation – IT Deferred to 2021/22 

Resources IT Software Procurement Completed 

Resources Local Authority Test and Trace Service Support 
Grant 

Not started 

Resources Enfield Stands Together – JustGiving Completed 

Resources Procurement Social Value Deferred to 2021/22 

Resources Consultants Payments Review Completed 

LATC HGL - Lettings Agency Deferred to 2021/22 

LATC HGL - Property Services Purchasing Completed 

 
 
 

Page 146



Page 17 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Appendix B: Overdue High Risk Actions 
 

 
Chief Executives 
 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

Equalities Policy and Action 
Plan- Governance 

a) The Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
Policy will be updated to include the 
Council’s equalities objectives prior to its 
presentation to Cabinet for approval.  
 
b) A detailed action plan will be developed 
and made available to all staff, so they are 
clear about their responsibilities in 
embedding the Equalities Act in their day 
to day duties.  
 
c) The Board will review and update both 
documents regularly and changes will be 
communicated to staff. 

31-Oct-2020 Update October 2020 
A)    The draft Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Policy 
includes 6 proposed equalities objectives, which 
demonstrate specific areas where we are tackling 
inequality. The policy will be presented to Full 
Council for approval on the 28th January 2021. 
 
B)    In the draft policy, it makes clear that it is the 
responsibility of all staff to tackle inequality and 
advance equality, diversity and inclusion. An action 
plan is being developed for the 6 proposed 
equalities objectives. This plan has been created in 
partnership between the Corporate Strategy Service 
and service leads for each objective. This plan 
makes clear the actions which must be taken to 
achieve the objective and identifies lead officers for 
each objective. The plan will be finalised when we 
have the final objectives, following the consultation 
period which will end the 13th of December. 
Both the Corporate and Members Equalities Boards 
have been regularly involved in the development of 
the draft Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy and 
have suggested actions to achieve the proposed 
objectives, as part of the development of an action 
plan. The draft policy has been published for 
consultation with all staff, who as part of their 
feedback have been asked to suggest actions to 
achieve the proposed objectives. Once the final 
policy is approved by full Council, this will be 
communicated to all staff. 

01-Feb-2021 

P
age 147



Page 18 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

Equalities Monitoring & 
Reporting - 
Governance 

a) External Reporting In accordance with 
Section 153 of the Equality Act: - 
Information will be published annually on 
how the Council is fulfilling its Equality 
Duty; - One or more equalities objectives 
will be agreed and published; - The 
Council will review the Equality webpage 
and ensure that out of date documents are 
removed and repopulated with current 
information. Going forward this will be 
reviewed regularly to ensure staff, 
residents and other interested parties are 
kept informed.  
 
b) Internal Reporting - An agreed set of 
performance indicators will be developed 
and used to monitor performance. This will 
be approved and regularly monitored by 
the Board. - Requirements for monitoring 
and reporting will be included in the 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy. 

30-Sep-2020 Update October 2020 
A)    An annual report is published each year on how 
Enfield Council is fulfilling its Equality Duty, under 
s153, on the website. Once the new equalities policy 
has been approved by Full Council in January, the 
policy will be published on the internet. 
Subsequently, the previous equalities policy and 
objectives will be removed. The website will 
continue to be regularly reviewed by the Corporate 
Strategy Service and Corporate Equalities Board. 
 
In the draft Equalities Policy, we state that the 
Corporate Equalities Board will review progress 
made towards achieving our equalities objectives 
annually. In the action plan, we have included 
measures of success and the Corporate Equalities 
Board will review progress against these measures 
of success. 

01-Feb-2021 

Leavers Process 
Governance 

a) The starter and leaver process will be 
reviewed under the ownership of the 
HR and IT Services. 
 

b) HR Ownership will cover the overall 
process governance and 
documentation across the 
organisation. IT Ownership will cover 
the implementation of a unified IT 
provision and system that supports 
this process, so it supports a single 
journey for the organisation including 
the ability to identify at individual level 
the user’s status, network and 

31-Mar-2020 Update November 2020 
DS Update: As part of the restructure of IT, the new 
Digital Services will now continue to use Service 
Now as it's ITSM tool. That provides the opportunity 
to review the process on the existing platform, and 
we are currently developing a plan to update broken 
journeys and reporting to fit the new service. That 
includes a joint Council review of the Starter/Leaver 
workflow and journey it now takes with HR, DS, FM 
and Payroll. Amending the due date needs to be 
done with Human Resources as the owner. 
 
Update June 2020 
  

TBC 

P
age 148



Page 19 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

systems access and ICT assets 
assigned to that user. 

 
 
c) This will also include ability to provide 

access for reporting either via a self-
reporting tool or using the council’s 
chosen reporting functionality Power 
BI 

 
d) While the implementation is defined 

and projects delivered, the existing 
reporting using SAP, Service 
Management Tools, Active Directory 
and Microsoft Office 365 console will 
be used to provide on-going 
information to facilitate reviews of 
compliance. 

 
 
e) The risk will be captured on the Risk 

Register and reviewed monthly until 
the implementation above is 
completed 

 
f) To support this review, we will also use 
the Customer Experience Programme to 
endorse the approach and monitor 
progress 

Following the audit, a review commenced of the 
Service Management Tool that the organisation 
used (Service Now) with a view to changing the 
product to one which was designed around process 
and was affordable and supportable in house.   
 In line with the strategy to initially do it to ICT first, a 
proof of concept on the Service Tool commenced at 
the end of March 2020 but has been delayed due to 
Covid-19.  
  
As a result of these delays and the urgency to 
review the Leavers process in light of the increased 
Remote Working, 
ICT are undertaking additional short and medium 
terms actions to mitigate the risks. The ICT Risk 
Register and ICT Work Programme will be updated 
to reflect this.  
 
  

Part Owned 
Company Audit 
Follow Up 

Investor Level 
Monitoring of 
Management 
Information 

1. The upcoming Shareholder Board 
Terms of Reference review will include 
consideration of the Board’s role in 
overseeing partially owned companies. 
Amendments will be recommended to 
Cabinet to approve. Each company will be 

31-May-2020 Update November 2020 
Part 1 complete as of this week. 
Part 2 - Regulatory review – was awaiting state aid 
advice which has now come in so this can be 
completed in the next few weeks 
 

31-Dec-2020 

P
age 149



Page 20 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

required to report quarterly on the base 
template currently utilised for wholly 
owned companies. Governance Principles 
will require this to be written into 
Shareholder Agreements for future 
ventures.  
 
2. Regulatory compliance will be 
monitored for all companies on a pre-
determined regular basis by theme (e.g. 
Teckal compliance for all companies, 
State Aid compliance for all companies, 
etc). These items will be added to the 
Shareholder Board forward work plan. 

Update, September 2020 
Cabinet timetables were thrown out by Coronavirus 
and as such this is still outstanding. Performance 
monitoring will incorporate Montagu LLP as of this 
quarter. Advice from Monitoring Officer is that 
Regulatory Review will only need to go to Cabinet if 
there are any issues identified, if not it will be 
reported to the Monitoring Officer for his information. 
New dates for these are 31st October for monitoring 
reports, and 31st December for regulatory review. 

 

Place 
 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

Meridian Water – 
Consultancy 
Spend 

Unclear Supplier 
Due Diligence 
Requirements 
during the 
Procurement 
Process 

1) The Procurement Manual due to 
accompany the recently updated and 
approved Contract Procedure Rules will 
include the requirement to conduct 
supplier due diligence: • Ensuring due 
diligence is flexed based on value and risk 
of each procurement.  • Clearly identifying 
the activities / checks that must be 
performed (or reference a separate 
document where these are listed).  • 
Mandating ongoing supplier due diligence 
checks are performed and that evidence 
of supplier due diligence will be 
maintained on the LTP.   
 
2) Consideration will also be given to 

31-Oct-2020 Update Nov 2020 
Parts 1 & 2  
 
Both actions have been implemented – Procurement 
Manual has been issued. 
 
Update October 2020 
Parts 4 
 
Meridian Water Programme Director leads the 
department Procurement Board and new systems 
and processes in place. HIF contractor procurement 
this was done. Complete  
  
Update September 2020  
 

31-Oct-2020 

P
age 150



Page 21 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

expanding the types of due diligence 
required beyond financial and legal.  
 
3) The Record of Decision, Operational 
DAR etc. templates will be updated to 
reflect the updated supplier due diligence 
requirements noted above (including 
ensuring evidence of sign-off from the 
individual performing the due diligence 
check is recorded); and,  
 
4) The Meridian Water team will ensure 
that supplier due diligence is carried out at 
the procurement stage and also as part of 
continuous contract monitoring post 
contract award. 

The current Procurement Manual and the new 
revised manual (to accompany the new CPRs) that 
accompany the CPR’s has guidance incorporated 
regarding supplier financial due diligence.  
  
This includes considerations as follows:  
  

 Ensuring due diligence is flexed based on value 
and risk of each procurement.  

 Clearly identifying the activities / checks that 
must be performed (A check list is in 
development – speak to P&C Hub if you need to 
do this).  

 Mandating ongoing supplier due diligence 
checks are performed and that evidence of 
supplier due diligence will be maintained on the 
LTP.  

  
2) The guidance also recommends that due-
diligence is undertaken in a manner that is 
proportionate.  
  
As the guidance sits outside of the CPRs it can be 
revised and updated to provide additional guidance 
accordingly.  
 
4) We will work with Corporate procurement and 
Finance colleagues to identify a consistent approach 
to due diligence and identify thresholds but balance 
these against the needs to deliver local social value 
through a local supply chain. RAG Green HIF 
Example on the attached. (Implemented)  
  

 

Resources 
 

P
age 151



Page 22 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

General Ledger 
(SAP) 

Incomplete 
policies and 
procedures 

1. The Financial Regulations are currently 
being updated; we will also implement a 
routine review of all General Ledger 
related procedures to occur at least 
annually, immediately after the External 
Audit.  
 
2. We will create local policies and 
procedures to cover: • Roles and 
responsibilities of all relevant officers and 
departments; • Process flowcharts for key 
GL processes; • A suspense account 
procedure; • Month-end/Quarterly 
reporting timetables; • Reconciliations; • 
Chart of Accounts update 

30-Jun-2020 November 2020 
Follow up audit Terms of Reference issued, 
fieldwork to commence in January. 
 
October 2020, meeting between Internal Audit 
and Finance 
Financial Regulations have been updated and 
evidence will be sent 
 
Update, September 2020 
1. Financial Regulations Updated and General 
Ledger procedures will be reviewed post External 
Audit. 
2. Roles and responsibility for all officers and 
departments are in the financial regulations. 
Process flowcharts for key GL processes will be 
created post External Audit. 
Balance Sheet codes are reconciled quarterly. 
Work already underway to reduce suspense 
(holding codes), alongside internal recharges and 
gradually remove over next year. 

31-Oct-2020 

General Ledger 
(SAP) 

Inadequate 
review of 
suspense and 
control accounts 

1. We will review SAP and ensure we 
have a complete listing of all suspense 
accounts.  
 
2. We will review all suspense accounts in 
SAP and take steps to reduce these to 
ensure only the minimum necessary are 
retained.  
 
3. We will implement a routine review of 
suspense accounts, with identified owners 
for this process. This will be documented 
in procedure notes (see Finding #1).  
 

31-May-2020 November 2020 
Follow up audit Terms of Reference issued, 
fieldwork to commence in January. 
 
October 2020, meeting between Internal Audit 
and Finance 
Further evidence to be provided. 
 
Update, September 2020  
1. Suspense Accounts should not exist except for 
unallocated cash, which will be cleared every 12 
months on a rolling basis, as per item 1. 
2 as above. 
3. as above. 

31-Oct-2020 

P
age 152



Page 23 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

4. We will ensure that responsibility for 
reviewing and clearing control accounts is 
defined and this activity is performed and 
reviewed and signed off including regular 
senior overview of the process. This will 
be documented in procedure notes (see 
Finding #1). 

4. all balance sheet codes are reconciled quarterly 
plus major ones monthly - need list to be updated - 
update names of completers and approvers - need 
new form 
All suspense accounts were brought up-to-date and 
cleared at year end, with clear owners for all 
suspense (holding codes). This needs to be brought 
up-to-date for end of June and September. Melissa 
to produce a report and with Gareth review at 
Finance Manager's meeting. 
Procedure notes to be produced post External Audit. 

General Ledger 
(SAP) 

Inadequate 
reconciliations of 
feeder systems 
and balance 
sheet codes 

1. All system interfaces will be identified, 
understood and documented.  
 
2. We will ensure system interfaces are 
reconciled monthly or quarterly and that 
these are reviewed by an appropriate 
Manager and supplied to Finance. This 
will be documented in procedure notes 
(see Finding #1). 3. We will ensure a 
process is put in place to reconcile 
balance sheet accounts on a quarterly 
basis. These reconciliations will be 
approved by named appropriate 
managers. 

31-May-2020 November 2020 
 
Follow up audit Terms of Reference issued, 
fieldwork to commence in January. 
 
October 2020, meeting between Internal Audit 
and Finance 
Reconciliations completed to September. New 
procedures will be in place for next month. Melissa 
to forward document. 
Update, September 2020 
1. ICT need to update system interfaces. 
2. All system interfaces need to have owner and 
approver 
3. Quarterly balance sheet codes - next week go to 
Finance Management Meeting and get everyone to 
agree to their codes 

31-Oct-2020 

General Ledger 
(SAP) 

Inadequate 
segregation of 
duties and lack of 
supporting 
documentation 

1. A standardised approach of inputting 
journals will be clearly communicated by 
Finance to other teams in the Council who 
use SAP. Included in this approach will be 
a clear outline of what appropriate 
evidence needs to be attached to the 
journal and segregation of duty 

30-Jun-2020 November 2020 
Follow up audit Terms of Reference issued, 
fieldwork to commence in January. 
 
October 2020, meeting between Internal Audit 
and Finance 
 

31-Oct-2020 

P
age 153



Page 24 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

arrangements. A sample of journals 
across the Council will be reviewed by 
Head of Corporate Finance each quarter 
to ensure the approach is being followed. 
(See Finding #1).  
 
2. We will review system access to ensure 
segregation of duties is in place for all 
journals.  
 
3. New Journal Upload file to be created 
preventing automatic approvals. 

Absoft have confirmed this is possible. Melissa to 
confirm outcome of further conversation with Absoft 
and provide update. 
 
Update, September 2020 
Instruct Absoft to produce new journal template. 
Gareth and Michael to set up meeting. 
2. Evidentiary pack on what constitutes good 
evidence for a journal. (needs circulating by 
Melissa). 
All June 30 and September 30 reconciliations to be 
produce by end for Sept 30 and Oct 31. 
3. Need to create new responsibilities in SAP to split 
out the roles and delete existing responsibilities. - 
Michael to produce in 2020/21. 

Payroll Lack of payroll 
reconciliations 

We will perform monthly reconciliations 
between the Payroll system and General 
Ledger. Any differences identified will be 
resolved in a timely manner. The 
reconciliation will be reviewed and signed 
off by management. 

30-Sep-2020 November 2020 
To be covered in the GL follow up audit, fieldwork to 
commence in January. 
 
Update, September 2020 
Will be included in quarterly reconciliation list and 
subject to same timings of production. 

30-Sep-2020 

 
  

P
age 154



Page 25 of 29 

 
CE 20/024 

APPENDIX C: Medium Risk Actions Overdue > 1 Year 
People 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

Request for 
Funding – 
end to end 
process 

Roles and 
responsibilities 
– Control 
Design 

The full process will be documented, 
and processing guidance produced to 
effectively align the process to the 
new structure and ensure clarity in 
roles and responsibilities. This will 
then be effectively communicated to 
staff dealing with the RFF process.  

01-Jan-2018 Update November 2020 
 
We have full end to end RFF process.  However, this is being 
updated as ARIS have taken on more RFF activities recently 
to cover more areas. 
 
Update August 2020  
  
This was not completed due to there being outstanding 
aspects of ContrOCC but the RFF is being modified again 
and further guidelines are being drafted.   
 
 

TBC 

Request for 
Funding – 
end to end 
process 

Performance 
monitoring and 
management 
information – 
Control design 

a. In developing new systems to 
support the RFF process, information 
requirements will be defined to ensure 
that reports can be run that identify 
process issues and anomalies, such 
as long outstanding POs that relate to 
the RFF process. Requirements 
gathering for report definition will be 
undertaken and link to mapping of 
codes and other business 
requirements.  
 
b. Mitigating controls will be 
considered to support the process 
before systems are changed, such as 
creating a central log of all RFFs 
created.  

01-Dec-2017 Update November 2020 
 
It was hoped that Controcc will be providing Performance 
Monitoring stats however, Controcc is no longer going Live.  
Reports cannot be run from Neptune as Neptune does not 
support this functionality.  However, ARIS are working on a 
spreadsheet to monitor performance of RFFs and other 
financial tasks undertaken by ARIS. 
 
Update August 2020  
  
a. Not competed due to it being a ContrOCC outstanding 
action  
  
b. Mitigating controls will be considered to support the 
process before systems are changed, such as creating a 
central log of all RFFs created. 
 
  

TBC 

P
age 155



Page 26 of 29 

CE 2020/024 
 

Place 
 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

Broomfield 
House 

Vision The Partnership Board to finally agree 
the strategy for the house, including 
milestones for delivery. A report to 
Cabinet will be completed in order to 
gain agreement to the strategy. 

01-Sep-2017 Update Assurance Board, 9 December 2020 
 
A paper is due to next Assurance Board, setting out the 
costs related to Broomfield House.  
 
Update Assurance Board, 1 July 2020 
 
Aiming for the Cabinet report in the Autumn (30 October) 
and comms strategy to close these actions off. Agreed date 
moved to 31 October 2020.  
  

31-Oct-2020 

Broomfield 
House 

Covenant The work on the covenant to be 
finalised and a Financial Implication 
Report prepared to indicate the 
Council’s potential liability in the event 
that any development or restoration of 
the house goes ahead 

01-Sep-2017 Update Assurance Board, 9 December 2020 
 
A paper is due to next Assurance Board, setting out the 
costs related to Broomfield House.  
 
Update Assurance Board, 1 July 2020 
 
Aiming for the Cabinet report in the Autumn (30 October) 
and comms strategy to close these actions off. Agreed date 
moved to 31 October 2020.  
  

31-Oct-2020 

Broomfield 
House 

Communication 
Strategy 

A communication strategy should be 
devised to ensure that all interested 
parties, including local residents and 
the general public, are informed about 
progress, risks, issues and next steps.  

01-Apr-2017 Update Assurance Board, 9 December 2020 
 
A paper is due to next Assurance Board, setting out the 
costs related to Broomfield House.  
 
Update Assurance Board, 1 July 2020 
 
Aiming for the Cabinet report in the Autumn (30 October) 
and comms strategy to close these actions off. Agreed date 
moved to 31 October 2020.  

31-Oct-2020 

P
age 156



Page 27 of 29 

CE 2020/024 
 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

  

Broomfield 
House 

Procurement 
Strategy 

The project needs to be identified 
before its delivery can be procured.  
This will be resolved by Cabinet 
report. 
A procurement strategy will then be 
devised in conjunction with the overall 
strategy for the House, to ensure that 
works and services are acquired 
efficiently and effectively. 

01-Sep-2017 Update Assurance Board, 9 December 2020 
 
A paper is due to next Assurance Board, setting out the 
costs related to Broomfield House.  
 
Update Assurance Board, 1 July 2020 
 
Aiming for the Cabinet report in the Autumn (30 October) 
and comms strategy to close these actions off.  Agreed 
date moved to 31 October 2020.  
  

31-Oct-2020 

 

Resources 

 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

Compliance with 
GDPR 

A lack of a 
centralised view 
of the retention 
and disposal of 
paper records 

1. Perform a gap analysis of the 
Corporate Records Managers 
responsibilities with respect to record 
retention across all areas of the 
business. This should be followed by 
addressing the gaps in responsibilities 
and assigning stakeholders for each 
service area.  
 
2. Assess the benefits of centralising 
versus decentralising the ownership of 
paper records disposal. Following that, 
the current retention roles and 
responsibilities should be updated to 
reflect that decision.   

31-Aug-2019 Update November 2020 
The retention schedule and policy are being reviewed by 
the Digital Services Information Governance Team/ 
DPO, and the Records Manager, and a draft to be 
presented at next IGB meeting 27November 2020. This 
will address the digitising and on- going storage of paper 
records, and disposal en masse by 31st December 
2020.  
  
The Print Strategy is under review (in light of remote 
working and less use) that is being informed by the Build 
the Change Programme, which is also adapting to which 
spaces and buildings are in use and in what order. Once 
that is finalised before Xmas - we will then revisit the 
SharePoint project including the digitising of paper and 

31-Dec-2020 

P
age 157



Page 28 of 29 

CE 2020/024 
 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

will use the policies at IGB to underpin this. We will 
confirm the Print strategy Review completion date (the 
SharePoint Programme estimated completion date is 
31st March 2021)  
 
The Data Quality policy was completed and 
implemented October 2020.   

Compliance with 
GDPR 

A lack of GDPR 
safeguards on all 
relevant systems 
and data 
duplication 

1. Review results of system 
assessments to ensure:  
• All systems within the Council are 
captured 
 • A proportionate action plan is 
designed and implemented for each 
relevant system. 
 

 2. Review the existing Data Privacy 
Impact Assessment (DPIA) to ensure a 
 GDPR safeguard assessment is 
triggered for new and updated systems. 

 
 3. Design and implement a process to 
search for existing vendors in the 
archive before creating a duplicate 
record. 

30-Jun-2019 Update November 2020 
 
Existing Data Privacy Impact Assessment is being 
reviewed, privacy by design training developed and will 
be rolled out to managers first. Awareness via corporate 
comms and tips of the day. 
 
 

31-Dec-2020 

Compliance with 
GDPR 

A lack of 
employee 
awareness of 
data retention 
responsibilities 

1. Design and implement an annual 
refresher-training course to remind 
all Council employees of their data 
retention obligations.    
 

2. Design and implement assurance 
activities, such as random spot-
checks and/or audits, on the 
Council’s data retention procedures 

31-Aug-2019 Update November 2020 
 
Action 2 
Physical spot checks- currently not being undertaken 
due to COVID and staff mainly working from home. At 
the beginning of the 2020 spot checks were being 
carried out by DPO.   
 
System spot checks - DS Security and Information 

31-Dec-2020 

P
age 158



Page 29 of 29 

CE 2020/024 
 

Audit Name Finding Title Agreed Action Original Due 
Date 

Update Revised Target 
Date 

to ensure employees are 
implementing procedures according 
to the Records Management Policy. 

Governance teams do carry out spot checks of various 
systems. The policy is currently being reviewed and will 
be covered within the Clear Desk and Clear Screen 
policy, which will cover both physical and system spot 
checks. This policy will be sent to IGB and implemented 
by Dec 31st 
 
Update October 2020  
 
Action 1 is complete.  
Data retention is included in the annual e-learning 
mandatory GDPR course. The full data retention 
schedule document is also available on iLearn. 
Quarterly reports are shared with key stakeholders on a 
quarterly basis. Learning information updates have been 
and will continue to be shared on an ongoing basis 
across the Council using a variety of media platforms. 
L&OD will continue to work with ICT Information 
Governance to ensure Data retention and GDPR 
learning is kept up to date.  

 

P
age 159



T
his page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of Enfield 
 

General Purpose Committee 
  

14 January 2021 
  
  

Subject:                     Member development sessions 
Director:      Jeremy Chambers, Director of Law and Governance. 
Key Decision:           N/a 
  
  
Purpose of Report 
1. The purpose of this report is to update the Members of the Committee on the 

proposed Member development sessions. 
 

 Proposal(s) 
  
2. To note the upcoming member development sessions. 

 
3. To consider and agree any topics which may be considered useful for the 

2021/22 member development sessions. 
  
Reason for Proposal(s) 
  
4. The Member and Democratic Services Group previously endorsed the 

member development programme. Following the changes to the Council’s 
committee structure the General Purposes Committee is asked to consider 
and agree the member development programme. 
  

Relevance to the Council Plan 
  

5. N/a 
  
Background 
 
6. Members attended sessions on modern slavery (9 attendees), county lines 

(12) and unconscious bias (26 attendees). 
 

7. The proposed sessions set out below have been highlighted as beneficial by 
members and officers. 

Date  Training  Room  Time  

27 
January 
2021 

Governance 
Presentation  

Virtual Tbc 

10 
February 
2021 

Local Plan 
workshop 

Virtual Tbc 

25 
February 
2021 

Planning  Virtual tbc 

Page 161 Agenda Item 9



3 March 
2021 

  Proposed to cancel this session 
as it clashes with Cabinet 

 
8. More sessions will be arranged early next year according to member interest.  

 
9. In addition to the member development programme, training opportunities 

from the Local Government Association and other equivalent organisations 
are available to members. 

 
10. The majority of the training is undertaken internally using the expertise and 

knowledge of officers in-house thereby limiting the costs of the programme. 
  
Main Considerations for the Council 
  
11. To consider the above proposals. 
  
  
Safeguarding Implications 
  
12. N/a 
  
Public Health Implications 
  
13. N/a 
  
Equalities Impact of the Proposal  
  
14.  The training and development provided to councillors helps them to provide 

a better service to their constituents enabling them to support local residents 
in developing stronger more sustainable communities.   

 
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
  
15. N/a 
  
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
  
16. There is a risk that members will miss out on beneficial training and 

development that will assist them in their duties and responsibilities as 
representatives of the Council. 

  
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will 
be taken to manage these risks 
  
17. Attendance is sometimes low.  In order to manage this risk calendar invites 

are sent to members along with reminder emails. These sessions are also 
put on the members newsletter. 

  
Financial Implications 
  

Page 162



18.  the cost of the member training and development is met from existing 
budgets. 

  
Legal Implications 
  
19.  N/a 
  
Workforce Implications 
 
20.  N/a 
  
 
Property Implications 
  
21.  N/a 
  
Other Implications 
   
22.  N/a 
  
Options Considered 
  
23.  N/a 
  
 
Report Author:       Clare Bryant 
                               Senior Governance Officer 
                               Clare.bryant@enfield.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 
None.  
  
Background Papers 
No background papers 

 
 

 

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



       

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 
Item 
 

 23 July 20  15 Oct 20 26 Nov 20 14 Jan 21 4 March 21     22 April 21 

Annual Statement of 
Accounts/Governance Statement  

Unaudited 
Accounts & Draft 

AGS 2019/20 

2019/20 Final 
accounts Update 
2019/20 Final 
Pension Fund 
Accounts 

Final audited 
accounts & 
AGS 
ISA260 Update 
& Sign off of 
Pension Fund 
Accounts 
2019/20 

SOA – Action 
Plan - Verbal 
Update 

SOA – Action 
Plan - Report 

SOA – Action Plan - Report 

BDO report on Statement of 
Accounts 

 LBE Audit Update 
Report 2019/20 & 

verbal update 
Pension Fund Audit 

2019/20 

LBE Audit 
Completion 

Report 2019/20 & 
Pension Fund 

Audit Completion 
Report 2019/20 

 . 

 

BDO - Annual Audit  & Fees 
Letter (including audit & 
inspection plan) 

    LBE Fee Letter 
2019/20 & 
Pension Fund 
Fee Letter 
2019/20  

Audit Plan 20/21 – 
Council main 
Account & 
Pension Audit 
Plan  
2020/21 
Annual Audit 
Letter 2019/20 
(LBE & Pension 
Fund). 

 

Draft Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement 2021/22 

   Council & 
Borrowing 

  

Capital Expenditure & Sensitivity 
of Interest Rates 

   
   

Contract Procedure Rules – 
Review & Waivers 
 

     Contract Procedure  
Rules 
Waivers Report & Update on  
procurement spend 

 

Audit Committee Annual Report   19/20 Annual Report. 

 
 

 

 

  

Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) – incl 
legislative changes 

(if applications to 
consider) 

  

 Update Update  

Housing Dev Approach to 
Identifying Risk & Management 

   
  Joanne Drew report 

Information Governance &    
 

IGB Annual 
Performance  

 

P
age 165

A
genda Item

 10



       

Document Retention Yearly update – 
2020/21 

& GDPR 
Implementation 

Financial Resilience & Managing 
the Savings 

   

 

Update on 
Financial 

Resilience/Managin
g the Savings - 

Finance 

 

Universal Credit Implementation       

Local Authority Trading 
Companies 

   
 

 Update  

Debt Recovery Process       

Brexit Risk for Local Authorities       

Brokerage Report - Update  Report     

Cyber & Technology Security Report  Update    

Meridian Water Update       

Electoral Services Update   Update    

Polling District Review       

Member Development sessions       

Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy 
– items to be confirmed and 
allocated 
 Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy 

 Money Laundering Policy 

 
 
20/21 Counter 
Fraud Strategy & 
Operational Plan 

    Anti-money Laundering  
Policy & Guidance and  
Whistle Blowing Policy 

Risk Management Reviews – 
items to be confirmed and 
allocated 
 Risk Management Strategy 

 Corporate risk register update  

 Departmental risk registers 

 Specific risk monitoring  

 Promotion of risk awareness 

 
 
 
1. Corporate Risk 
Register 
 
2. 20/21 Risk 
Strategy & 
Operational Plan 
 
3. Covid 19 – Risk 
Register 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Corporate Risk 
Register 

Covid 19 Risk 
Register 

Corporate Risk 
Register 
Brexit Risk Register 

 

 
 
Corporate Risk 
Register 

 

 
 
 
Corporate Risk 
Register 

 
 
 

 
 

Corporate Risk Register 

 

BDO specific reports – items to 
be confirmed and allocated 
 Accounts Audit Approach Memorandum 

 Use of Resources Audit  

 Grants Certification 

 Data Conversion Review 

 
1. Progress Report 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

LBE Audit 
Plan  
2020/21 & 
Pension  
Fund Audit 

 
 

Grants and  
Returns Certification 

 Report 2019/20 

 
 

P
age 166



       

 Value For Money 

 Review of Financial Resilience 

Plan  
2020/21 

 

Internal Audit & Investigations – 
Progress Report 
 Update of audit plan progress 

 Key risk findings  

 Investigations undertaken 

 Sanctions & prosecutions 

 Results achieved 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 Internal Audit Plan  

1. Internal Audit 
Annual Report 
19/20 

 
2. Counter Fraud 
Annual Report 
2019/20   

 
3.  Internal audit 

plan 2020/21 
 
4. 2019/20 
Annual Schools 
Audit Report 

  

 

 

Draft Internal Audit Plan  
2021/22  

 
& Internal Audit  
Progress Report 2020/21 

External Audit (BDO) – Progress 
Report 

  
  

 
 

 P
age 167



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 26 NOVEMBER 2020
	4 UPDATE ON THE AUDIT OF 2019/20 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
	6 DRAFT TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2021/22
	Annex 1 - Draft TM Strategy Statement 2021-22 v2

	7 RISK REGISTER UPDATES
	8 AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE PROGRESS REPORT
	9 MEMBER DEVELOPMENT SESSIONS
	10 GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

